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PART I.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EGL, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(unaudited)
(in thousands, except par values)

September 30,

2005

December 31,

2004
ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

$

130,877

$

92,918
Restricted cash 11,933 17,004
Short-term investments and marketable securities 47 587
Trade receivables, net of allowance of $12,730 and
$14,069 541,242 611,594
Other receivables 26,863 21,147
Deferred income taxes 11,004 10,106
Other current assets 30,910 24,781
Total current assets 752,876 778,137
Property and equipment, net 190,317 178,218
Investment in an unconsolidated affiliate 553 619
Goodwill 110,960 108,470
Deferred income taxes 2,401 648
Other assets, net 34,866 28,771

Total assets

$

1,091,973

$

1,094,863
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS�

EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Trade payables and accrued transportation costs

$

363,230

$

337,137
Accrued salaries and related costs 58,253 46,465
Current portion of long-term debt 13,492 19,426
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Income taxes payable 17,289 4,716
Accrued selling, general and administrative
expenses
and other liabilities 85,223 82,926
Total current liabilities 537,487 490,670
Deferred income taxes 20,315 19,421
Long-term debt 19,817 12,752
Other noncurrent liabilities 17,255 18,786
Total liabilities 594,874 541,629
Minority interests 1,419 802
Commitments and contingencies (Notes  3, 10 and
11)
Stockholders� equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 200,000 shares
authorized; 53,178
and 52,841 shares issued; 47,322 and 51,915 shares
outstanding 53 53
Additional paid-in capital 248,623 241,117
Retained earnings 378,975 339,876
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (22,437) (12,625)
Unearned compensation (99) (124)
Treasury stock, 5,856 and 926 shares held (109,435) (15,865)
Total stockholders� equity 495,680 552,432

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity

$

1,091,973

$

1,094,863

See notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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EGL, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(unaudited)
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2005 2004
(Restated)

Revenues

$

2,261,427

$

1,941,285
Cost of transportation 1,564,539 1,305,548
Net revenues 696,888 635,737
Operating expenses:
Personnel costs 390,473 356,336
Other selling, general and administrative expenses 244,620 226,368
EEOC legal settlement (5,975) -
Operating income 67,770 53,033
Nonoperating income, net 2,242 8,942
Income before provision for income taxes 70,012 61,975
Provision for income taxes 30,913 23,987

Net income

$

39,099

$

37,988

Basic earnings per share

$

0.78

$

0.84
Basic weighted-average common shares outstanding 49,974 45,478

Diluted earnings per share

$

0.78

$

0.79
Diluted weighted-average common shares
outstanding 50,316 51,687

See notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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EGL, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(unaudited)
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ended
September 30,

2005 2004
(Restated)

Revenues

$

779,507

$

719,417
Cost of transportation 532,547 493,492
Net revenues 246,960 225,925
Operating expenses:
Personnel costs 129,349 126,555
Other selling, general and administrative expenses 84,567 75,545
Operating income 33,044 23,825
Nonoperating income, net 380 3,121
Income before provision for income taxes 33,424 26,946
Provision for income taxes 14,192 10,371

Net income

$

19,232

$

16,575

Basic earnings per share

$

0.41

$

0.37
Basic weighted-average common shares outstanding 47,300 44,801

Diluted earnings per share

$

0.40

$

0.34
Diluted weighted-average common shares
outstanding 47,602 51,202

See notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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EGL, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(unaudited)
(in thousands)

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2005 2004
(Restated)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income

$

39,099

$

37,988
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 26,860 25,912
Bad debt expense 6,412 4,857
Stock-based compensation expense 206 382
Impairment of assets 112 51
Deferred income tax benefit (1,852) (1,504)
Tax benefit of stock options exercised 1,307 2,604
Equity in (earnings) losses of affiliates 66 (1,730)
Minority interests 55 340
Transfers (to) from restricted cash, net 5,042 (351)
Gain on sale of unconsolidated affiliates - (12,091)
Other (297) 400
Net effect of changes in working capital, net of
assets acquired 92,970 (15,204)
Net cash provided by operating activities 169,980 41,654
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures (32,623) (31,448)
(Purchase) sale of short-term investments 540 (43)
Proceeds from sales of other assets 1,456 873
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired - (16,216)
Earnout payments (4,186) (3,291)
Proceeds from sale of unconsolidated affiliate - 52,123
Collection of notes receivable 1,618 552
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (33,195) 2,550
Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance (repayment) of other debt, net (4,834) 2,234
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Payment of financing fees (1,055) (1,067)
Repayment of financed insurance premiums and
software maintenance, net (2,251) (4,666)
Repayment of capital leases (1,525) (781)
Repurchases of common stock (94,293) (59,079)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 6,206 22,932
Issuance of common stock for employee stock
purchase plan 535 319
Cash received from minority interest partners 636 -
Dividends paid to minority interest partners (82) (114)
Net cash used in financing activities (96,663) (40,222)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (2,163) (3,203)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 37,959 779
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the period 92,918 94,099

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the period

$

130,877

$

94,878
See notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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EGL, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY

(unaudited)
(in thousands)

Common stock
Additional
paid-in
capital

Retained
earnings

Treasury stock Accumulated
other

comprehensive
income (loss)

Unearned
compensation TotalShares Amount Shares Amount

Balance at
December 31,
2004 52,841

$

53

$

241,117

$

339,876 (926)

$

(15,865)

$

(12,625)

$

(124)

$

552,432
Net income - - - 39,099 - - - - 39,099
Change in
value of
marketable
securities, net - - - - - - 2 - 2
Foreign
currency
translation
adjustments - - - - - - (9,814) - (9,814)
Issuance of
shares under
employee
stock
purchase plan - - (43) - 31 578 - - 535
Repurchase of
common
stock - - - - (4,969) (94,293) - - (94,293)
Exercise of
stock
options and
issuance
of restricted
stock
awards with
related tax
benefit 337 - 7,518 - 8 145 - (150) 7,513
Stock-based
compensation

- - 31 - - - - 175 206
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expense
Balance at
September 30,
2005 53,178

$

53

$

248,623

$

378,975 (5,856)

$

(109,435)

$

(22,437)

$

(99)

$

495,680

See notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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EGL, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared by EGL, Inc. (EGL or
the Company) in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC) for
interim financial statements and, accordingly, do not include all information and footnotes required under generally
accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements.  The financial statements have been prepared in
conformity with the accounting principles and practices disclosed in, and should be read in conjunction with, the
annual financial statements of the Company included in the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No.
0-27288).  In the opinion of management, these interim financial statements contain all adjustments necessary for a
fair presentation of the Company�s financial position at September 30, 2005 and the results of its operations for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2005, its cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2005.
 Results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005 are not necessarily indicative of the
results that may be expected for EGL�s full fiscal year.

Note 1 - Organization, operations and summary of significant accounting policies

EGL is a global transportation, supply chain management and information services company dedicated to providing
flexible logistics solutions on a price competitive basis.  The Company�s services include air and ocean freight
forwarding, customs brokerage, local pick up and delivery service, materials management, warehousing, trade
facilitation and procurement and integrated logistics and supply chain management services.  The Company provides
services in over 100 countries on six continents through offices around the world as well as through its worldwide
network of exclusive and nonexclusive agents.  The principal markets for all lines of business are North America,
Europe and Asia with significant operations in the Middle East, India, South America and South Pacific (see Note 14).

Basis of presentation and principles of consolidation

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements include EGL and all of its wholly-owned subsidiaries
and investments that the Company controls through majority ownership or other variable interests.  All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  Investments in less than �majority�
owned affiliates, over which the Company has significant influence in and does not control through variable interests,
are accounted for by the equity method.  The Company has reclassified certain prior period amounts to conform with
the current period presentation.

Restatement of previously issued financial statements

The Company restated its historical financial statements for the first three quarters of 2004 for errors related to (1)
recognition of straight-line rent expense when the lease term in a real estate operating lease contains a period when
there are free or reduced rents (commonly referred to as �rent holidays�) and scheduled rent increases, (2) reconciliation
of various account balances and (3) certain reclassification adjustments.  See the Company�s 2004 Form 10-K for
disclosures relating to this restatement of the Company�s financial statements.  All applicable amounts relating to the
restatement have been reflected in the condensed consolidated financial statements and notes to the condensed
consolidated financial statements.
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Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
 Management considers many factors in selecting appropriate operational and financial accounting policies and
controls, and in developing the assumptions that are used in the preparation of these financial statements.
 Management must apply significant judgment in this process.  Factors that may be considered by management
making these assumptions and estimates include, but are not limited to:  the range of accounting policies permitted by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; management�s understanding of the
Company�s business � both historical results and expected future results; the extent to which operational controls exist
that provide high degrees of assurance that all desired information to assist in the estimation is available and reliable;
expectations of the future performance of

6
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EGL, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (CONTINUED)

the economy, both domestically and globally, within various areas that serve the Company�s principal customers and
suppliers of goods and services; expected rates of change, sensitivity and volatility associated with the assumptions
used in developing estimates; and whether historical trends are expected to be representative of future trends.  The
estimation process often may yield a range of potentially reasonable estimates of the ultimate future outcomes and
management must select an amount that lies within that range of reasonable estimates � which may result in the
selection of estimates which could be viewed as conservative or aggressive by others.  Management uses its business
and financial accounting judgment in selecting the most appropriate estimates; however, actual amounts could and
will differ from those estimates.

Stock-based compensation

The Company has seven stock-based employee compensation plans under which stock-based awards have been
granted.  The Company accounts for stock-based awards to employees and non-employee directors using the intrinsic
value method prescribed in Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, �Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,� and related interpretations.  The intrinsic value method used by the Company generally results in no
compensation expense being recorded for stock option grants made by the Company because those grants are typically
made with option exercise prices substantially equal to fair market value at the date of option grant.  The application
of the alternative fair value method under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123, �Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation,� (SFAS 123), which estimates the fair value of the option awarded to the employee,
would result in compensation expense being recognized over the period of time that the employee�s rights in the
options vest.  The following table illustrates the pro forma effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company
had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 to stock-based employee compensation (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

Nine Months Ended

September 30,

Three Months Ended

September 30,
2005 2004 2005 2004

(Restated) (Restated)

Net income as reported

$

39,099

$

37,988

$

19,232

$

16,575
Add:  Total stock-based compensation expense
included in
net income, net of tax 115 234 22 99

1,439 2,220 451 680
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Deduct:  Total stock-based employee
compensation expense
determined under fair value based method for all
awards,
net of  tax

Pro forma net income

$

37,775

$

36,002

$

18,803

$

15,994
Earnings per share:

Basic-as reported

$

0.78

$

0.84

$

0.41

$

0.37
Basic-pro forma 0.76 0.79 0.40 0.36
Diluted-as reported 0.78 0.79 0.40 0.34
Diluted-pro forma 0.75 0.75 0.40 0.33

7
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EGL, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

Comprehensive income (loss)

Components of comprehensive income are as follows (in thousands):

Nine Months Ended

September 30,

Three Months Ended

September 30,
2005 2004 2005 2004

(Restated) (Restated)

Net income

$

39,099

$

37,988

$

19,232

$

16,575
Valuation change of marketable securities, net 2 - 4 -
Foreign currency translation adjustments (9,814) (2,299) (1,915) 601

Comprehensive income

$

29,287

$

35,689

$

17,321

$

17,176

Accumulated other comprehensive loss consists of the following:

September
30, 2005

December 31,
2004

(in thousands)

Cumulative foreign currency
translation adjustment

$

(20,499)

$

(10,685)
Minimum pension liability
adjustment, net of tax (1,970) (1,970)
Unrealized gain on marketable
securities, net 32 30

$ $
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(22,437) (12,625)

New accounting pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004),
�Share-Based Payment� (SFAS 123R), which replaces SFAS No. 123, �Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.�
(SFAS 123) and supercedes APB Opinion No. 25, �Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.�  SFAS 123R, as
amended in April 2005, requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options
and employee stock purchase plans, to be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair values, beginning
with the first interim or annual period beginning after January 1, 2006.  In addition, SFAS 123R will cause
unrecognized expense (based on the amount in the Company�s pro forma footnote disclosure) related to options vesting
after the date of initial adoption to be recognized as a charge to results of operations over the remaining vesting
period.  Under SFAS 123R, the Company must determine the appropriate fair value model to be used for valuing
share-based payments, the amortization method for compensation cost and the transition method to be used at the date
of adoption.  The transition alternatives include prospective and retrospective adoption methods, prior periods may be
restated either at the beginning of the year of adoption or for all periods presented.  The prospective method requires
that compensation expense be recorded for all unvested stock options and share awards as of the beginning of the first
quarter of adoption of SFAS 123R, while the retrospective methods would record compensation expense for all
unvested stock options and share awards beginning with the first period restated.  The Company is evaluating the
requirements of SFAS 123R and expects the adoption of SFAS 123R will have a material impact on the consolidated
results of operations and, earnings per share.

On August 31, 2005, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 123(R)-1, �Classification and Measurement of Freestanding
Financial Instruments Originally Issued in Exchange for Employee Services under FASB Statement 123(R).�  This
guidance applies to equity shares, as well as stock options, and requires that a freestanding financial instrument issued
to an employee in exchange for past or future employee services that is subject to SFAS No. 123(R) �Share Based
Payments� shall continue to be subject to the recognition and measurement provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) throughout
the life of the instrument, unless its terms are modified when the holder is no longer an employee.  The effective date
of this guidance is upon initial adoption of SFAS 123(R).  The Company is evaluating the new guidance and
anticipates adopting it with the implementation of SFAS 123(R) beginning January 1, 2006.

8
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EGL, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

On October 18, 2005, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 123(R)-2, �Practical Accommodation to the Application of Grant
Date as Defined in FASB Statement No. 123(R),� to provide guidance on determining the grant date for an award as
defined in SFAS No. 123(R).  This FSP stipulates that assuming all other criteria in the grant date definition are met, a
mutual understanding of the key terms and conditions of an award to an individual employee is presumed to exist
upon the award�s approval in accordance with the relevant corporate governance requirements, provided that the key
terms and conditions of an award (a) cannot be negotiated by the recipient with the employer because the award is a
unilateral grant, and (b) are expected to be communicated to an individual recipient within a relatively short time
period from the date of approval.  The Company is evaluating the new guidance and anticipates adopting it with the
implementation of SFAS No. 123(R) beginning January 1, 2006.

In December 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. 109�2 (FSP 109�2), �Accounting and Disclosure
Guidance for the Foreign Repatriation Provision within the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004�, which provides
guidance under SFAS No. 109 with respect to recording the potential impact of the repatriation provisions of the Act
on a company�s income tax expense and deferred tax liability.  FSP 109�2 states that a company is allowed time beyond
the financial reporting period of enactment to evaluate the effect of the Act on its plan for reinvestment or repatriation
of foreign earnings for purposes of applying SFAS No. 109.  The Company has determined that it does not intend to
repatriate foreign earnings under the provisions in the Act.  Thus, the Company�s consolidated financial statements do
not reflect a provision for taxes related to this guidance.  Any such repatriation under the Act would need to occur by
December 31, 2005.

In March 2005, the FASB issued FIN 47, �Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations, an interpretation
of FASB Statement No. 143� (FIN 47).  FIN 47 clarifies that the term conditional asset retirement obligation refers to a
legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing and/or method of settlement are conditional
on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the entity.  An entity is required to recognize a liability
for the fair value of a conditional asset retirement obligation if the fair value of the liability can be reasonably
estimated.  FIN 47 is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2005.  The Company has evaluated the
impact of this interpretation and does not expect that it will have any material impact on its results of operations,
financial position or cash flow.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, �Accounting Changes and Error Corrections� (SFAS No. 154).  SFAS
No. 154 replaces APB Opinion No. 20, �Accounting Changes�, and SFAS No. 3, �Reporting Accounting Changes in
Interim Financial Statements,� and changes the requirements for the accounting for and reporting of a change in
accounting principle.  The Company is required to adopt SFAS No. 154 for accounting changes and error corrections
that occur after the beginning of 2006.  The Company�s results of operations and financial condition will only be
impacted by SFAS No. 154 if it implements changes in accounting principle that are addressed by the standard or
discovers errors in future periods errors which require correction.

On July 14, 2005, the FASB issued an exposure draft of a proposed Interpretation, Accounting for Uncertain Tax
Positions � an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.  The proposed interpretation would require companies to
recognize the best estimate of an uncertain tax position only if it is probable of being sustained on audit by the
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taxation authorities.  Subsequently, the tax benefit would be derecognized (by either recording a tax liability or
decreasing a tax asset) when the probable threshold is no longer met and it is more likely than not that the tax position
will not be sustained.  The proposed guidance in the Interpretation would require companies to assess all uncertain tax
positions and only those meeting the probable threshold at the transition date would continue to be recognized.  The
difference between the amount previously recognized and the amount recognized after applying the proposed
Interpretation would be recorded as the cumulative effect adjustment in the statement of operations (restatement is not
permitted).  At its October 10, 2005 meeting the FASB said that its guidance for this proposed Interpretation will not
be finalized before the first quarter of 2006.  The Company has not yet determined the impact of the Interpretation on
its results of operations, financial position or cash flow.
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EGL, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

Note 2 - Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income available to common shareholders by
the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005
and 2004.  Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to
issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that
then shared in the earnings of the entity.  Stock options are the only potentially dilutive share equivalents the
Company currently has outstanding for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005.  In addition, shares
related to the convertible notes issued in December 2001 are included in diluted earnings per share for the nine months
and three months ended September 30, 2004.  The notes were converted to common shares in December 2004.

The table below indicates the potential common shares issuable which were included for purposes of computing
diluted earnings per common share (in thousands):

Nine Months Ended

September 30,

Three Months Ended

September 30,
2005 2004 2005 2004

(Restated) (Restated)

Net income�used in basic earnings per common share

$

39,099

$

37,988

$

19,232

$

16,575
Interest expense and deferred financing fee
amortization on convertible notes, net of tax - 2,760 - 920

Net income�used in diluted earnings per common share

$

39,099

$

40,748

$

19,232

$

17,495

Weighted-average common shares outstanding�used in
basic earnings
per common share 49,974 45,478 47,300 44,801
Net dilutive potential common shares issuable on
exercise of options 342 473 302 665
Conversion of convertible senior notes - 5,736 - 5,736

50,316 51,687 47,602 51,202
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Weighted-average common shares and dilutive potential
common shares
used in diluted earnings per common share

The table below indicates the potential common shares issuable which were excluded from diluted potential common
shares as their effect would be anti-dilutive (in thousands):

Nine Months Ended

September 30,

Three Months Ended

September 30,
2005 2004 2005 2004

Net dilutive potential common shares issuable:
On exercise of options - exercise price greater than
average market value
during period 1,215 4,213 1,277 3,899

In addition, up to 311,000 shares associated with the December 2004 grant of contingently issuable restricted stock
and options have been excluded from the basic and diluted earnings per share calculation as the contingency has not
been met.

Note 3 � Future lease obligations

The Company maintains facility accruals for its remaining lease obligations under noncancelable operating leases at
domestic and international locations that the Company has vacated due to excess capacity resulting from the Company
having multiple facilities in certain locations and changing business needs.  All lease costs for facilities being
consolidated were charged to operations until the date that the Company vacated each facility.  Vacant facility
accruals

10
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EGL, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

are included in other liabilities and other non-current liabilities on the condensed consolidated balance sheet.  The
changes in these accruals during the nine months ended September 30, 2005 are as follows:

Future lease
obligations, net
of subleasing

income
(in thousands)

Accrued liability at December 31, 2004 $

6,576
Revisions to estimates 1,150
Payments (2,375)
Accrued liability at September 30, 2005 $

5,351

Amounts recorded for future lease obligations are net of approximately $18.7 million in anticipated future recoveries
from actual sublease agreements and $8.5 million from expected sublease agreements as of September 30, 2005.
 Sublease income has been anticipated only in locations where sublease agreements have been executed as of
September 30, 2005 or are deemed probable of execution.  The Company�s lease agreements for these facilities expire
from 2005 to 2025 and sublease agreements expire from 2006 to 2012.  There is a risk that subleasing transactions
will not occur within the same timing or pricing assumptions made by the Company, or at all, which could result in
future revisions to these estimates.

Note 4 � Restructuring

In June 2005, the Company announced that it was eliminating approximately 350 full-time, part-time and contractor
positions in connection with a cost reduction plan.  The reductions were primarily in the United States and Europe.
 The Company incurred a pre-tax charge of approximately $1.6 million in connection with the reductions in workforce
in the second quarter of 2005.  In Europe, the Middle East and Africa, North America and South America, the charges
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incurred in the second quarter of 2005 were approximately $1.1 million, $392,000 and $97,000, respectively.  Of this
amount, approximately $537,000 was paid in the second quarter of 2005 and the remainder was paid in the third
quarter of 2005.

Note 5 � Financing receivables

Financing receivables represent sales-type and direct-financing leases resulting from the marketing of trucks obtained
from third party manufacturers by Ashton Leasing Company.  These receivables typically have terms from three to
five years and are usually collateralized by a security interest in the underlying assets.  Financing receivables also
include billed receivables from operating leases.  The components of net financing receivables, which are included in
other current receivables and other assets, are as follows:

September 30,

2005

December 31,

2004
(in thousands)

Minimum lease payments receivable

$

21,421

$

13,116
Unearned income (7,968) (5,125)
Reserve for estimated driver defaults (259) -
Financing receivables, net 13,194 7,991

Less current portion (3,036) (1,727)

Amounts due after one year
$

10,158

$

6,264
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

Note 6 � Accrued selling, general and administrative expenses and other liabilities

Accrued selling, general and administrative expenses and other liabilities consist of the following amounts:

September 30, December 31,
2005 2004

(in thousands)
General and administrative expense
accruals

$

30,211

$

28,949
Insurance payable 17,412 7,161
Other current liabilities 15,743 13,610
Accrued professional fees and legal
matters 12,480 23,723
Other accrued taxes 7,709 6,958
Vacant facilities accruals 1,668 2,525
Total $

85,223

$

82,926

Note 7 � Debt

Debt consists of the following amounts:

September 30,

2005

December 31,

2004
(in thousands)
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Financed vehicles

$

16,928

$

9,821
Borrowings on international credit
facilities 6,466 8,953
Financed software licenses and
maintenance 2,594 3,366
Mortgage payable 1,308 1,347
Notes payable to sellers 600 5,600
Other debt 5,413 3,091
Total debt 33,309 32,178

Current portion of debt 13,492 19,426

Long-term debt
$

19,817

$

12,752
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement

The Company entered into an agreement dated as of September 30, 2005 establishing a new $300 million, senior
secured revolving credit facility (the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement).  The Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement amends and restates the Company�s existing revolving credit agreement dated as of September 15, 2004, as
previously amended (the Existing Credit Agreement).  The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement is with a
syndicate of 13 financial institutions with Bank of America, N.A., as lender and administrative agent and matures on
September 30, 2010.  

The Company may use borrowings under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement for working capital, capital
expenditures and other lawful corporate purposes, to make permitted acquisitions and investments, to pay dividends
and to repurchase its common stock.  

Amounts borrowed under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement are guaranteed by all of the Company�s
existing and future direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries and secured equally and ratably by:

-

all of the Company�s present and future shares of capital stock of (or other ownership or profit interests in) each of its
present and future subsidiaries (limited, in the case of certain material first-tier foreign subsidiaries, to a pledge of
65% of the capital stock of such subsidiaries);

-

all of the Company�s and each of its domestic subsidiaries� present and future property and assets; and
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

-

all proceeds and products of the property and assets described above.

Loans under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement will initially bear interest at a rate per annum equal to
either, at the Company�s option, (1) LIBOR plus 1.25% or (2) the Base Rate (defined as the higher of Bank of
America, N.A.�s prime rate or 0.50% over the Federal Funds rate).  In addition, the Company is initially required to
pay a commitment fee of 0.30% on the undrawn amounts under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement.
 Interest rates and commitment fees under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement are subject to increase or
decrease as a function of the ratio of the Company�s Consolidated Net Funded Indebtedness to Consolidated EBITDA
(each as defined in the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement).  The Company may select interest periods of one,
two, three or six months for LIBOR loans, subject to availability.  Interest will be payable at the end of the selected
interest period, but no less frequently than quarterly.

Under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, the Company is subject to various covenants, including, among
others, the following:

-

a requirement that the Company maintain, on a rolling four-quarter basis, a ratio of Consolidated Net Funded
Indebtedness to Consolidated EBITDA (each as defined in the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement) of not
greater than 3.5 to 1.0 through December 31, 2006, and decreasing to 3.0 to 1.0 thereafter;

-

a requirement that, on a rolling four-quarter basis, the Company have a ratio of Consolidated EBIT to Consolidated
Interest Charges (each as defined in the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement) of at least 2.5 to 1.0 through
December 31, 2006 and increasing to 3.0 to 1.0 thereafter;

-
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a requirement that, at the end of each fiscal quarter, the Company have a ratio of book accounts receivable by the
Company and its subsidiaries to Consolidated Net Funded Indebtedness (as defined in the Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement) of at least 1.1 to 1.0; and

-

limitations on, among other things, liens indebtedness, asset sales, dividends and stock redemptions, investments and
acquisitions, transactions with affiliates and consolidations, mergers and sales of all or a substantial part of the
Company�s consolidated assets.

The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement contains events of default customary for an agreement of this type.  The
occurrence of certain specified �internal control� events which could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse
effect on the Company also constitutes an event of default under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement.  If a
default occurs and is continuing, the administrative agent may, among other things, declare all outstanding principle
amounts immediately due and payable.

The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement contains a $75 million sub-facility for letters of credit.  The Company
had $21.5 million in letters of credit outstanding and unused borrowing capacity of $278.5 million under the Amended
and Restated Credit Agreement as of September 30, 2005.  On October 4, 2005, the Company borrowed
approximately $95.8 million under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement to partially fund the purchase of
shares of our common stock in connection with the tender offer (See Note 8).

Note Repurchase Agreement

On October 12, 2005, the Company entered into a note purchase agreement (the Note Purchase Agreement) providing
for the issuance and sale of $100 million aggregate principal amount of floating rate, senior secured notes due October
12, 2012 (the Notes) to the purchasers named therein.  Banc of America Securities LLC acted as placement agent for
this offering.  The issuance and sale of the Notes by the Company, and the resale of the Notes by Banc of America
Securities LLC was made pursuant to one or more exemptions from the registration requirements of the Securities Act
of 1933.
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The Company used the proceeds from the sale of the Notes to repay the amounts outstanding under its $100 million
bridge loan facility established by an agreement (the Bridge Loan Agreement) dated as of September 30, 2005, among
the Company and the other parties thereto.  The Bridge Loan Agreement was entered into in connection with the
tender offer.  The Bridge Loan Agreement was terminated upon repayment.

The Notes are guaranteed by all of the Company�s existing and future direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries and are
secured by:

-

all of the Company�s present and future shares of capital stock of (or other ownership or profit interests in) each of its
present and future subsidiaries (limited, in the case of certain material first-tier foreign subsidiaries, to a pledge of
65% of the capital stock of such subsidiaries);

-

all of the Company�s and each of its domestic subsidiaries� present and future property and assets; and

-

all proceeds and products of the property and assets described above.

The Notes rank pari passu in right of payment with the Company�s obligations under its Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement and the obligations of the Company�s guarantor subsidiaries to guarantee the Company�s obligations under
the Note Purchase Agreement rank pari passu in right of payment with their guarantees in respect of the Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement.

Interest on the Notes will accrue at a floating rate per annum equal to LIBOR plus 1.65% for the applicable interest
period. Interest periods are defined as the three month period commencing on the closing date and each successive
three month period thereafter.  Interest on the Notes is payable quarterly in arrears on the last day of each interest
period.

Under the Note Purchase Agreement, the Company is subject to various covenants, including, among others, the
following:
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-

a requirement that the Company maintain, on a rolling four-quarter basis, a ratio of Consolidated Net Debt to
Consolidated EBITDA (each as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement) of not greater than 3.5 to 1.0;

-

a requirement that the Company maintain, on a rolling four-quarter basis, a ratio of Consolidated EBIT to
Consolidated Interest Expense (each as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement) of at least 2.5 to 1.0;

-

a requirement that the Company have, at all times, a ratio of (x) book accounts receivable of the Company and certain
subsidiaries to (y) Consolidated Net Debt (as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement) of at least 1.1 to 1.0;

-

a requirement that the Company not, at any time, permit the aggregate amount of all Priority Debt (as defined in the
Note Purchase Agreement) to exceed 10% of its Consolidated Net Worth (as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement)
as of the most recently ended fiscal quarter; and

-

limitations on, among other things, liens asset sales, dividends and stock redemptions, investments and acquisitions,
transactions with affiliates and consolidations and mergers.

The Note Purchase Agreement contains customary events of default.  If a default occurs and is continuing, the Notes
then outstanding shall (either automatically or by declaration of the holders of more than 50% of the principal amount
of Notes then outstanding, depending upon the circumstances resulting in the default) become immediately due and
payable.  If an event of default occurs and is continuing because the Company failed to pay principal, interest or other
amounts due and payable on the Notes, then any Note holder may declare all of the Notes held by it to be immediately
due and payable.
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On October 4, 2005, the Company borrowed $100 million under the Bridge Loan Agreement, which was repaid by
borrowings under the Note Purchase Agreement.  These borrowings were used to purchase shares of the Company�s
common stock pursuant to the tender offer and to pay related fees and expenses.

International credit facilities and other debt

As of September 30, 2005, the Company had $20.4 million capacity on international credit facilities and $6.5 million
outstanding under those facilities.  Borrowings under international bank lines of credit are generally renewed upon
expiration.  The notes payable to seller is composed of a note payable to the former owners of the Company�s
wholly-owned subsidiary in Thailand, which is payable in annual installments of $200,000 through 2008.  As of
September 30, 2005, the Company has no amounts outstanding under financed insurance premiums; however, the
Company may finance future insurance premiums as the Company�s insurance policies renew.  Financed software
licenses and maintenance are payable in quarterly installments of approximately $736,000 each through March 2007.
 Loans for financed vehicles are payable in monthly payments totaling approximately $339,000 through December
2010 and have implied interest rates averaging 6.6%.

Note 8 � Share repurchase program

On April 4, 2005, the Company�s Board of Directors adopted a stock repurchase program to repurchase up to $60
million in value of the Company�s outstanding common stock depending on market conditions and other factors with
an expiration date of August 4, 2005.  On May 31, 2005, the Board of Directors approved an increase in the maximum
dollar amount of shares to be repurchased from $60 million to $120 million and extended the expiration date to
September 28, 2005.  As of September 28, 2005, the Company has repurchased a total of 5.0 million shares at an
average price of $18.98 per share for approximately $94.3 million.

On August 29, 2005, the Company�s Board of Directors authorized a modified �Dutch Auction� self-tender offer to
purchase up to 9,615,000 shares (up to $250 million) of its common stock, representing approximately 20% of its
approximately 47.2 million outstanding shares as of August 24, 2005.  The tender offer commenced on Tuesday,
August 30, 2005 and expired on Wednesday, September 28, 2005.  In the tender offer, shareholders had the
opportunity to tender some or all of their shares at a price not less than $22.50 per share or more than $26.00 per
share, net to the seller in cash, without interest.

On October 4, 2005, the Company announced the final results of the tender offer.  An aggregate of 8,085,958 shares
were properly tendered and not withdrawn at or below a price of $26.00.  Because shareholders tendered less than
9,615,000 shares, there was no proration of tendered shares.  The Company financed the tender offer with the use of
cash on hand and borrowings of $196.0 million under both the new $300.0 million line of credit facility and the
$100.0 million bridge loan that was refinanced by the issuance of $100.0 million of floating rate senior secured notes
due in October 2012 (See Note 7).  As a result, EGL accepted for purchase and paid approximately $210.2 million for
all 8,085,958 shares at a price of $26.00 per share.  Any shares received in the tender offer that were not tendered
properly were returned to the tendering shareholders.  The shares purchased pursuant to the tender offer represented
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approximately 17.1% of EGL�s outstanding shares as of September 30, 2005.

Note 9 � Earnout payments

In connection with the Company�s acquisition of Miami International Forwarders in 2003 and the buyout of a minority
interest partner in Thailand in 2001, the Company made earnout payments totaling $4.2 million in the nine months
ended September 30, 2005.

Note 10 � Guarantees

The Company guarantees certain financial liabilities, the majority of which relate to the Company�s freight forwarding
operations.  The Company, in the normal course of business, is required to guarantee certain amounts related to
customs bonds and services received from airlines.  These types of guarantees are usual and customary in the freight
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forwarding industry.  The Company operates as a customs broker and prepares and files all formal documentation
required for clearance through customs agencies, obtains customs bonds, facilitates the payment of import duties on
behalf of the importer and arranges for payment of collect freight charges.  The Company also assists the importer in
obtaining the most advantageous commodity classifications, qualifying for duty drawback refunds and arranging for
surety bonds for importers.

The Company secures guarantees primarily by three methods:  a $75 million standby letter of credit subfacility (Note
7), surety bonds and security time deposits, which are restricted as to withdrawal for a specified timeframe and are
classified on the Company�s balance sheet as restricted cash.

The Company issues IATA (International Air Transportation Association) related guarantees, customs bonds and
other working capital credit line facilities issued in the normal course of business.  IATA-related guarantees and
customs bonds are issued to facilitate the movement and clearance of freight.  Working capital credit line facilities
include, but are not limited to, facilities associated with insurance requirements and certain potential tax obligations.
 Generally, facilities have one-year or two-year terms and are renewed upon expiration.  As of September 30, 2005,
total IATA-related guarantees, customs bonds and other working capital credit line facilities were approximately
$71.5 million.  Approximately $51.1 million of guarantees, customs bonds and borrowings against credit line facilities
were outstanding, including guarantees of the Company�s trade payables and accrued transportation costs and
borrowings against its international credit facilities of $16.7 million which were recorded as liabilities on the
Company�s consolidated balance sheet.

Note 11 � Contingencies

EEOC legal settlement

In December 1997, the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (�EEOC�) issued a Commissioner�s Charge
pursuant to Sections 706 and 707 of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (�Title VII�).  In the
Commissioner�s Charge, the EEOC charged the Company and certain of its subsidiaries with violations of Section 703
of Title VII, as amended, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, and the Equal Pay Act of 1963.

In May through July 2000, eight individuals filed suit against the Company in the United States District Court for the
Eastern District of Pennsylvania in Philadelphia, alleging gender, race and national origin discrimination, as well as
sexual harassment.  The individual plaintiffs sought to certify a class of approximately 1,000 of the Company�s current
and former employees and applicants.
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On December 29, 2000, the EEOC filed a Motion to Intervene in the Philadelphia litigation, which was granted by the
Court in Philadelphia on January 31, 2001.  In addition, the Philadelphia Court also granted the Company�s motion that
the case be transferred to the United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas � Houston Division where
the Company had previously initiated litigation against the EEOC due to what the Company believed to have been
inappropriate practices by the EEOC in the issuance of the Commissioner�s Charge and in the subsequent
investigation.

On October 2, 2001, the Company and the EEOC announced the filing of a Consent Decree settlement.  Under the
Consent Decree, the Company agreed to pay $8.5 million into a fund to compensate individuals who claim to have
experienced discrimination (�Settlement Fund�).  In addition, the Company agreed to contribute $500,000 to establish a
Leadership Development Program (�LDP�).  In entering the Consent Decree, the Company made no admission of
liability or wrongdoing.  The Consent Decree was approved by the District Court in Houston on October 1, 2001,
became effective on October 3, 2002 and expired on October 3, 2005.

The Claims administration process under the Consent Decree was completed by the Company and the EEOC in early
2005. Of the 2,073 claims received, only 203 were deemed to be eligible for a monetary distribution from the
Settlement Fund.  The total distribution amount for these 203 claims is approximately $903,000.  The Company and
the EEOC submitted a proposed agreement to the Court in February 2005 regarding disbursements of the excess funds
in the
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Settlement Fund.  On February 10, 2005 the Court entered an Order directing that the Company recapture $6.0 million
plus accrued interest from the Settlement Fund.  Release of these funds resulted in $6.0 million in income in the first
quarter of 2005.  The Court also approved the parties� agreement to transfer $1.4 million to the LDP.  From that
amount, the Company reimbursed itself $582,000 for corporate funds previously expended on LDP expenses as of
December 31, 2004.  The Court further approved the parties� agreement to retain $1.1 million in the Settlement Fund
for the payment of eligible claims.  

Notices were sent to all ineligible and eligible claimants who had forty-five days to accept a monetary distribution or
�opt out� of the Consent Decree settlement.  Through October 27, 2005, 174 eligible Claimants have been sent
settlement checks totaling approximately $808,000.  Only three Claimants have rejected awards and opted out of the
settlement.  Eligible claimants also had the option of objecting to an award, but to do so they must have notified the
Claims Administrator within thirty days of the date of their eligibility notice.  To date, all objections have been
resolved by agreement between the EEOC and the Company�s counsel.  If any funds remain in the Settlement Fund
after payment of all claims, the remainder shall be deposited in the LDP.

To the extent any of the individual plaintiffs or any other persons who have opted out of the settlement pursue
individual claims; the Company intends to continue to vigorously defend against their allegations.  The Company
currently expects to prevail in its defense of any remaining individual claims.  There can be no assurance as to what
amount of time it will take to resolve any other lawsuits and related issues or the degree of any adverse affect these
matters may have on the Company�s financial condition and results of operations.  A substantial settlement payment or
judgment could result in a significant decrease in the Company�s working capital and liquidity and recognition of a
loss in the Company�s consolidated statement of operations.

Other legal matters

In addition, the Company is party to routine litigation incidental to its business, which primarily involve other
employment matters or claims for goods lost or damaged in transit or improperly shipped.  Many of the other lawsuits
to which the Company is a party are covered by insurance and are being defended by the Company�s insurance
carriers.  The Company has established accruals for these other matters and it is management�s opinion that the
resolution of such litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the Company�s consolidated financial position.
 However, a substantial settlement payment or judgment in excess of the Company�s accruals could have a material
adverse effect on the Company�s consolidated results of operations or cash flows.

Fire damage

On January 9, 2005, the Company�s London (Thurrock) warehouse and all contents were destroyed by fire.  The
Company maintains insurance coverage for damaged property, business interruption and cargo losses with insurance
limits of $35 million for damaged property and business interruption and $10 million for cargo losses.  
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During the first quarter of 2005, the Company recorded a loss and recognized an insurance recovery of $721,000 for
property destroyed in the fire.  In February 2005, the Company received an interim payment on its property claim of
$673,000.  The Company incurred $1.2 million of pre-tax operating losses in the first quarter of 2005 as a result of the
fire.  A preliminary business interruption claim related to the fire has been submitted to our insurance carriers with a
$928,000 initial payment received in May 2005, of which $567,000, $163,000 and $198,000 are recorded in revenues,
personnel costs and other selling, general and administrative expenses, respectively, in the accompanying condensed
consolidated statement of operations.  In the first quarter of 2005, the Company recorded a liability of $6.5 million for
its estimated cargo losses due to customers and an insurance receivable of $6.5 million as the insurance recovery is
deemed probable.  As of September 30, 2005, $4.0 million of cargo claims have been settled under the Company�s
insurance policy.  An additional estimated $6.6 million of claims remain open of which $6.0 million is deemed
probable of recovery under the Company�s insurance policy.  The Company recorded a liability of $590,000 for the
estimated claims in excess of its insurance policy limits.  At September 30, 2005, a $6.0 million insurance receivable
and a $6.6 million insurance liability for these estimated cargo losses was included in the Company�s condensed
consolidated balance sheet.  
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However, existing claims could be settled in excess of the Company�s insurance limits, which could have a material
impact on its financial position, cash flows and results of operations.

Federal income tax audit

The Company�s U.S. federal income tax returns from fiscal years 2000 to 2001 are currently subject to examination by
the Internal Revenue Service (IRS).  On April 8, 2005, the Company received a Revenue Agent Report from the IRS
field examination team for which the Company was required to respond by May 16, 2005.  On May 16th, the
Company responded with a protest in response to the Agents Report contesting the proposed adjustments.  On June
8th, the IRS prepared a rebuttal report to the Company�s protest for which no issues were resolved and the IRS
examination team subsequently forwarded the case to the Appeals division of the IRS for resolution.  A formal initial
appeals conference has been scheduled for mid-November 2005.  The income tax returns that are under audit are the
income tax returns filed by EGL for fiscal years ended September 30, 2000, September 30, 2001, December 31, 2001,
and the final income tax return filed by Circle International Group, Inc., a subsidiary of EGL, for the fiscal year ended
October 2, 2000, when it was a separate company prior to the merger with EGL.  

Specifically, the IRS is proposing to disallow various merger transaction costs taken as tax deductions related to the
merger of EGL and Circle, and to allocate certain merger and selling, general and administrative expenses to all of its
foreign affiliates which were taken as tax deductions on the 2000 and 2001 fiscal return years for both EGL and
Circle.  The IRS is also proposing to disallow the deduction of various software research and development
expenditures that were taken as tax deductions on the 2000 and 2001 fiscal tax returns for EGL.

If the proposed adjustments were upheld, the Company would be required to pay a total amount of approximately $14
million in cash taxes, of which approximately $6.5 million would impact the consolidated statement of operations,
plus accrued interest of approximately $4.7 million through September 30, 2005.  No penalties have been proposed by
the IRS as part of this examination.  Interest will continue to accrue until the matters are resolved.  The Company
believes that the matters raised by the IRS were properly reported on its U.S. federal income tax returns in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations in effect during the tax periods involved and is challenging these adjustments
vigorously.  While the outcome of proceedings for these matters cannot be predicted with certainty, the Company
believes that its U.S. federal income tax returns were completed in accordance with applicable laws and regulations
and does not believe material adjustments to its tax returns are probable at this time.  However there is no assurance
that the final outcome of the future proceedings with the IRS will not result in material adjustments which would have
a material adverse impact on the Company�s results of operations, financial position and cash flows.

Note 12 � Employee benefit plans

Certain of our international subsidiaries sponsor defined benefit pension plans covering certain full-time employees.
 Benefits are based on the employee�s years of service and compensation.  The Company�s plans are funded in
conformity with the funding requirements of applicable government regulations of the country in which the plans are
located.  These foreign plans are not subject to the United States Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.
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 Components of compensation expense consisted of the following (in thousands):
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Nine Months Ended

September 30,

Three Months Ended

September 30,
2005 2004 2005 2004

Net benefit cost for defined benefit
plans:

Service cost

$

1,397

$

1,387

$

232

$

227
Interest cost 1,127 1,226 1 222
Expected return on plan assets (1,116) (1,147) (10) (212)
Amortization of prior service cost 179 246 (8) 30
Net pension enhancement and
curtailment/
settlement expense (3) 40 (2) 3

Net benefit cost for defined benefit
plans

$

1,584

$

1,752

$

213

$

270

Contributions to benefit plans

$

2,125

$

2,016

$

844

$

282

Estimated contributions to the defined benefit plans for the period of October 1 to December 31, 2005 are
approximately $501,000.

Note 13 � Related party transactions

Aircraft usage payments

In conjunction with the Company�s business activities prior to January 2005, the Company periodically utilized aircraft
owned by entities controlled by James R. Crane, the Company�s Chief Executive Officer.  The Company was charged
for actual usage of the plane on an hourly basis and billed on a periodic basis.  During the three and nine months

Edgar Filing: EGL INC - Form 10-Q

42



ended September 30, 2004, the Company reimbursed the entities controlled by Mr. Crane approximately $52,000 and
$863,000, respectively, for hourly usage of the plane.  In January 2005, the Company purchased from an unrelated
third party an aircraft that was previously leased by an entity controlled by Mr. Crane for $12.5 million.  The
Company now uses its own airplane for business travel, eliminating the use of Mr. Crane�s aircraft and reimbursement
thereof.  

On July 18, 2005, the Compensation Committee of the Company�s Board of Directors approved, in lieu of incremental
cash compensation, an arrangement to provide Mr. Crane, or his designees, with up to an aggregate of 150 hours per
year of personal use of the Company�s aircraft without reimbursement by Mr. Crane.  The Company intends to include
in Mr. Crane�s taxable income each year the amount required by then-current U.S. federal income tax regulations.  On
August 5, 2005, the Board of Directors of the Company approved, in lieu of additional director cash compensation
that would make the existing consideration package more competitive, an arrangement to provide the independent
members of the Board of Directors (the Directors) with limited personal usage of the Company�s aircraft, without
reimbursement by the Directors.  Personal usage of the aircraft by the Directors is subject to availability, with priority
given to the Company�s usage, and the cumulative number of hours allowed for all Directors may not exceed 100
hours per year. The Company will record the number of hours utilized by each Director and include in such Director�s
yearly taxable income the amount required by then current U.S. federal income tax regulations.

Shared employees

Certain of the Company�s employees also perform services for unaffiliated companies owned by Mr. Crane.  The
Company is reimbursed for these services based upon an allocation percentage of total salaries agreed to by the
Company and Mr. Crane.  During the nine months ended September 30, 2005 and 2004, the Company was reimbursed
$230,000 and $95,000, respectively.  The Company received reimbursements of $62,000 for the quarter ended
September 30, 2005.  The amount billed but not received as of September 30, 2005 was $4,000 and is included in
other receivables on the consolidated balance sheets.
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EGL, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

Note 14 � Business Segment Information

The Company is organized functionally in geographic operating segments.  Accordingly, management focuses its
attention on revenues, net revenues, income before taxes, identifiable assets, capital expenditures and depreciation and
amortization in each of these geographical divisions when evaluating the effectiveness of geographic management.
 During the second quarter of 2005, the Company�s India operations were transferred from the Europe, Middle East
and Africa division to the Asia and South Pacific division.  The financial information regarding the Company�s
operations by geographic division has been revised to reflect this change for all periods presented.

Financial information regarding the Company�s operations by geographic division for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2005 and 2004 are as follows (in thousands):

North
America

South
America

Europe,
Middle East
& Africa

Asia &
South
Pacific Eliminations

Total
Reportable
Segments

Nine months ended
September 30, 2005:

Total revenues

$

1,032,458

$

78,589

$

478,496

$

723,463

$

(51,579)

$

2,261,427
Transfers between divisions (17,107) (4,387) (14,036) (16,049) 51,579 -

Revenues from customers

$

1,015,351

$

74,202

$

464,460

$

707,414

$

-

$

2,261,427

Total net revenues

$

420,785

$

20,237

$

147,718

$

108,148

$

-

$

696,888

Intercompany (profits)
losses 1,480 (2,394) (4,068)

$

4,982 - -

Net revenues

$

422,265

$

17,843

$

143,650

$

113,130

$

-

$

696,888
Income before taxes $ $ $ $ $
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46,952 1,359 4,077 20,346 72,734

Capital expenditures

$

14,656

$

300

$

1,654

$

3,210

$

19,820
Depreciation and
amortization
expense

$

15,640

$

461

$

3,218

$

3,194

$

22,513

Nine months ended
September 30, 2004:

Total revenues

$

952,867

$

69,823

$

420,496

$

547,620

$

(49,521)

$

1,941,285
Transfers between divisions (16,258) (4,336) (13,988) (14,939) 49,521 -

Revenues from customers

$

936,609

$

65,487

$

406,508

$

532,681

$

-

$

1,941,285

Total net revenues

$

393,067

$

14,492

$

136,773

$

91,405

$

-

$

635,737
Intercompany (profits)
losses 4,847 (2,358) (6,223) 3,734 - -

Net revenues

$

397,914

$

12,134

$

130,550

$

95,139

$

-

$

635,737

Income (loss) before taxes

$

30,487

$

1,405

$

2,398

$

19,190

$

53,480

Capital expenditures

$

24,510

$

497

$

3,356

$

2,855

$

31,218
Depreciation and
amortization
expense

$

15,444

$

342

$

4,012

$

3,138

$

22,936
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EGL, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

North
America

South
America

Europe,
Middle East
& Africa

Asia &
South
Pacific Eliminations

Total
Reportable
Segments

Three months ended
September 30, 2005:

Total revenues

$

357,800

$

24,094

$

150,247

$

265,777

$

(18,411)

$

779,507
Transfers between divisions (6,330) (1,551) (4,792) (5,738) 18,411 -

Revenues from customers

$

351,470

$

22,543

$

145,455

$

260,039

$

-

$

779,507

Total net revenues

$

148,783

$

7,556

$

52,155

$

38,466

$

-

$

246,960

Intercompany (profits)
losses (370) (914) (1,296)

$

2,580 - -

Net revenues

$

148,413

$

6,642

$

50,859

$

41,046

$

-

$

246,960

Income before taxes

$

20,106

$

531

$

6,023

$

7,351

$

34,011

Capital expenditures

$

5,499

$

78

$

586

$

1,043

$

7,206
Depreciation and
amortization
expense

$

5,474

$

169

$

1,080

$

1,107

$

7,830

Three months ended
September 30, 2004:
Total revenues $ $ $ $ $ $
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344,502 29,319 151,750 211,331 (17,485) 719,417
Transfers between divisions (5,691) (1,433) (4,886) (5,475) 17,485 -

Revenues from customers

$

338,811

$

27,886

$

146,864

$

205,856

$

-

$

719,417

Total net revenues

$

140,018

$

5,754

$

46,945

$

33,208

$

-

$

225,925
Intercompany (profits)
losses 1,492 (502) (2,097) 1,107 - -

Net revenues

$

141,510

$

5,252

$

44,848

$

34,315

$

-

$

225,925

Income (loss) before taxes

$

14,231

$

657

$

(476)

$

7,035

$

21,447

Capital expenditures

$

7,839

$

143

$

648

$

808

$

9,438
Depreciation and
amortization
expense

$

5,244

$

114

$

1,243

$

1,092

$

7,693

Revenues from transfers between divisions represent approximate amounts that would be charged if an unaffiliated
company provided the services.  Revenues and expenses for geographic divisions include 100 percent of amounts for
unconsolidated affiliates directly involved in freight forwarding activities.  Total divisional revenues are reconciled
with total consolidated revenues by eliminating inter-divisional revenues and revenues and expenses for
unconsolidated affiliates.  Income (loss) before taxes includes profits (losses) on intercompany transactions.  

Performance measurement and resource allocation for the reportable segments are based on many factors.  The
primary financial measures used by management to evaluate the operating performance of the Company�s segments
include the revenues, costs and expenses directly controlled by each reportable segment and exclude the following:

-

certain costs related to general corporate functions and

-

interest and certain other miscellaneous nonoperating income and expenses not directly used in assessing the
performance of the operating segments.
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The Company does not maintain a corporate balance sheet, therefore segment asset information monitored by
management includes general corporate assets, as applicable, in the respective operating segments.
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EGL, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

The reconciliation between income before taxes, capital expenditures and depreciation and amortization for reportable
segments to consolidated amounts is as follows (in thousands):

Nine Months Ended

September 30,

Three Months Ended

September 30,
2005 2004 2005 2004

Income before taxes for reportable
segments

$

72,734

$

53,480

$

34,011

$

21,447
Interest, corporate administrative
expenses
and other miscellaneous
nonoperating
income (expense) (2,722) 8,495 (587) 5,499

Income before taxes

$

70,012

$

61,975

$

33,424

$

26,946

Capital expenditures for reportable
segments

$

19,820

$

31,218

$

7,206

$

9,438
Capital expenditures not allocated to
segments 12,803 230 (14) 74

Capital expenditures

$

32,623

$

31,448

$

7,192

$

9,512

Depreciation and amortization for
reportable
segments

$

22,513

$

22,936

$

7,830

$

7,693
Depreciation and amortization not
allocated to
segments 4,347 2,976 1,247 1,189

Depreciation and amortization

$

26,860

$

25,912

$

9,077

$

8,882
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The Company�s identifiable assets by geographic division are summarized below (in thousands):

North
America

South
America

Europe,
Middle
East &
Africa

Asia &
South Pacific Consolidated

Balance at September 30, 2005

$

590,098

$

36,793

$

249,386

$

215,696

$

1,091,973

Balance at December 31, 2004

$

612,072

$

38,900

$

242,953

$

200,938

$

1,094,863
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EGL, INC.

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following is management�s discussion and analysis of certain significant factors that have affected selected aspects
of the Company�s financial position and operating results during the periods included in the accompanying unaudited
condensed consolidated financial statements.  This discussion should be read in conjunction with the condensed
consolidated financial statements as of and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005 and the
discussion under �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations� in the
annual audited financial statements included in the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004 (File No. 0-27288).

Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements

We restated our historical financial statements for the first three quarters of 2004 for errors related to (1) recognition
of straight-line rent expense when the lease term in a real estate operating lease contains a period when there are free
or reduced rents (commonly referred to as �rent holidays�) and scheduled rent increases, (2) reconciliation of various
account balances and (3) certain reclassification adjustments.  See note 2 of our 2004 Form 10-K for complete
disclosures relating to this restatement of the Company�s financial statements.  All applicable amounts relating to the
restatement have been reflected in the condensed consolidated financial statements and notes to the condensed
consolidated financial statements included in this report.

Overview

The primary macroeconomic growth indicators of our business include general growth in the economy, international
trade, particularly out of Asia, the level of high-tech spending and the increase in outsourcing of logistics projects.
 Business drivers over which we have some control and focus on internally are our ability to: (1) link transportation
services with our logistics services, (2) cross-sell our services to existing and prospective customers and (3)
collaborate with our customers to provide flexible, cost-effective and profitable supply chain solutions.

We achieved gross revenues of $780 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2005, an 8.5% increase over gross
revenues of $719 million in the third quarter of 2004.  Our financial position was strengthened by higher gross and net
revenues in the third quarter of 2005.  Despite growth in business, we remain committed to leveraging our
infrastructure by containing our operating expenses and improving our yield management in 2005.

Our results of operations, cash flows and financial position for the third quarter of 2005 reflect, among other things,
the following:

-

increase in net revenue margins with ocean freight forwarding and logistics products;
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-

higher effective tax rate due to tax operating losses in certain foreign countries; and

-

improved working capital management to increase cash flows from operating activities.

Increase in net revenue margins.  Net revenue margins increased to 31.7% in the third quarter of 2005 compared to
31.4% in the third quarter of 2004, reflecting increases in margins in the ocean freight forwarding and logistics
products.  Air freight forwarding margin deterioration is due to under-recovered fuel costs and compressed yields
between Asia and the U.S.  Ocean forwarding margins increased due to improved margins on ocean exports out of
North America due to higher capacity introduced by carriers.  Logistics margins have improved due to lower
warehouse costs primarily in Europe.

Income tax.  The effective tax rate for the third quarter of 2005 was 42.5%, due to tax operating losses in certain
foreign countries with out any tax loss carryforward benefit recorded for those countries.
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EGL, INC.

MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS � (CONTINUED)

Cash flows from operations.  Cash flows from operations during the three months ended September 30, 2005 was
$77.3 million, reflecting improved management of our working capital, particularly through continued focus on our
collection of trade receivables.

Our organization continues to focus on improving yields through strong management of purchased transportation
costs and fuel surcharges and improving the results in our European operations.

Results of Operations

Nine Months Ended September 30,
2005 2004

(Restated)
% of Total % of Total

Amount Revenues Amount Revenues
(in thousands, except percentages)

Revenues:

Air freight forwarding

$

1,469,947 65.0

$

1,264,323 65.1
Ocean freight forwarding 329,076 14.6 279,784 14.5
Customs brokerage and other 462,404 20.4 397,178 20.4

Revenues

$

2,261,427 100.0

$

1,941,285 100.0
% of % of

Amount Revenues Amount Revenues
Net revenues:

Air freight forwarding

$

407,462 27.7

$

374,284 29.6
Ocean freight forwarding 67,516 20.5 57,129 20.4
Customs brokerage and other 221,910 48.0 204,324 51.4
Net revenues $ 30.8 $ 32.7
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696,888 635,737
% of Net % of Net
Revenues Revenues

Operating expenses:
Personnel costs 390,473 56.0 356,336 56.0
Other selling, general and
administrative
expenses 244,620 35.1 226,368 35.6
EEOC legal settlement (5,975) (0.8) - -
Operating income 67,770 9.7 53,033 8.4
Nonoperating income, net 2,242 0.3 8,942 1.4
Income before provision for
income taxes 70,012 10.0 61,975 9.8
Provision for income taxes 30,913 4.4 23,987 3.8

Net income

$

39,099 5.6

$

37,988 6.0

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2005 Compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2004

Revenues increased $320.1 million, or 16.5%, to $2,261.4 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2005
compared to $1,941.3 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2004 due to increases in all product lines.  Net
revenues, which represent revenues less freight transportation costs, increased $61.2 million, or 9.6%, to $696.9
million in the nine months ended September 30, 2005 compared to $635.7 million in the nine months ended
September 30, 2004 due to significant increases in all product lines across all geographic areas.  Net revenue margins
of 30.8% for the nine
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EGL, INC.

MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS � (CONTINUED)

months ended September 30, 2005 declined from 32.7 for the nine months ended September 30, 2004 reflecting the
rising fuel costs and higher rate of growth in the lower margin (but higher net revenue per shipment) international air
and ocean products.

Air freight forwarding revenues.  Air freight forwarding revenues increased $205.6 million, or 16.3%, to $1,469.9
million in the nine months ended September 30, 2005 compared to $1,264.3 million in the nine months ended
September 30, 2004 primarily due to volume increases in Asia Pacific, where we continue to see large increases in
both volumes and weights shipped, and volume increases in North America.  

Air freight forwarding net revenues increased $33.2 million, or 8.9%, to $407.5 million in the nine months ended
September 30, 2005 compared to $374.3 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2004.  Air freight
forwarding margins decreased to 27.7% for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 compared to 29.6% for the
nine months ended September 30, 2004, primarily due to declines in North America and Asia Pacific due to higher
fuel costs not absorbed by our customers.

Ocean freight forwarding revenues.  Ocean freight forwarding revenues increased $49.3 million, or 17.6%, to $329.1
million in the nine months ended September 30, 2005 compared to $279.8 million in the nine months ended
September 30, 2004.  The increase in revenues was due principally to volume increases in all geographic divisions,
especially in Asia Pacific and North America, as a result of our increased focus on the ocean market and our
customers� continued shift toward a lower cost deferred product.  

Ocean freight forwarding net revenues increased $10.4 million, or 18.2%, to $67.5 million in the nine months ended
September 30, 2005 compared to $57.1 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2004, primarily due to
increases in Asia Pacific, North America and Europe/Middle East.  Ocean freight forwarding margins increased
slightly to 20.5% in the nine months ended September 30, 2005 compared to 20.4% in the nine months ended
September 30, 2004.  Ocean freight forwarding margins steadily declined throughout 2004 due to higher carrier rates
and increased volumes of business in the competitive transpacific east bound and Asia to Europe tradelanes.  Margins
have begun to increase in 2005 due to improved margins on ocean exports out of North America due to higher
capacity introduced by carriers.

Customs brokerage and other revenues.  Customs brokerage and other revenues, which include warehousing,
distribution and other logistics services, increased $65.2 million, or 16.4%, to $462.4 million in the nine months ended
September 30, 2005 compared to $397.2 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2004.  Customs brokerage
revenues increased primarily due to growth in Europe/Middle East and North America trade activity.  Warehousing
and logistics revenues increased due to growth in all geographic divisions.  

Customs brokerage and other net revenues increased by $17.6 million, or 8.6%, to $221.9 million in the nine months
ended September 30, 2005 compared to $204.3 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2004.  Customs
brokerage and other margins, however, decreased to 48.0% for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 compared
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to 51.4% for the nine months ended September 30, 2004 primarily due to lower margins in Europe/Middle East and
North America resulting from termination or completion of several high margin projects.

Personnel costs.  Personnel costs include all compensation expenses, including those relating to sales commissions
and salaries and to headquarters employees and executive officers.  Personnel costs increased $34.2 million, or 9.6%,
to $390.5 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2005 compared to $356.3 million in the nine months ended
September 30, 2004.  The increase in personnel costs was due primarily to increased hiring as a result of the increase
in business activity.  In addition, during the nine months ended September 30, 2005, we recorded charges of $1.6
million for workforce reductions, mainly in certain European and U.S. locations.  We have historically maintained
incentive bonus, profit sharing and sales commission compensation plans to reward attainment of targets.  For 2005,
we introduced incentive bonus and profit sharing compensation plans that include a combination of target
achievements related to total company financial performance, business unit financial performance and individual
goals and objectives.  The changes in the plans have resulted in a lower level of incentive compensation expense in
2005.  As a percentage of
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EGL, INC.

MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS � (CONTINUED)

net revenues, personnel costs were 56.0% in the nine months ended September 30, 2005 and September 30, 2004.
 Our average headcount during the nine months ended September 30, 2005, increased only 10.0% compared to a
16.5% increase in gross revenues during the same period.

Other selling, general and administrative expenses.  Other selling, general and administrative expenses increased
$18.2 million, or 8.0%, to $244.6 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2005 compared to $226.4 million in
the nine months ended September 30, 2004.  As a percentage of net revenues, other selling, general and administrative
expenses decreased to 35.1% for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 compared to 35.6% for the same period
in 2004.  The increase is due primarily to increased fees for the continued deployment of our Vision suite of
technologies � freight forwarding, accounting and human resources systems � as well as increased accounting and tax
fees, offset by a decrease in facility expense.  The decrease in facility expense in the nine months ended September 30,
2005 is primarily due to the absence of a $5.8 million charge for idle facilities, including the subleasing of an excess
facility in Miami, that was recorded in the nine months ended September 30, 2004.

EEOC legal settlement.  During the nine months ended September 30, 2005, we recaptured $6.0 million of the $8.5
million previously held in a fund to resolve potential claims in connection with a 2001 consent decree with the EEOC,
resulting primarily from a significantly lower number of qualified claimants than originally projected.

Nonoperating income (expense), net.  For the nine months ended September 30, 2005, nonoperating income, net was
$2.2 million compared to nonoperating income, net of $8.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2004.
 The $6.7 million change is due primarily to $12.1 million in gains on the sale of our investments in Miami Air and
TDS Logistics, Inc. (TDS) in the second and third quarters of 2004 and a $1.8 million decrease in income from
affiliates, offset by a $2.0 million increase in foreign exchange gains due to a strengthening of the U.S. dollar, a $4.4
million decrease in interest expense and a $613,000 increase in interest income.

Effective tax rate.  The effective income tax rate for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 was 44.2% compared
to 38.7% for the nine months ended September 30, 2004.  The higher tax rate was due primarily to deferred tax
benefits that will not be recognized for certain European jurisdictions that are in loss positions for 2005.
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MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS � (CONTINUED)

Results of Operations

Three Months Ended September 30,
2005 2004

(Restated)
% of Total % of Total

Amount Revenues Amount Revenues
(in thousands, except percentages)

Revenues:

Air freight forwarding

$

516,236 66.2

$

468,629 65.1
Ocean freight forwarding 108,868 14.0 110,753 15.4
Customs brokerage and other 154,403 19.8 140,035 19.5

Revenues

$

779,507 100.0

$

719,417 100.0
% of % of

Revenues Revenues
Net revenues:

Air freight forwarding

$

145,397 28.2

$

135,513 28.9
Ocean freight forwarding 23,224 21.3 21,508 19.4
Customs brokerage and other 78,339 50.7 68,904 49.2

Net revenues

$

246,960 31.7 225,925 31.4
% of Net % of Net
Revenues Revenues

Operating expenses:
Personnel costs 129,349 52.4 126,555 56.0
Other selling, general and 84,567 34.2 75,545 33.5
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administrative
expenses
Operating income 33,044 13.4 23,825 10.5
Nonoperating income, net 380 0.1 3,121 1.4
Income before provision for income
taxes 33,424 13.5 26,946 11.9
Provision for income taxes 14,192 5.7 10,371 4.6

Net income

$

19,232 7.8

$

16,575 7.3

Three Months Ended September 30, 2005 Compared To Three Months Ended September 30, 2004

Revenues increased $60.1 million, or 8.4%, to $779.5 million in the three months ended September 30, 2005
compared to $719.4 million in the three months ended September 30, 2004 due to increases in air freight forwarding
and customs brokerage and other revenues.  Net revenues, which represent revenues less freight transportation costs,
increased $21.1 million, or 9.3%, to $247.0 million in the three months ended September 30, 2005 compared to
$225.9 million in the three months ended September 30, 2004 primarily due to increases in both airfreight forwarding
and customs brokerage and other net revenues followed by modest increases in ocean freight forwarding net revenues.
 Net revenue margins of 31.7% for the three months ended September 30, 2005 increased from 31.4% in the third
quarter of 2004 on improvements in ocean freight forwarding margins and logistics margins.

Air freight forwarding revenues.  Air freight forwarding revenues increased $47.6 million, or 10.2%, to $516.2 million
in the three months ended September 30, 2005 compared to $468.6 million in the three months ended September 30,
2004 primarily due to volume increases in Asia Pacific, where we continue to see increases in both volumes and
weights shipped, and volume increases in North America.
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MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS � (CONTINUED)

Air freight forwarding net revenues increased $9.9 million, or 7.3%, to $145.4 million in the three months ended
September 30, 2005 compared to $135.5 million in the three months ended September 30, 2004.  Air freight
forwarding margins decreased to 28.2% for the three months ended September 30, 2005 compared to 28.9% for the
three months ended September 30, 2004, primarily due to increased fuel costs not absorbed by our customers.

Ocean freight forwarding revenues.  Ocean freight forwarding revenues decreased $1.9 million, or 1.7%, to $108.9
million in the three months ended September 30, 2005 compared to $110.8 million in the three months ended
September 30, 2004.  The decrease in revenues was due principally to volume decreases in Europe/Middle East and
South America partially offset by increases in Asia Pacific and in North America.

Ocean freight forwarding net revenues increased $1.7 million, or 7.9%, to $23.2 million in the three months ended
September 30, 2005 compared to $21.5 million in the three months ended September 30, 2004 primarily due to
increases in Asia Pacific and North America.  Ocean forwarding margins increased to 21.3% in the three months
ended September 30, 2005 compared to 19.4% in the three months ended September 30, 2004 due primarily to
improved margins on ocean exports out of North America due to higher capacity introduced by carriers.

Customs brokerage and other revenues.  Customs brokerage and other revenues, which include warehousing,
distribution and other logistics services, increased $14.4 million, or 10.3%, to $154.4 million in the three months
ended September 30, 2005 compared to $140.0 million in the three months ended September 30, 2004.  Customs
brokerage revenues increased primarily due to growth in North America trade activity.  Warehousing and logistics
revenues increased due to growth in Europe/Middle East and Asia Pacific.

Customs brokerage and other net revenues increased by $9.4 million, or 13.6%, to $78.3 million in the three months
ended September 30, 2005 compared to $68.9 million in the three months ended September 30, 2004.  Customs
brokerage and other margins increased to 50.7% for the three months ended September 30, 2005 compared to 49.2%
for the three months ended September 30, 2004, primarily due to decreased warehousing costs in Asia Pacific and
Europe.

Personnel costs.  Personnel costs include all compensation expenses, including those relating to sales commissions
and salaries and to headquarters employees and executive officers.  Personnel costs increased $2.7 million, or 2.1%, to
$129.3 million in the three months ended September 30, 2005 compared to $126.6 million in the three months ended
September 30, 2004.  The increase in personnel costs was primarily due to increased hiring as a result of increased
business activity, offset by a decrease in incentive compensation expense.  We have historically maintained incentive
bonus, profit sharing and sales commission compensation plans to reward attainment of targets.  For 2005, we
introduced incentive bonus and profit sharing compensation plans which include a combination of target achievements
related to total company financial performance, business unit financial performance and individual goals and
objectives.  The change in the plans resulted in a lower level of incentive compensation expense in the third quarter of
2005.  As a percentage of net revenues, personnel costs were 52.4% in the three months ended September 30, 2005
compared to 56.0% in the three months ended September 30, 2004.  
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Other selling, general and administrative expenses.  Other selling, general and administrative expenses increased $9.1
million, or 12.1%, to $84.6 million in the three months ended September 30, 2005 compared to $75.5 million in the
three months ended September 30, 2004.  As a percentage of net revenues, other selling, general and administrative
expenses were 34.2% in the three months ended September 30, 2005 compared to 33.5% in the three months ended
September 30, 2004.  The increase is due primarily to increased fees for the continued deployment of our Vision suite
of technologies � freight forwarding, accounting and human resources systems � as well as increased accounting and tax
fees and communications costs.

Nonoperating income (expense), net.  For the three months ended September 30, 2005, nonoperating income, net, was
$380,000 compared to nonoperating income, net of $3.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2004.  The
$2.7 million change was due primarily to a $5.4 million gain on the sale of our investment in TDS in the third quarter
of 2004, offset by a $603,000 increase in foreign exchange gains due to a strengthening of the U.S. dollar, a $1.4
million decrease in interest expense and a $190,000 increase in interest income, and a $387,000 increase in income
from
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affiliates for the three months ended September 30, 2005 as compared to the three months ended September 30, 2004.
 Loss from affiliates was $22,000 in the third quarter of 2005 compared to $409,000 in the third quarter of 2004.

Effective tax rate.  The effective tax rate for the three months ended September 30, 2005 was 42.5% compared to
38.5% in the third quarter of 2004.  The higher tax rate was due primarily to deferred tax benefits that will not be
recognized for certain European jurisdictions that are in expected loss positions for 2005.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

General

Our ability to satisfy our debt obligations, fund working capital and make capital expenditures depends upon our
future performance, which is subject to general economic conditions and other factors, some of which are beyond our
control.  If we achieve significant near-term revenue growth, we may experience a need for increased working capital
financing as a result of the difference between our collection cycles and the timing of our payments to vendors.
 Historically, we have generated higher cash flow from operations in the first half of the year than the second half of
the year, reflecting the seasonality of our business.

We make significant disbursements on behalf of our customers for transportation costs (primarily ocean) and customs
duties for which the customer is the primary obligor.  The billings to customers for these disbursements, which are
several times the amount of revenues and fees derived from these transactions, are not recorded as revenues and
expense on our statement of operations; rather, they are reflected in our trade receivables and trade payables.  Growth
in the level of this activity or lengthening of the period of time between incurring these costs and being reimbursed by
our customers for these costs may negatively affect our liquidity.

As primarily a non-asset based freight forwarder, we do not have the significant capital expenditures that would be
required of an asset based forwarder.  We believe our capital expenditures for 2005 will be in the range of $38 to $42
million, with a range of $15 to $20 million expected on information systems expenditures.  Our capital expenditures
for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, were $32.6 million, including $12.5 million for the purchase of a
corporate plane.  In addition, on April 4, 2005 our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $60 million,
depending on market conditions and other factors, of our outstanding common stock in connection with a stock
repurchase program.  On May 31, 2005, the Board of Directors extended the stock repurchase program to September
28, 2005 and authorized the repurchase of an additional $60 million of our common stock (resulting in a total of $120
million).  As of September 28, 2005, we had repurchased 5.0 million shares of our outstanding common stock at an
average price of $18.98 per share or $94.3 million in total.

On August 29, 2005, our Board of Directors authorized a modified �Dutch Auction� self-tender offer to purchase up to
9,615,000 shares (up to $250 million) of our common stock.  The tender offer commenced on Tuesday, August 30,
2005 and expired on Wednesday, September 28, 2005.  In the tender offer, shareholders had the opportunity to tender
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some or all of their shares at a price not less than $22.50 per share or more than $26.00 per share, net to the seller in
cash, without interest.  

On October 4, 2005, we announced the final results of the tender offer.  An aggregate of 8,085,958 shares were
properly tendered and not withdrawn at or below a price of $26.00.  Because shareholders tendered less than
9,615,000 shares, there was no proration of tendered shares.  As a result, we accepted for purchase and paid
approximately $210.2 million for all 8,085,958 shares at a price of $26.00 per share.  Any shares received in the
tender offer that were not tendered properly were returned to the tendering shareholders.  The shares purchased
pursuant to the tender offer represented approximately 17.1% of our outstanding shares as of September 30, 2005.

Based on current plans, we believe that our existing capital resources, including $130.9 million of cash and cash
equivalents and $278.5 million of available borrowing capacity on our credit facility, will be sufficient to meet
working capital requirements through September 30, 2006.  However, future changes in our business could cause us to
consume
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available resources before that time.  Additionally, funds may not be available when needed and even if available,
additional funds may be raised through financing arrangements and/or the issuance of preferred or common stock or
convertible securities on terms and prices significantly more favorable than those of the currently outstanding
common stock, which could have the effect of diluting or adversely affecting the holdings or rights of our existing
stockholders.  We cannot provide assurance that additional financing will be available to us on acceptable terms, or at
all.  If adequate funds are unavailable, we may be required to delay, scale back or eliminate some of our operating
activities, including, without limitation, the timing and extent of our marketing programs, and the extent and timing of
hiring additional personnel.

Cash flows from operating activities.  Net cash provided by operating activities was $170.0 million in the nine months
ended September 30, 2005 compared to $41.7 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2004.  The increase in
the nine months ended September 30, 2005 was due primarily to a $93.0 million net increase in cash from changes in
working capital for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 compared to a $15.2 million net decrease in cash from
changes in working capital for the nine months ended September 30, 2004.  The positive working capital cash flow in
the third quarter of 2005 was due to a decrease in trade receivables resulting from continued focus on timely collection
of our balances and an increase in trade payables from management of vendor payments.  Additionally during the nine
months ended September 30, 2005, $5.0 million was transferred from restricted cash primarily as a result of the U.S.
District Court order granting the recapture of $6.0 million of the Settlement Fund.

Cash flows from investing activities.  Net cash used in investing activities in the nine months ended September 30,
2005 was $33.2 million compared to net cash provided of $2.6 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2004.
 We incurred capital expenditures of $32.6 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2005, as compared to
$31.4 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2004.  $12.5 million of the capital expenditures in 2005
relate to the purchase of a corporate plane.  In connection with our acquisition of Miami International Forwarders in
2003 and the buyout of a minority interest partner in Thailand in 2001, we made earnout payments totaling $4.2
million and $3.3 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  Additionally, in 2004,
we sold our investment in Miami Air International to an unrelated party for approximately $6.7 million in cash and
our investment in TDS for approximately $45.3 million in cash.  We also acquired a 49% interest in our subsidiaries
in France, Spain and Portugal for a purchase price of approximately $16.2 million in cash.  

Cash flows from financing activities.  Net cash used in financing activities in the nine months ended September 30,
2005 was $96.7 million compared to $40.2 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2004.  During the nine
months ended September 30, 2005, we repurchased approximately 5.0 million shares or our commons stock for $94.3
million in cash compared to 3.4 million shares of our common stock for $59.1 million in cash that was repurchased
and retired in the nine months ended September 30, 2004.  Net repayment of debt was $4.8 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2005 compared to net issuance of debt of $2.2 million in the nine months ended
September 30, 2004.  We received $6.2 million in proceeds from the exercise of approximately 337,000 stock options
in the nine months ended September 30, 2005 compared to $22.9 million in proceeds from the exercise of
approximately 1.2 million stock options in the nine months ended September 30, 2004.  Repayment of capital leases
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and software maintenance was $3.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 compared to repayment of
capital leases, software maintenance and financed insurance premiums of $5.4 million in the nine months ended
September 30, 2004.

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement

We entered into an agreement dated as of September 30, 2005 establishing a new $300 million, senior secured
revolving credit facility (the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement).  The Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement amends and restates our existing revolving credit agreement dated as of September 15, 2004, as previously
amended (the Existing Credit Agreement).  The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement is with a syndicate of 13
financial institutions with Bank of America, N.A., as lender and administrative agent and matures on September 30,
2010.  
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We may use borrowings under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement for working capital, capital expenditures
and other lawful corporate purposes, to make permitted acquisitions and investments, to pay dividends and to
repurchase our common stock.  

Amounts borrowed under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement are guaranteed by all of our existing and
future direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries and secured equally and ratably by:

-

all of our present and future shares of capital stock of (or other ownership or profit interests in) each of our present and
future subsidiaries (limited, in the case of certain material first-tier foreign subsidiaries, to a pledge of 65% of the
capital stock of such subsidiaries);

-

all of our and each of our domestic subsidiaries� present and future property and assets; and

-

all proceeds and products of the property and assets described above.

Loans under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement will bear interest initially at a rate per annum equal to
either, at our option, (1) LIBOR plus 1.25% or (2) the Base Rate (defined as the higher of Bank of America, N.A.�s
prime rate or 0.50% over the Federal Funds rate).  In addition, we are required to pay a commitment fee of 0.30% on
the undrawn amounts under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement.  Interest rates and commitment fees under
the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement are subject to increase or decrease as a function of the ratio of our
Consolidated Net Funded Indebtedness to Consolidated EBITDA (each as defined in the Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement).  We may select interest periods of one, two, three or six months for LIBOR loans, subject to
availability.  Interest will be payable at the end of the selected interest period, but no less frequently than quarterly.

Under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, we are subject to various covenants, including, among others,
the following:
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-

a requirement that we maintain, on a rolling four-quarter basis, a ratio of Consolidated Net Funded Indebtedness to
Consolidated EBITDA (each as defined in the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement) of not greater than 3.5 to 1.0
through December 31, 2006, and decreasing to 3.0 to 1.0 thereafter;

-

a requirement that, on a rolling four-quarter basis, we have a ratio of Consolidated EBIT to Consolidated Interest
Charges (each as defined in the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement) of at least 2.5 to 1.0 through December 31,
2006, and increasing to 3.0 to 1.0 thereafter;

-

a requirement that, at the end of each fiscal quarter, we have a ratio of book accounts receivable by us and our
subsidiaries to Consolidated Net Funded Indebtedness (as defined in the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement) of
at least 1.1 to 1.0; and

-

limitations on, among other things, liens indebtedness, asset sales, dividends and stock redemptions, investments and
acquisitions, transactions with affiliates and consolidations, mergers and sales of all or a substantial part of our
consolidated assets.

The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement contains events of default customary for an agreement of this type.  The
occurrence of certain specified �internal control� events could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect
on us also constitutes an event of default under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement.  If a default occurs and
is continuing, the administrative agent may, among other things, declare all outstanding principle amounts
immediately due and payable.

The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement contains a $75 million sub-facility for letters of credit.  We had $21.5
million in letters of credit outstanding and unused borrowing capacity of $278.5 million under the Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement as of September 30, 2005.  On October 4, 2005, we borrowed approximately $95.8 million
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under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement to partially fund the purchase of shares of our common stock in
connection with the tender offer (see note 8 of the notes to our condensed consolidated financial statements).

Note Repurchase Agreement

On October 12, 2005, we entered into a note purchase agreement (the Note Purchase Agreement) providing for the
issuance and sale of $100 million aggregate principal amount of floating rate, senior secured notes due October 12,
2012 (the Notes) to the purchasers named therein.  Banc of America Securities LLC acted as placement agent for this
offering.  The issuance and sale of the Notes by us, and the resale of the Notes by Banc of America Securities LLC
was made pursuant to one or more exemptions from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933.

We  used the proceeds from the sale of the Notes to repay the amounts outstanding under our $100 million bridge loan
facility established by an agreement (the Bridge Loan Agreement) dated as of September 30, 2005, among EGL and
the other parties thereto.  The Bridge Loan Agreement was entered into in connection with the tender offer.  The
Bridge Loan Agreement was terminated upon repayment.

The Notes are guaranteed by all of our existing and future direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries and are secured by:

-

all of our present and future shares of capital stock of (or other ownership or profit interests in) each of our present and
future subsidiaries (limited, in the case of certain material first-tier foreign subsidiaries, to a pledge of 65% of the
capital stock of such subsidiaries);

-

all of our and each of our domestic subsidiaries� present and future property and assets; and

-

all proceeds and products of the property and assets described above.
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The Notes rank pari passu in right of payment with our obligations under its Amended and Restated Credit Agreement
and the obligations of our guarantor subsidiaries to guarantee our obligations under the Note Purchase Agreement
rank pari passu in right of payment with their guarantees in respect of the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement.

Interest on the Notes will accrue at a floating rate per annum equal to LIBOR plus 1.65% for the applicable interest
period. Interest periods are defined as the three month period commencing on the closing date and each successive
three month period thereafter.  Interest on the Notes is payable quarterly in arrears on the last day of each interest
period.

Under the Note Purchase Agreement, we are subject to various covenants, including, among others, the following:

-

a requirement that we maintain, on a rolling four-quarter basis, a ratio of Consolidated Net Debt to Consolidated
EBITDA (each as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement) of not greater than 3.5 to 1.0;

-

a requirement that we maintain, on a rolling four-quarter basis, a ratio of Consolidated EBIT to Consolidated Interest
Expense (each as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement) of at least 2.5 to 1.0;

-

a requirement that we have, at all times, a ratio of (x) book accounts receivable of the Company and certain
subsidiaries to (y) Consolidated Net Debt (as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement) of at least 1.1 to 1.0;

-

a requirement that we not, at any time, permit the aggregate amount of all Priority Debt (as defined in the Note
Purchase Agreement) to exceed 10% of its Consolidated Net Worth (as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement) as of
the most recently ended fiscal quarter; and
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-

limitations on, among other things, liens asset sales, dividends and stock redemptions, investments and acquisitions,
transactions with affiliates and consolidations and mergers.

The Note Purchase Agreement contains customary events of default.  If a default occurs and is continuing, the Notes
then outstanding shall (either automatically or by declaration of the holders of more than 50% of the principal amount
of Notes then outstanding, depending upon the circumstances resulting in the default) become immediately due and
payable.  If an event of default occurs and is continuing because we failed to pay principal, interest or other amounts
due and payable on the Notes, then any Note holder may declare all of the Notes held by it to be immediately due and
payable.

On October 4, 2005, we borrowed $100 million under the Bridge Loan Agreement, which was repaid by borrowings
under the Note Purchase Agreement.  These borrowings were used to purchase shares of our common stock pursuant
to the tender offer and to pay related fees and expenses.

Release of restricted cash.  In February 2005, in response to a joint motion filed by EGL and the EEOC, a U.S.
District Court ordered the return of $6.0 million to us of the $8.5 million previously held in an established fund to
resolve potential claims in connection with a 2001 consent decree (see note 11 of the notes to our consolidated
financial statements).  The joint motion and subsequent order resulted primarily from a significantly lower number of
qualified claimants than originally projected.  The aggregate amount expected to be paid for all claims is less than
$1.0 million.  Release of these funds resulted in $6.0 million in income in the first quarter of 2005.

Other guarantees.  Several of our foreign operations guarantee amounts associated with our international freight
forwarding services.  These include IATA (International Air Transportation Association) guarantees, customs bonds
and other working capital credit facilities issued in the normal course of business.  As of September 30, 2005,
guarantees and credit facilities totaled $71.5 million, and we had $51.1 million of guarantees, customs bonds and
borrowings against facilities outstanding, including guarantees of our trade payables and accrued transportation costs
and borrowings against our international credit facilities of $16.7 million which were recorded as liabilities on our
condensed consolidated balance sheet.

Capital expenditures.  We are in the process of developing and implementing computer system solutions for
operational, human resources and financial systems.  Once placed into service, depreciation related to the systems is
charged on a straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the software.  As of September 30, 2005, $38.6 million
of this software was under development and was not being depreciated.  We expect capital expenditures for the year
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ending December 31, 2005 to be approximately $38 to $42 million, including approximately $15 to $20 million for
information technology development and upgrades.

Litigation.  In addition to the EEOC matter (see note 11 of the notes to our condensed consolidated financial
statements), we are party to routine litigation incidental to our business, which primarily involves other employment
matters or claims for goods lost or damaged in transit or improperly shipped.  Many of the other lawsuits to which we
are a party are covered by insurance and are being defended by our insurance carriers.  We have established accruals
for these other matters and it is management�s opinion that resolution of such litigation will not have a material adverse
effect on our consolidated financial position.  However, a substantial settlement payment or judgment in excess of our
accruals could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated results of operations or cash flows.

Federal income tax audit.  As discussed in note 11 of the notes to our condensed consolidated financial statements,
EGL�s U.S. federal income tax returns from fiscal years 2000 to 2001 are currently subject to examination by the IRS.
 The IRS is proposing, among other items, to disallow various merger transaction costs and various software research
and development expenditures taken as tax deductions.  If the proposed adjustments are upheld, we would be required
to pay a total of approximately $14 million in cash taxes, of which approximately $6.5 million would impact the
consolidated statement of operations, plus accrued interest of approximately $4.7 million through September 30, 2005.
 We are protesting the proposed adjustments to the Appeals office of the IRS.  We believe our U.S. federal income tax
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returns were completed in accordance with applicable laws and regulations and do not believe material adjustments to
our tax returns are probable.  However, there is no assurance that the final outcome will not result in material
adjustments which would have a material adverse impact on our results of operations and cash flows.

Commissioner�s Charge

As discussed in �Part II, Item 1. Legal Proceedings�, effective October 3, 2002 we reached a Consent Decree settlement
with the EEOC which resolved the EEOC�s allegations contained in the Commissioner�s Charge.

Related Party Transactions

Aircraft usage payments

In conjunction with our business activities, prior to January 2005, we periodically utilized aircraft owned by entities
controlled by Mr. Crane.  We were charged for actual usage of the plane on an hourly basis and billed on a periodic
basis.  During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2004, we reimbursed the entities controlled by Mr.
Crane approximately $52,000 and $863,000, respectively, for hourly usage of the plane.  In January 2005, we
purchased from an unrelated third party an aircraft that was previously leased by an entity controlled by Mr. Crane for
$12.5 million.   This aircraft is used for business travel, eliminating the use of Mr. Crane�s aircraft and reimbursement
therefore.  

On July 18, 2005, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of EGL approved, in lieu of incremental
cash compensation, an arrangement to provide Mr. Crane, or his designees, with up to an aggregate of 150 hours per
year of personal use of our aircraft without reimbursement by Mr. Crane. We intend to include in Mr. Crane�s taxable
income each year the amount required by then-current U.S. federal income tax regulations.  On August 5, 2005, the
Board of Directors of the EGL approved, in lieu of additional director cash compensation that would make the
existing compensation package more competitive, an arrangement to provide the independent members of the Board
of Directors with limited personal usage of the Company�s aircraft, without reimbursement by the directors.  Personal
usage of the aircraft by the directors is subject to availability, with priority given to our usage, and the cumulative
number of hours allowed for all directors may not exceed 100 hours per year. We will record the number of hours
utilized by each director and include in such director�s yearly taxable income the amount required by then current U.S.
federal income tax regulations.

Shared employees

Certain of our employees also perform services for unaffiliated companies owned by Mr. Crane.  We are reimbursed
for these services based upon an allocation percentage of total salaries agreed to by EGL and Mr. Crane.  During the
nine months ended September 30, 2005 and 2004, we received reimbursements of $230,000 and $95,000,
respectively.  We received reimbursements of $62,000 for the quarter ended September 30, 2005.  We received no
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reimbursements for the quarter ended September 30, 2004.  The amount billed but not received as of September 30,
2005 was $4,000 and is included in other receivables on the consolidated balance sheets.

New Accounting Pronouncements and Critical Accounting Policies

See note 1 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K and see note 1 of the notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements included in Item
I.
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ITEM 3.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

There have been no material changes in exposure to market risk from that discussed in the Company�s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.

ITEM 4.  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures
pursuant to Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as of the end of the period covered by this report.
  In the course of this evaluation, management considered the material weaknesses in our internal control over
financial reporting discussed below and our remediation efforts during the nine months ended September 30, 2005.
 Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as a result of the
material weaknesses discussed below, our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective, as of September 30,
2005, with respect to the recording, processing, summarizing and reporting, within the time periods specified in the
SEC�s rules and forms, of information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act.  In light of the material weaknesses, we performed additional analyses and other post-closing
procedures in an effort to ensure our consolidated financial statements included in this quarterly report have been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  Accordingly, management believes that the
financial statements included in this report fairly present in all material respects our financial position, results of
operations and cash flows for the periods presented.

As described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K as of December 31, 2004 we concluded that the following control
deficiencies constituted material weaknesses:

1.

Lack of effective controls over the determination of income tax account balances.  The Company did not maintain
effective controls over the determination of income tax account balances.  Specifically, the Company did not maintain
effective controls over: (i) the calculation of the income tax provision, (ii) the proper recording of deferred tax assets
and related valuation allowances, (iii) the monitoring of its current and deferred income tax accounts on a worldwide
basis, and (iv) reconciliation of the differences between the tax basis and book basis of each component of the
Company�s balance sheet with the deferred tax asset and liability accounts.

In an effort to remediate this material weakness, we have hired additional qualified personnel, we have utilized third
party professionals for the Income Tax Accounting Manager position while pursuing a permanent replacement, have
utilized third party accounting firms to assist in review and reconciliation of the above calculations and balances, and
have implemented global training programs for foreign jurisdictions for current and deferred income taxes under U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.
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2.

Lack of effective controls over certain general ledger account reconciliations and the monitoring and review of
general ledger accounts.  The Company did not maintain effective controls over certain general ledger account
reconciliations and the monitoring and review of general ledger accounts.  Specifically, general ledger account
reconciliations involving cash, receivables, income taxes, property and equipment, other current and noncurrent
assets, payables, accrued expenses, notes payable and other noncurrent liabilities in the United States, Mexico and
United Kingdom were not properly performed on a timely basis and reconciling items were not timely resolved and
adjusted as well as a lack of monitoring and review of these general ledger accounts.

In an effort to remediate this material weakness, we have added additional staffing and monitoring to ensure adequacy
and timeliness of reconciliations.  

Other than discussed above, there has been no change in our internal controls over financial reporting that occurred
during the three months ended September 30, 2005 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II.  OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1.  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In December 1997, the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (�EEOC�) issued a Commissioner�s Charge
pursuant to Sections 706 and 707 of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (�Title VII�).  In the
Commissioner�s Charge, the EEOC charged us and certain of our subsidiaries with violations of Section 703 of Title
VII, as amended, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, and the Equal Pay Act of 1963.

In May through July 2000, eight individuals filed suit against us in the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of Pennsylvania in Philadelphia, alleging gender, race and national origin discrimination, as well as sexual
harassment.  The individual plaintiffs sought to certify a class of approximately 1,000 of our current and former
employees and applicants.

On December 29, 2000, the EEOC filed a Motion to Intervene in the Philadelphia litigation, which was granted by the
Court in Philadelphia on January 31, 2001.  In addition, the Philadelphia Court granted our motion that the case be
transferred to the United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas � Houston Division where we had
previously initiated litigation against the EEOC due to what we believed to have been inappropriate practices by the
EEOC in the issuance of the Commissioner�s Charge and in the subsequent investigation.

On October 2, 2001, we and the EEOC announced the filing of a Consent Decree settlement. Under the Consent
Decree, we agreed to pay $8.5 million into a fund to compensate individuals who claim to have experienced
discrimination (�Settlement Fund�).  In addition, we agreed to contribute $500,000 to establish a Leadership
Development Program (�LDP�).  In entering the Consent Decree, we made no admission of liability or wrongdoing.
 The Consent Decree was approved by the District Court in Houston on October 1, 2001 and became effective on
October 3, 2002.  It expired on October 3, 2005.

The Claims administration process under the Consent Decree was completed by EGL and the EEOC in early 2005.
 Of the 2,073 claims received, only 203 were deemed to be eligible for a monetary distribution from the Settlement
Fund.  The total distribution amount for these 203 claims is approximately $903,000.  EGL and the EEOC submitted a
proposed agreement to the Court in February 2005 regarding disbursements of the excess funds in the Settlement
Fund.  On February 10, 2005 the Court entered an Order directing that EGL recapture $6.0 million plus accrued
interest from the Settlement Fund.  Release of these funds resulted in $6.0 million in income in the first quarter of
2005.  The Court also approved the parties� agreement to transfer $1.4 million to the LDP.  From that amount, EGL has
reimbursed itself $582,000 for corporate funds previously expended on LDP expenses.  The Court further approved
the parties� agreement to retain $1.1 million in the Settlement Fund for the payment of eligible claims.  

Notices were sent to all ineligible and eligible claimants who had forty-five days to accept a monetary distribution or
�opt out� of the Consent Decree settlement.  Through October 27, 2005, 174 eligible Claimants have been sent
settlement checks totaling approximately $808,000.  Only three Claimants have rejected awards and opted out of the
settlement.  Eligible claimants also had the option of objecting to an award, but to do so they must have notified the
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Claims Administrator within thirty days of the date of their eligibility notice.  To date, all objections have been
resolved by agreement between the EEOC and counsel for EGL.  If any funds remain in the Settlement Fund after
payment of all claims, the remainder shall be deposited in the LDP.

To the extent any of the individual plaintiffs or any other persons who have opted out of the settlement pursue
individual claims, we intend to continue to vigorously defend against their allegations.  We currently expect to prevail
in our defense of any remaining individual claims.  There can be no assurance as to what amount of time it will take to
resolve any other lawsuits and related issues or the degree of any adverse affect these matters may have on our
financial condition and results of operations.  A substantial settlement payment or judgment could result in a
significant decrease in our working capital and liquidity and recognition of a loss in our consolidated statement of
operations.

In addition, we are party to routine litigation incidental to our business, which primarily involves other employment
matters or claims for goods lost or damaged in transit or improperly shipped.  Many of the other lawsuits to which we
are a party are covered by insurance and are being defended by our insurance carriers.  We have established
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accruals for these other matters and it is management�s opinion that resolution of such litigation will not have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position.  However, a substantial settlement payment or judgment
in excess of our accruals could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated results of operations or cash flows.

ITEM 2.  UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The following table provides information about repurchases by the Company during the three months ended
September 30, 2005 of equity securities that are registered by the Company pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended:

Period

Total
number of
shares

purchased
(1)

Average
price paid
per share

Total number
of shares

purchased as
part of a
publicly

announced
plans or

programs (2)

Maximum
approximate
dollar value of
shares that
may yet be
purchased
under the
 plans or

programs (1)
(3)

(in thousands, except price per share)

July 1 to 31, 2005 35

$

20.02 35

$

25,706

August 1 to 31,
2005 -

$

- -

$

25,706

September 1 to 30,
2005 -

$

- -

$

-

Total 35

$

20.02 35

$

-

(1)
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On April 4, 2005, the Company�s Board of Directors (the Board) publicly announced its approval of
a stock repurchase program for up to $60 million of the Company�s common stock over the 122 days
which followed.  On May 31, 2005, the Board approved an increase in the maximum amount of
shares to be repurchased from $60 million to $120 million and extended the stock repurchase
program for an additional 55 days.  The stock repurchase program expired on September 28, 2005.
(2)

All shares were repurchased in open market transactions.  The Board�s approval allowed the
Company to repurchase shares in the open market or through private transactions.
(3)

The Company has in the past and may in the future use a Rule 10b5-1 trading plan to allow for
repurchases by the Company during periods when it would not normally be active in the trading
market due to internal trading restrictions.  Under a Rule 10b5-1 trading plan, the Company is
unable to repurchase shares above a pre-determined price per share.  

ITEM 3.  DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

NONE

ITEM 4.  SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

NONE

ITEM 5.  OTHER INFORMATION

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The statements contained in all parts of this document that are not historical facts are, or may be deemed to be,
forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  Such forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, those relating to
the following:  the Company�s plans to reduce costs (including the scope, timing, impact and effects thereof); pending
or expected financing transactions; the Company�s ability to leverage its infrastructure by containing operating
expenses; the Company�s ability to improve yield management; the Company�s ability to pass-through fuel surcharges;
the Company�s ability to reduce its tax rate for the remainder of 2005; anticipated future recoveries from actual or
expected sublease agreements; the sensitivity of demand for the Company�s services to domestic and global economic
conditions; cost management efforts; expected growth; the results, timing, outcome or effect of litigation or tax audits
and our intentions or expectations of prevailing with respect thereto; future operating expenses; future margins; use of
credit
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facility proceeds; the timing and amount of repurchases of our outstanding common stock; the effectiveness of the
Company�s disclosure controls and procedures (including remediation efforts with respect to material weaknesses); the
expected impact of changes in accounting policies on the Company�s results of operations, financial condition or cash
flows; fluctuations in currency valuations; fluctuations in interest rates; the impact of the war in Iraq and other
tensions in the Middle East; ability to continue growth and implement growth and business strategy; ability to improve
results in our European operations; the development, implementation, upgrade and integration of our financial and
operational information systems; the amount and timing of capital expenditures; the ability of expected sources of
liquidity to support working capital and capital expenditure requirements; the tax benefit of any stock option
exercises; future expectations and outlook and any other statements regarding future growth, cash needs, terminals,
operations, business plans and financial results and any other statements which are not historical facts.  When used in
this document, the words �anticipate,� �estimate,� �expect,� �may,� �plans,� �project,� and similar expressions are intended to be
among the statements that identify forward-looking statements.

The Company�s results may differ significantly from the results discussed in the forward-looking statements.  Such
statements involve risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, those relating to costs, delays and difficulties
related to acquisitions or mergers, including the integration of systems, operations and other businesses; deployment
of global financial and operational information systems; the Company�s dependence on its ability to attract and retain
skilled managers and other personnel; the intense competition within the freight industry; the uncertainty of the
Company�s ability to manage and continue its growth and implement its business strategy; the Company�s dependence
on the availability of cargo space to serve its customers; the potential for liabilities if certain independent
owner/operators that serve the Company are determined to be employees; effects of regulation;  the results of
litigation; the Company�s vulnerability to general economic conditions and dependence on its principal customers; the
Company�s vulnerability to risks inherent in operating in international markets, including without limitation, general
political and economic instability in international markets as a result of, among other things, the war in Iraq and other
tensions in the Middle East, concerns of possible terrorism directed against the United States and its interests, or other
military or trade or travel disruptions; the timing, success and effects of the Company�s restructuring; whether the
Company enters into arrangements with third parties relating to leased aircraft and the terms of such arrangements;
responses of customers to the Company�s actions by the Company�s principal shareholder; the effect of any tax audits
of our domestic and/or foreign tax filings; the effects of changes in forecasts of the Company�s effective income tax
rates; the timing and amount of repurchases of our outstanding common stock; the lack of effectiveness of the
Company�s disclosure controls and procedures; the likelihood and/or result of any audit or review of the Company�s
Department of Transportation grant application; accuracy of accounting and other estimates; the Company�s potential
exposure to claims involving its local pick up and delivery operations; the Company�s future financial and operating
results, cash needs and demand for its services; the impact of heightened security measures on our ability to do
business; changes in accounting policies; and the Company�s ability to maintain and comply with permits and licenses;
as well as other factors detailed in the Company�s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission including
those detailed in the subsection entitled �Factors That May Affect Future Results and Financial Condition� in the
Company�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.  Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties
materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual outcomes may vary materially from those
indicated.  The Company undertakes no responsibility to update for changes related to these or any other factors that
may occur subsequent to this filing.
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ITEM 6.  EXHIBITS:

Exhibit Number Description
*3.1 Second Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of EGL, as amended (filed as Exhibit

3(i) to EGL�s Form 8-A/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
September 29, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference).

*3.2 Statement of Resolutions Establishing the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of EGL
(filed as Exhibit 3(ii) to EGL�s Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2001 and
incorporated herein by reference).

*3.3 Amended and Restated Bylaws of EGL, as amended (filed as Exhibit 3(ii) to EGL�s Form 10-Q
for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference).

*10.1 First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of September 30, 2005, among EGL,
Inc., as Borrower; Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and
L/C Issuer; Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Syndication Agent; JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A. and Harris N.A., as Co-Documentation Agents; Banc of America Securities LLC,
as Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Book Manager; and Other Lenders party thereto (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to EGL�s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
October 5, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

*10.2 Bridge Term Loan Credit Agreement dated as of September 30, 2005, among EGL, Inc., as
Borrower; Bank of America Mezzanine Capital, LLC as Administrative Agent and lender; and
Other Lenders party thereto (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to EGL�s Form 8-K filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on October 5, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

*10.3 Note Purchase Agreement dated as of October 12, 2005, among EGL, Inc., and the purchasers
named therein (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to EGL�s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on October 13, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) (filed herewith).
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) (filed herewith).
32 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.

1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

* Incorporated by reference as indicated.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

EGL, INC.

______________________________

(Registrant)

Date:  November 9, 2005

By:

/s/ James R. Crane

_______________________________

James R. Crane

Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer

Date:  November 9, 2005

By:

/s/ Elijio V. Serrano

_______________________________

Elijio V. Serrano

Chief Financial Officer
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit Number Description
*3.1 Second Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of EGL, as amended (filed as Exhibit

3(i) to EGL�s Form 8-A/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
September 29, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference).

*3.2 Statement of Resolutions Establishing the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of EGL
(filed as Exhibit 3(ii) to EGL�s Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2001 and
incorporated herein by reference).

*3.3 Amended and Restated Bylaws of EGL, as amended (filed as Exhibit 3(ii) to EGL�s Form 10-Q
for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference).

*10.1 First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of September 30, 2005, among EGL,
Inc., as Borrower; Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and
L/C Issuer; Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Syndication Agent; JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A. and Harris N.A., as Co-Documentation Agents; Banc of America Securities LLC,
as Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Book Manager; and Other Lenders party thereto (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to EGL�s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
October 5, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

*10.2 Bridge Term Loan Credit Agreement dated as of September 30, 2005, among EGL, Inc., as
Borrower; Bank of America Mezzanine Capital, LLC as Administrative Agent and lender; and
Other Lenders party thereto (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to EGL�s Form 8-K filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on October 5, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

*10.3 Note Purchase Agreement dated as of October 12, 2005, among EGL, Inc., and the purchasers
named therein (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to EGL�s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on October 13, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) (filed herewith).
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) (filed herewith).
32 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.

1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

* Incorporated by reference as indicated.
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ffiliates, and while employed and indefinitely thereafter will not disclose or otherwise use our confidential information
or the confidential information of our subsidiaries or affiliates. The agreements also state that the executives� work
product will be assigned to us or eLong Information.

Settlement and Termination Agreements. In addition, we have entered into settlement and termination agreements with our former senior
executive officers, Messrs. SooHoo, Tang, and Palaschuk. The terms of these agreements are described in elsewhere in this annual report. We
have also entered into settlement agreements with Messrs. Frank Zheng and Richard Chen, the terms of which settlement agreements are
described in the section �Employment and Termination Arrangements with Messrs. Chen and Zheng� above.

Resignation and Settlement Agreement with Derek Palaschuk. In July 2006, Derek Palaschuk resigned from his position as our CFO. We entered
into a resignation and settlement agreement with Mr. Palaschuk pursuant to which he will receive, subject to certain conditions, base pay of
US$105,000 per year through July 23, 2007, together with healthcare benefits through such date. We have also extended the period after
Mr. Palaschuk�s resignation during which he and Capital Dragon Agents Limited, a company beneficially owned by Mr. Palaschuk, may exercise
any options which were vested as of July 28, 2006. Such extension is for a reasonable period of time after the resolution of certain issues relating
to any potential option exercises. Under the settlement agreement, Mr. Palaschuk remains subject to confidentiality, non-compete,
non-disparagement, and other obligations.

Termination and Settlement Agreement with Tom Soohoo. In May 2007, we entered into a termination and settlement agreement with
Mr. SooHoo in connection with Mr. SooHoo�s resignation, effective as of April 16, 2007. Under such agreement, Mr. SooHoo provided us with a
general release of any claims related to his employment with us. In addition, Mr. SooHoo agreed to remain our non-executive employee until
July 12, 2007 (the �Termination Date�), and we agreed that Mr. SooHoo would continue to be paid his then-current annual base salary of
US$120,000 per annum, pro rated, through the Termination Date and that he would receive, through the Termination Date, other employee
benefits set forth in Section 4 of his December 19, 2005 Employment Agreement with us. As of the Termination Date, Mr. SooHoo had vested
stock options to purchase 30,488 of our ordinary shares and 32,928 vested performance units which were to be settled in our ordinary shares
pursuant to the terms of the termination and settlement agreement. As of April 30, 2008, all of the 30,488 stock options had expired without
being exercised by Mr. SooHoo.

Consulting Arrangements. We appointed Tony Shen to act as our Interim Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to a consulting contract with a start
date of July 25, 2006 and with an initial term of four months. Pursuant to the contract, Mr. Shen was paid a gross monthly consulting fee of
US$15,000, a housing allowance of US$1,000 per month, a home leave allowance of US$2,000 for each six week period, and reimbursement of
expenses incurred in discharge of his duties. The contract was extended from November 26, 2006 to January 31, 2007, and then for an additional
term from February 1, 2007 to July 31, 2007, with an increase to US$ 16,500 per month as the base consulting fee. Under the agreement, either
party had the right to terminate the contract upon written notice. We and Mr. Shen agreed on February 23, 2007 to terminate the Interim CFO
consulting arrangement, effective February 26, 2007, and pursuant to the terms of a settlement agreement with Mr. Shen, Mr. Shen remained
available to provide transition services for a two month period from February 26 and received the US$16,500 base consulting fee during such
period.

Services Agreement for Interim CEO. We have agreed on an arrangement with Expedia for the services of Henrik Kjellberg in his role as our
Interim CEO. Additional detail is provided under �Related Party Transactions�Certain Other Business Arrangements with Expedia�Arrangement
between Expedia and eLong with respect to Services provided by our Interim CEO. Mr. Kjellberg resigned as our Interim CEO effective on
October 8, 2007 and Mr. Guangfu Cui became our CEO on the same day.
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Share Ownership

Please refer to �Item 7: Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions� and to ��Stock-Based Compensation Plans and Options Grants� below
for a description of the share ownership of our executive officers and directors.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans and Option Grants

Our board of directors has adopted two stock option plans�the eLong, Inc. Stock Option Plan adopted in April 2001, or the 2001 Plan, and the
eLong, Inc. Stock and Annual Incentive Plan, or the 2004 Plan. The terms of the 2001 Plan and the 2004 Plan are substantially similar.

2001 Plan

We have granted options to purchase our ordinary shares under the 2001 Plan to our employees, of which 3,033,225 options are granted,
outstanding, and have not been exercised as of April 30, 2008. We will not issue any additional options under the 2001 Plan to our employees.
The following table summarizes, as of April 30, 2008, the outstanding options granted under our 2001 Plan to Justin Tang, our former President
and Chief Executive Officer, who currently is a member of our board of directors, and to our other employees as a group since our board of
directors adopted the 2001 Plan. As of April 30, 2008, options representing 2,136,065 ordinary shares granted under the 2001 Plan have been
exercised.

Option Grantee

Ordinary shares underlying
outstanding options granted

and outstanding
Exercise
price Date of grant Date of expiration
US$

Granted in 2001(1) 
Justin Tang 2,750,000(2) 0.50 April 18, 2001 April 17, 2011

Granted in 2003(1)
Justin Tang 156,250(2) 1.53 September 1, 2003 August 31, 2013
Other employees 126,975(3) 1.53 January 1, 2004 December 31, 2013
Total 3,033,225

(1) All options granted in 2001 and 2003 are currently fully vested and exercisable.
(2) Such options were originally granted to Justin Tang. In April 2004, Mr. Tang transferred such options to Purple Mountain Holding Ltd., a

corporation over which Mr. Tang holds ultimate investment power.
(3) Includes employees who were granted options to purchase a total of 82,995 ordinary shares, which are currently fully vested and

exercisable, and employees who were granted options to purchase a total of 43,230 ordinary shares, which shares vest over a four year
period from the date of grant or 12.5% after every six months from the date of grant.

2004 Plan

We have reserved an aggregate of 4,000,000 of our ordinary shares for issuance under the 2004 Plan. We have granted stock options and
performance units to our officers, key employees, directors and non-employee consultants under the 2004 Plan. It is anticipated that performance
units will be our primary form of stock-based awards for the near future.
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Stock Options Granted under the 2004 Plan

As of April 30, 2008, 869,936, stock options were granted and outstanding under the 2004 Plan. The following table summarizes, as of April 30,
2008, the outstanding options granted under our 2004 Plan to Guangfu Cui, our Chief Executive Officer, certain of our current and former key
employees and directors, and to our other employees as a group since our board of directors adopted the 2004 Plan. As of April 30, 2008,
123,250 options granted under our 2004 Plan have been exercised.

Option Holder

Ordinary shares
underlying options

granted(1)
Exercise
Price US$ Date of grant Date of expiration

Justin Tang 306,250(2) 5.25 July 23, 2004 July 22, 2014
Derek Palaschuk 12,500 5.25 July 23, 2004 (3)

Other employees 80,874 5.25 July 23, 2004 July 22, 2014
Thomas Gurnee 30,000(4) 6.75 November 2, 2004 November 1, 2014
Other employees 29,200 6.75 November 2, 2004 November 1, 2014
Chris Chan 50,000(5) 4.95 April 30, 2007 April 29, 2017
James Li 20,000(5) 4.95 April 30, 2007 April 29, 2017
Other Employees 120,000(5) 4.95 April 30, 2007 April 29, 2017
Kenneth Liao 50,000(5) 4.50 December 6, 2007 December 5, 2017
Guangfu Cui 111,112(5) 4.50 September 4, 2007 September 3, 2017
Leo Austin 30,000(4) 3.935 January 9, 2008 January 8, 2018
Michael Scown 30,000(4) 3.935 January 9, 2008 January 8, 2018
Total 869,936

(1) Unless otherwise noted, all options vest with respect to one-quarter (1/4) of the shares covered thereby on the first anniversary of the grant
date and as to an additional one-sixteenth (1/16) of the shares covered thereby every three months thereafter until the fourth anniversary of
the grant date. In addition, pursuant to the terms of the 2004 Plan, unless otherwise determined by our board of directors, if, during the
one-year period following a change in control, such option holder incurs a termination of employment by us other than by reason of death,
disability or cause or the option holder resigns for good reason, the option holder shall be entitled as of the termination of employment to
an additional 12 months of vesting of the stock option to the extent unvested as of the termination of employment.

(2) This option is currently fully vested and exercisable.
(3) See discussion of Mr. Palaschuk�s options under the heading �Resignation and Settlement Agreement with Derek Palaschuk.�
(4) Vests over a period of three years from the grant date, at the rate of 5,000 ordinary shares every six months. In the event that Expedia

effects a going private transaction, as such transaction is described in Rule 13e-3(a)(3) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 of us,
the portion of the stock option which is unvested prior to such transaction shall become vested as of the effective date of such �going private
transaction.�

(5) Vests over a five year period with 20% of the option vesting on each of the first, second, third, forth and fifth anniversary of the grant date.
Performance Units Granted under the 2004 Plan

Performance units are awards in the form of units that are denominated in a hypothetical equivalent number of our ordinary shares, which
number of units are determined based on the fair market value of our ordinary shares on the date immediately preceding the grant date or the
employment start date of a particular grantee and which, when vested, are settled, in our sole discretion, in either ordinary shares or cash. At the
time of grant, our board of directors or the compensation committee determines if we will settle the performance units in cash, stock or both.
Settlement terms of performance units, once established, may only be changed by approval of our board of directors or the compensation
committee. Except with respect to the performance units granted to our independent directors which are to be settled in cash (and are not
reflected in the table below) and except as
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otherwise described in the footnotes to the table below, performance units granted to our employees and consultants are to be settled in ordinary
shares. Those performance units granted during 2007 to our independent directors are to be settled upon vesting in cash in an amount equal to
the number of the vested performance units multiplied by the fair market value of our ordinary shares on the applicable vesting date. The fair
value of the performance unit is based upon the market value of our ordinary shares when the performance units vest. Our performance units are
generally subject to service-based vesting where a specific period of continued employment must pass before an award vests. Typically, a
portion of the performance units granted vest periodically over the term of the grant. In addition, pursuant to the terms of the 2004 Plan, unless
otherwise determined by our board of directors, if, during the one-year period following a change in control, such Performance Unit holder
incurs a termination of employment by us other than by reason of death, disability or cause or the Performance Unit holder resigns for good
reason, such holder shall be entitled as of the termination of employment to an additional 12 months of vesting of the Performance Unit to the
extent unvested as of the termination of employment. The following table summarizes, as of April 30, 2008, the outstanding performance units
granted to Guangfu Cui, our Chief Executive Officer, certain of our current key employees and consultant and to our other employees as a group
since our board of directors adopted the 2004 Plan. As of April 30, 2008, 19,406 performance units have been settled in ordinary shares.

Performance Unit Holder
Ordinary Shares underlying

Performance Units (1) Date of grant
Other Employees 2,250 November 14, 2005
Hal Fiske 4,072 October 2, 2006
Other Employees 29,786 October 2, 2006
Justin Tang 6,667(2) March 6, 2007
Barney Harford 6,668(3) March 6, 2007
Chris Chan 41,886 April 30, 2007
James Li 2,682 April 30, 2007
Other Employees 111,590 April 30, 2007
Kenneth Liao 55,556 December 6, 2007
Certain Consultant 44,298(4) December 6, 2007
Guangfu Cui 111,112 September 4, 2007
Chris Chan 25,414(5) January 9, 2008
Kenneth Liao 5,084(5) January 9, 2008
James Li 50,826(5) January 9, 2008
Other Employees 308,776(5) January 9, 2008
Jack Wang 53,334 January 9, 2008
Jason Xie 72,464 January 9, 2008
Qi Chen 74,626 January 9, 2008
Yu Zheng 73,440 January 9, 2008
Other Employees 201,560 January 9, 2008
Total 1,282,091

(1) Such performance units are payable upon vesting by our delivering to the holder that number of our ordinary shares that is equal to the
number of performance units then vested. Unless otherwise noted below, 20% of the performance units vest on the first year anniversary of
the date the recipient began employment with the us and an additional 20% vest on each of the second, third, fourth and fifth year
anniversaries of such date.

(2) Mr. Tang, one of the members of our board of directors, had been granted 10,000 performance units under the 2004 Plan. One third of the
performance units vest on January 1 of each of 2008, 2009 and 2010 and are payable upon vesting either in cash payment equal to the then
fair market value of the underlying ordinary shares so vested or in the number of our ordinary shares that is equal to the number of
performance units then vested. 3,333 performance units vested on January 1, 2008 and Mr. Tang received a cash payment upon vesting of
such 3,333 performance units.
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(3) Mr. Harford, one of the members of our board of directors, had been granted 10,000 performance units under the 2004 Plan. One third of
the performance units vest on January 1 of each of 2008, 2009 and 2010 and are payable upon vesting either in cash payment equal to the
then fair market value of the underlying ordinary shares so vested or in the number of our ordinary shares that is equal to the number of
performance units then vested. 3,332 performance units vested on January 1, 2008 and Mr. Harford received 3,332 ordinary shares.

(4) We entered into a services agreement with Expedia with respect to the secondment of an Expedia employee to eLong to provide advice on
improvements in eLong�s operations and service. Under this agreement, the Expedia employee was granted 44,298 performance units under
our 2004 Plan, 50 percent (50%) of which will vest on each of the first and second anniversaries of the start date of the Expedia employee�s
consulting services.

(5) Such performance units are payable upon vesting by our delivering to the holder that number of our ordinary shares that is equal to the
number of performance units then vested. Unless otherwise noted below, 40%, 30% and 30% of the performance units will vest on each of
the 3rd, 4th and 5th anniversaries of the grant date, respectively.

Options Granted to Expedia Asia Pacific

On August 4, 2004, we granted to Expedia Asia Pacific an option to purchase 711,429 ordinary shares at an exercise price of US$5.25 per share.
The option mirrors the terms and conditions of the 1.66 million options granted to certain of our employees and officers on July 23, 2004 under
our 2004 Plan. The option becomes exercisable by Expedia Asia Pacific each time any such officer or employee exercises any of such
1.66 million options. In connection with each exercise by an employee or officer, Expedia Asia Pacific is entitled to exercise a portion of its
option such that Expedia Asia Pacific would receive (if Expedia Asia Pacific exercises to the fullest extent in connection with such employee or
officer exercise) 30% of the aggregate ordinary shares issued to such employee or officer and Expedia Asia Pacific in connection with such
employee or officer exercise. To the extent that any such officer�s or employee�s options terminate or expire without being exercised, an amount
of Expedia Asia Pacific�s option equal to 30% of (i) such officer�s or employee�s terminated or expired options divided by (ii) 0.70, will likewise
terminate or expire.

In addition, on October 1, 2004, we entered into a stock option agreement with Expedia Asia Pacific, pursuant to which, in exchange for Expedia
Asia Pacific�s giving its consent to the issuance of 250,000 options to Messrs. Chen or Zheng, we granted to Expedia Asia Pacific an option to
purchase up to 260,204 of our ordinary shares at a purchase price of US$5.25 per ordinary share. The option mirrors the terms and conditions of
the 250,000 options granted to Messrs. Chen or Zheng on October 1, 2004. The option becomes exercisable by Expedia Asia Pacific each time
either of Messrs. Chen or Zheng exercises any of the 250,000 options. In connection with each exercise by either of Messrs. Chen or Zheng,
Expedia Asia Pacific is entitled to exercise a portion of its option such that Expedia Asia Pacific would receive (if Expedia Asia Pacific
exercises to the fullest extent in connection with such officer exercise) 51% of the aggregate ordinary shares issued to either Messrs. Chen or
Zheng and Expedia Asia Pacific in connection with such officer exercise. To the extent that either of Messrs. Chen�s or Zheng�s options terminate
or expire without being exercised, an amount of Expedia Asia Pacific�s option equal to 51% of (i) Messrs. Chen�s or Zheng�s terminated or expired
options divided by (ii) 0.49, will likewise terminate or expire.

As of April 30, 2008, 487,339 options granted to Expedia Asia Pacific on August 4, 2004 had forfeited as a result of the expiration of certain
employees� options and 260,204 options granted to Expedia Asia Pacific on October 1, 2004 had expired as a result of the expiration of Messrs.
Chen�s or Zheng�s options. As of April 30, 2008, Expedia Asia Pacific held an option to purchase 224,090 ordinary shares.

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, we employed approximately 1,777 full-time and part-time employees. We believe we have good relationships with
our employees, including relationships with employees represented by works councils or other similar organizations.
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The following table sets forth the number of our employees categorized by function as of the dates indicated.

As of December 31,
2005 2006 2007

General and administrative 199 206 203
Cost of services 706 870 957
Sales and marketing 718 459 365(1)
Services development 433 318 252

Total 2,056 1,853 1,777(2)

(1) This number includes our 224, 201 and 130 third-party sales agents in 2005, 2006 and 2007. The agents are individuals who signed
commission agreements, not employment agreements, with us. The agents are independent contractors who control their work schedules
and do not enjoy the employee benefits mentioned above.

(2) This number includes 188, three and six part-time workers and 131, 50 and 115 interns in 2005, 2006 and 2007. In 2005, 170 of the
part-time workers and 131 of the interns were contracted or hired by Raytime. The part-time workers are those who work less than four
hours per working day. The interns consist of students and trainees who are hired under an intern or training contract. Once they complete
the internship, they are eligible to be hired as our full-time employees. Both the part-time workers and the interns are independent
contractors who control their work schedules and do not enjoy the employee benefits mentioned above.

The decrease in our number of employees from 2005 to 2006 was primarily due to the sale of the Raytime and online dating division businesses.
The decrease in staff from 2006 to 2007 was primarily due to suspending the vacation package service business in July 2007 and exiting some
traditional sales channels at the end of 2007.

On January 1, 2008, we decided to transfer certain third-party sales agents into employment relationship. At the same day, we converted 89 such
agents into our employees and signed the employment agreements with them.

Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions

Expedia, through its affiliates, holds 28,550,704 (or 100%) of our high-vote ordinary shares, each of which is entitled to 15 votes. Each of our
ordinary shares is entitled to one vote. Our high-vote ordinary shares and our ordinary shares vote together as a single class on all matters
submitted to a shareholder vote, including the election of the members of our board of directors. As a result, Expedia controls approximately
95% of the voting power of all shares of our voting stock. In addition, certain other shareholders are parties to an investors agreement with
Expedia Asia Pacific under which they have agreed to vote their ordinary shares in the election of directors designated by Expedia. Accordingly,
Expedia generally is able to exercise control over all matters requiring approval by our board of directors or our shareholders.

As of April 30, 2008, 22,040,232 of our ordinary shares were outstanding and 28,550,704 of our high-vote ordinary shares were outstanding,
excluding shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding options and shares issuable upon the settlement of vested performance units. On that
date, a total of 9,373,464 of our ADSs (equivalent to 18,746,928 ordinary shares) were outstanding. As of April 30, 2008, of our ordinary shares,
99.7% are held of record by holders who are United States persons and all of our high-vote ordinary shares are held of record by one holder who
is a United States person. As of April 30, 2008, there were 7 holders of record of our ordinary shares in the United States. We are not aware of
any arrangement that may, at a subsequent date, result in a change in control of our company.
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The following table sets forth information with respect to the beneficial ownership, within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the U.S. Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, of our ordinary shares as of April 30, 2008 by:

� each person known to us to own beneficially more than 5% of our ordinary shares; and

� each of our directors and senior executive officers.

Shares beneficially owned(1)
    Amount        %    

Principal Shareholders
Expedia, Inc.(2)* 52,821 0.24%
The Eureka Interactive Fund Limited(3) 1,502,400 6.82%
Purple Mountain Holding, Ltd.(4)* 4,344,998 19.71%
Lawrence Auriana(5)* 3,911,111 17.74%

Executive Officers and Directors
Guangfu Cui �  �  
Chris Chan �  �  
Justin Tang(6)* 4,651,248 18.42%
James Li �  �  
Kenneth Liao �  �  
Jack Wang �  �  
Jason Xie �  �  
Qi Chen �  �  
Yu Zheng �  �  
Barney Harford * * * *
Henrik Vilhelm Kjellberg(7) * * * *
Thomas Gurnee * * * *
Michael Doyle * * * *
Arthur Hoffman �  �  
Johan Svanstrom �  �  
Leo Austin �  �  
Michael Scown �  �  

(1) Beneficial ownership is determined and calculated in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC,
and includes voting or investment power with respect to securities.

(2) Represents ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of an option held by Expedia Asia Pacific, a subsidiary of Expedia, that have vested.
Expedia Asia Pacific is the record holder of an option to purchase 224,090 ordinary shares of eLong, Inc. of which options to purchase
52,821 ordinary shares are currently exercisable. Expedia Asia Pacific also holds 28,550,704 of our high-vote ordinary shares, which
represents 100% of the outstanding shares of that class. The high-vote ordinary shares beneficially owned by Expedia represent 95.11% of
the total voting power of all of our shares. Expedia beneficially owns approximately 56.48% of our outstanding shares on a fully-diluted
basis. Expedia Asia Pacific is an indirect subsidiary of Expedia. Barry Diller is the Chairman and Senior Executive of Expedia and, by
virtue of a stockholders agreement with Liberty Media Corporation that grants him an irrevocable proxy to vote shares of Expedia stock
beneficially owned by Liberty Media and as well as shares he owns directly, Mr. Diller also generally has the ability to control the
outcome of all matters submitted to a vote of Expedia�s stockholders (except with regard to certain specified matters). The address for
Expedia is 3150 139th Avenue S.E., Bellevue, WA 98005.

(3) The Eureka Interactive Fund Limited, is an exempted company incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands which operates as
an open-ended investment fund that directly beneficially owns the ordinary shares. Marshall Wace LLP, incorporated in England, serves as
investment manager or adviser to the fund operated by Eureka Interactive Fund Limited. Marshall Wace Asset Management Limited, a
company incorporated with limited liability in England and Wales, serves as the managing member of the
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investment manager. Mr. Paul Marshall and Mr. Ian Wace are co-founders and equity owners of the investment manager and serve on the
investment committee that is responsible for the investment decisions of the investment manager and therefore indirectly beneficially owns
the ordinary shares by virtue of such position. Mr. Marshall is the chairman of this committee. Mr. Mark Hawtin and Mr. Duncan Ford are
equity owners of the investment manager and also serve on the investment committee that is responsible for the investment decisions of
the Investment Manager. The address for the Eureka Interactive Fund Limited is The Adelphi, 13th Floor, 1/11 John Adam Street London
WC2N 6HT.

(4) Represents (i) 1,438,748 ordinary shares of which 1,438,746 ordinary shares are represented by 719,373 our American Depositary Shares,
and (ii) 2,906,250 ordinary shares issuable upon the exercise of options held by Purple Mountain Holding Ltd that are fully vested as of
April 30, 2008. Purple Mountain Holding, Ltd. holds no additional options. Investment power over the securities held by Purple Mountain
Holding Ltd. rests with Mr. Tang. The address for Purple Mountain Holding Ltd. is #3701, Fortune Plaza, 7 Dong San Huan Middle Road,
Chao Yang District, Beijing 100020, People�s Republic of China.

(5) Represents 3,911,111 ordinary shares held for the benefit of Mr. Auriana. Mr. Auriana has placed his shares in a discretionary trust
account with Sandgrain Securities Inc., with Angelo Frank Perrone being authorized to direct the disposition of such shares. As a result,
Sandgrain Securities Inc. and Mr. Perrone may be deemed to beneficially own the shares. The address for Mr. Auriana is 140 E. 45th
Street, 43Fl, New York, NY 10017.

(6) Includes 1,438,748 ordinary shares and 2,906,250 ordinary shares issuable upon the exercise of options held by Purple Mountain Holding,
Ltd. that are fully vested as of April 30, 2008. Mr. Tang holds ultimate investment power over the securities held by Purple Mountain
Holding, Ltd. In addition, this number includes 306,250 ordinary shares issuable upon the exercise of options held by Mr. Tang that are
fully vested as of April 30, 2008. Neither Mr. Tang nor Purple Mountain Holding, Ltd. holds any additional options whether vested or
unvested. The address for Mr. Tang is #3701, Fortune Plaza, 7 Dong San Huan Middle Road, Chao Yang District, Beijing 100020, People�s
Republic of China.

(7) The ordinary shares held represent less than 1% and are represented by our American Depositary Shares purchased in the open market.
* These shareholders (either directly or through entities over which they control) are parties to an investors agreement, dated July 23, 2004,

among us and the other parties named therein, including Expedia Asia Pacific, Billable Development, Ltd., Lawrence Auriana, Peter
Lerner, Ira S. Nordlicht and Helen S. Scott, JTWROS, Purple Mountain Holding, Ltd., Time Intelligent Finance Limited, Mind Trade
Assets Limited, Gold Partner Consultants Limited, Top River Assets Limited, Wang Gui Ying, Sun Li Ming, Wang Yi Jie and Pan Dai.
These shareholders in the aggregate, beneficially own 7,090,626 ordinary shares of our company and 2,959,071 ordinary shares issuable
upon the exercise of options held by such shareholders that have vested or that will vest within 60 days from April 30, 2008. Pursuant to
the investors agreement, these shareholders have agreed to vote any shares of our capital stock held by each such shareholder for the
election of directors and other matters in the manner provided in the agreement, including for the election of directors designated by
Expedia. By virtue of the investors agreement, Expedia may be deemed to beneficially own all of the shares held by these shareholders that
are parties to the investors agreement. See �Item 6: Directors, Senior Management and Employees�Directors, Executive Officers and Senior
Management� for a more detailed description of the election of our directors under the investors agreement.

** Less than 1%.
Related Party Transactions

Our Transactions with Expedia Asia Pacific

Transaction Agreement and Non-Compete Covenant. On August 4, 2004, we entered into a transaction agreement with Expedia Asia Pacific, an
affiliate of Expedia, in connection with the initial investment by Expedia Asia Pacific in eLong, which eventually gave Expedia Asia Pacific and
its ultimate parent company, Expedia, beneficial ownership of approximately 52% of our outstanding shares on a fully-diluted basis and
approximately 95% of the voting power in us. The Transaction Agreement also provides that, as long as Expedia Asia Pacific holds more than a
15% economic interest in us (unless it transfers the voting rights with respect to
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that interest to us), Expedia Asia Pacific and its affiliates will be prohibited from, directly or indirectly, owning, managing, operating or
otherwise controlling any entity or business which operates a travel service in China or which markets travel services specifically to Chinese
residents without our consent. The non-compete restriction is subject to exceptions for certain pre-existing businesses, such as Expedia�s private
label arrangements with third-party websites that are operated within China that promote Expedia�s travel services to Chinese residents (including
travel services provided in China) on their websites. In addition, Expedia Asia Pacific and it affiliates are not restricted from acquiring entities or
participating in joint ventures or strategic relationships with entities that engage in a competitive business, so long as the assets and revenues
attributable to the competitive business do not exceed 10% of the assets or revenues of the acquired entity, the joint venture or our company.

Certain other Business Arrangements with Expedia

We have entered into the following agreements or arrangements with Expedia, an affiliate of Expedia Asia Pacific, with respect to the business
aspects described below. At this time, none of the agreements or arrangements is material to our business. The agreements are known to and
approved by our audit committee.

Inventory Procurement Agreement. In August 2006, the Company entered into a contract with Travelscape LLC, which is ultimately controlled
by Expedia, Inc. The Company provides Chinese hotel inventory procuring, rating and availability negotiating service to Travelscape LLC.
RMB 2,944,925 (US$403,713) of revenue was recognized in 2007 under this agreement. At the end of 2007, the balance due from Travelscape
LLC was RMB 1,258,875 (US$172,576). The contract was terminated as of March 2008.

Global hotel inventory sourcing. We entered into an agreement with Expedia whereby we access Expedia�s global hotel inventory in order to
allow us to sell Expedia hotel products and for which we will pay to Expedia an agreed percentage of the revenues received under the
agreement. In 2007, RMB 6,570,281 (US$900,705) was charged by Expedia. As at the end of 2007, the balance due to Expedia was RMB
682,762 (US$93,598).

Private Label Technology Use. We entered into an arrangement with TravelScape whereby we and or one of our subsidiaries are able to use
Expedia�s private label technology in order to offer Expedia hotel, vacation package, car rental and destination services inventory for sale to our
customers and for which we will share in the gross profits relating to such inventory. We recorded revenue of RMB 110,383 (US$15,132) in
2007 pursuant to the agreement.

Virtual Tours. We have agreed with Expedia to enter into an arrangement whereby we charge Expedia for each virtual tour we produce on behalf
of Expedia. The agreement has not yet been finalized and no revenues have been recognized for the project.

Master Software Licensing Agreement. We have agreed to enter a cooperation with Expedia in the form of a software licensing agreement with
Expedia in order to allow Expedia to share code and schema with us. No revenue or expenses were recorded in 2007 pursuant to this
arrangement, as the agreement has not yet been documented in a written contract.

Splash Page. We agreed to enter into an arrangement with Expedia whereby Expedia maintains a splash page in China which invites visitors to
use our website instead of Expedia�s, and for which Expedia will share in the revenue from the resulting transactions. The contract has not yet
been signed and no revenues have been recognized for the project.

Guarantee. We signed a guarantee letter in January 2006 to use our commission from Beijing Gui Bin Lou Hotel to guarantee Expedia�s US
dollar payments for its customers� reservations with this hotel. In 2006, there were no fees paid by Expedia or us under this arrangement. In June
2007 we rescinded the guarantee letter due to lack of underlying transactions.
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eLong-Expedia Sublease. We entered into a 24-month sublease agreement with Expedia in November 2006. Pursuant to such agreement, eLong
Information subleased to Expedia�s wholly foreign owned enterprise, or Expedia WFOE, Expedia Business Service (Beijing) Co., Ltd., certain
office space, located in Xingke Plaza, 10 Middle Jiuxianqiao Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC. Under the sublease agreement, the Expedia
WFOE shall pay RMB 809 per month of rent and utility fees to eLong Information. Such arrangement has been approved by our lessor and is
consistent with market rates.

Master Agreement for Consulting Services between Expedia and eLong. We entered into a master agreement for consulting services with
Expedia on July 1, 2005. Pursuant to this agreement, an Expedia employee was seconded to eLong to provide certain consulting services during
the period between April 2, 2007 and October 1, 2007. Pursuant to the agreement, we were required to pay to Expedia a monthly consulting fee
and cover a one-time resettlement allowance and certain of the Expedia employee�s housing and travel allowances during his secondment. During
the year ended December 31, 2007, we recorded a total expense of RMB 644,063 under this agreement.

Services Agreement. We entered into a services agreement with Expedia with respect to the secondment of an Expedia employee to eLong to
provide advice on improvements in eLong�s operations and service. Under this agreement, we are required to pay Expedia a fixed annual
consulting fee and cover a one-time resettlement allowance and certain of the Expedia employee�s housing and travel allowances. Pursuant to this
agreement, the Expedia employee was granted 44,298 performance units under our 2004 Plan, 50 percent (50%) of which will vest on each of
the first and second anniversaries of the start date of the Expedia employee�s consulting services. During the year ended December 31, 2007, we
recorded a total expense of RMB 634,485 under this agreement. The Expedia employee also entered into our standard non-competition,
non-solicitation, confidential information and work product assignment agreements.

Agreement between Expedia and eLong with respect to Services provided by our Interim CEO. We entered into a services agreement with
Expedia that became effective as of April 16, 2007, with respect to the services of our former Interim CEO, Henrik Kjellberg, who is an Expedia
employee. Pursuant to the service agreement, we were required to pay to Expedia a monthly service fee equivalent to one half of Mr. Kjellberg�s
base salary during the period that Mr. Kjellberg served as our Interim CEO. Under the terms of the agreement, Mr. Kjellberg�s housing,
transportation and education allowances in Hong Kong were borne by Expedia and Mr. Kjellberg�s expenses related to traveling to and from
China, including accommodations in China, in order to perform his duties as our Interim CEO were borne by us. Mr. Kjellberg resigned as our
Interim CEO effective as of October 8, 2007, the date Mr. Guangfu Cui became our CEO. During the year ended December 31, 2007, we
recorded a total expense of RMB 494,373 under this agreement.

Mr. Kjellberg has also entered into our standard form Confidentiality and Non-Compete Agreement which includes terms protecting us against
competition and disclosure of confidential information. In the agreement the parties acknowledged that Mr. Kjellberg simultaneously acted as
President of Expedia Asia Pacific during the term of his services as our Interim CEO and that his proper performance of this role would not be
deemed to be in violation of his Non-Compete Agreement with eLong, provided that Mr. Kjellberg or our management duly disclosed any
potential conflicts of interest to our audit committee.

Strategic Agreement with Expedia Corporate Travel, LLC. On November 12, 2007, we entered into a strategic agreement with Expedia
Corporate Travel, LLC (�ECT�), an affiliate of Expedia Asia Pacific, pursuant to which ECT, through one or more of its affiliates (�ECT China�), is
allowed to partner with us to offer travel consulting services in China. Subject to ECT�s and ECT China�s on-going performance of their
obligations under this strategic agreement, we have agreed to waive the non-compete restrictions under the transaction agreement between
Expedia Asia Pacific and us which prohibit Expedia Asia Pacific and its affiliates (including ECT and ECT China) from, directly or indirectly,
operating a travel service in China or marketing travel services specifically to Chinese residents. In consideration of our waiver, ECT China will
pay us a waiver fee based on the revenues received by ECT China that are attributable to supplier revenue arising out of an ECT China client�s
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purchase of (i) China domestic air tickets and/or China outbound air tickets (the �air revenues�) and/or (ii) lodging in China (the �hotel revenues�).
Under this agreement, during the first 1.5 years, ECT China will pay us 33% of its air revenues and 20% of its hotel revenues; from 1.5 to 4.5
years, ECT China will pay us 20% of its air revenues and 10% of its hotel revenues; and from 4.5 to 10 years (or such later time as is provided in
the agreement), ECT China will pay us 10% of its air revenues and 5% of its hotel revenues. This revenue-sharing fee constitutes a minimum fee
in exchange for our waiver and will be paid to us even if we do not provide any travel fulfillment services to ECT China, provided that, after the
first 1.5 years, if we enter into a separate fulfillment services contract with ECT China based on industry-standard terms, we may receive a
higher revenue-sharing fee. During the year ended December 31, 2007, no waiver fees or other revenues have been paid by ECT or ECT China
to us.

Sublease Agreement. On January 1, 2008, our subsidiary eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd., or eLong Information, entered
into a one-year sublease agreement with Expedia Business Service (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (or Expedia Business Services), an affiliate of Expedia
Corporate Travel, LLC (�ECT�). Pursuant to such agreement eLong Information subleased to Expedia Business Services certain office space
located at 2nd Floor, 10# 777, Guangzhou West Road, Zhabei District, Shanghai, PRC. Under the sublease agreement, Expedia Business Services
will pay RMB110.33 per square meter per month of rent and utility fees to eLong Information. Such arrangement has been approved by our
lessor and is consistent with market rates.

Arrangements with our Affiliated Chinese Entities

Our subsidiary eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd., or eLong Information conducts operations in China through a series of
contractual arrangements with our affiliated Chinese entities, which hold the licenses and permits required to conduct our business. These
affiliated Chinese entities include:

� Beijing Information, which holds a license for Internet content provision services (which includes the right to issue online
advertisements), a license for call center services, and a license for short messaging services.

� Beijing Media, which holds a license to provide advertising services.

� Beijing Air, which holds the domestic and international air ticketing licenses.

� Beijing Travel, which holds a license for domestic PRC travel and international (inbound/outbound) travel services.

� Hangzhou Air, which holds a domestic and international air ticketing licenses.

� Beijing XICI Interactive Information Technology Co. Ltd. or XICI ICP, which plans to apply for an ICP license and a special
Bulletin Board System (BBS) permit.

As of April 30, 2008, Justin Tang, one of the members of our board of directors, Raymond Huang, our Investor Relations Manager, and
Veronica Chen, our former Director of Finance, own 75%, 12.5% and 12.5%, respectively, of Beijing Information as our nominees; Mr. Tang
and Guangfu Cui, our Chief Executive Officer, own 75% and 25% respectively, of Beijing Media as our nominees; Beijing Information and
Beijing Media own 80% and 20%, respectively, of Beijing Air; Beijing Information and Beijing Air own 70% and 30%, respectively, of Beijing
Travel; and Beijing Air own 100% of Hangzhou Air. We are in the process of replacing certain nominee shareholders for Beijing Information
(Veronica Chen and Raymond Huang) with certain employees approved by our Board and management.

Beijing Information

Technical services agreement. Beijing Information and eLong Information have entered into an amended and restated technical services
agreement. Under the agreement, eLong Information has the exclusive right to provide Beijing Information with technical services relating to its
website operations. eLong Information has also
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granted Beijing Information a non-exclusive license to use certain software owned by eLong Information. The term of the agreement is identical
to the term of incorporation of eLong Information including any extensions thereto, and may be terminated by eLong Information at any time.
Beijing Information has agreed to make quarterly payments to eLong Information for the technical services and the software license, and such
payments are based on market prices as mutually agreed by the parties. The agreement is governed by the laws of the PRC and disputes arising
under the agreement will be resolved by binding arbitration in China.

Equity interests pledge agreements. Justin Tang, Raymond Huang and Veronica Chen have entered into separate agreements with eLong
Information. Under the agreements, Mr. Tang, Mr. Huang, and Ms. Chen have pledged their entire respective ownership interests in Beijing
Information to eLong Information to secure the payment obligations of Beijing Information under the technical services agreement described
above and the obligations of Beijing Information under the trade mark license agreement, the domain name license agreement, the cooperative
agreement and the business operation agreement. Upon the occurrence of certain events of default specified in the agreements, including the
failure of Beijing Information to make required payments of the technical service fees and the software license fees to eLong Information under
the technical services agreement described above or to perform any of its obligations under the cooperative agreement, the business operation
agreement, the trade mark license agreement and the domain name license agreement, eLong Information may enforce the equity interests
pledge by complying with certain procedures required by law. The term of each agreement is identical to the term of the technical services
agreement described above. These agreements are governed by the laws of the PRC and disputes arising under the agreements will be resolved
by binding arbitration in China.

Trademark license agreement. Beijing Information and eLong Information have entered into an amended and restated trademark license
agreement. Under this agreement, eLong Information has granted Beijing Information a non-exclusive license to use certain trademarks,
provided that such license cannot be sublicensed. The agreement has a term identical to the term of incorporation of eLong Information
including any extensions thereto and may be terminated by eLong Information with 30-day notice. Beijing Information agrees to pay eLong
Information license fees based on market rates. The agreement is governed by the laws of the PRC and disputes arising under the agreement will
be resolved by binding arbitration in China.

Domain name license agreement. Beijing Information and eLong Information have entered into an amended and restated domain name license
agreement. Under this agreement, eLong Information has granted Beijing Information the right to use certain domain names including
www.eLong.com and www.eLong.net. The agreement has a term identical to the term of incorporation of eLong Information including any
extensions thereto, and may be terminated by eLong Information with a 30-day notice. Beijing Information has agreed to pay eLong Information
a license fee based on market rates. The agreement is governed by the laws of the PRC and disputes arising under the agreement will be resolved
by binding arbitration in China.

Cooperative agreement. Beijing Information and eLong Information have entered into an amended and restated cooperative agreement. Under
the agreement, eLong Information has agreed to:

� develop the hotel-booking market by negotiating with hotels on behalf of Beijing Information;

� provide relevant market and hotel information to Beijing Information;

� send booking orders to hotels and accept confirmation responses from hotels for Beijing Information; and

� accept commissions and services fees from hotels on behalf of Beijing Information.
Under this agreement, Beijing Information has also agreed to publish prices, market information and other relevant information on its website
and process customer orders and other relevant matters through the Internet
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and our call center. eLong Information is obligated to pay Beijing Information quarterly an information and service fee based on market prices.
The term of this agreement is identical to the term of incorporation of eLong Information including any extension thereto. The agreement is
governed by the laws of the PRC and disputes arising under the agreement will be resolved by binding arbitration in China.

Business operation agreement. Beijing Information, Justin Tang, Raymond Huang and Veronica Chen, and eLong Information have entered into
a business operation agreement. Under this agreement, eLong Information has agreed to provide guarantees for performance by Beijing
Information of contracts, agreements or transactions with third parties in connection with its business operations. In return, Beijing Information
has agreed to pledge its accounts receivable and mortgage or pledge all its assets to eLong Information. eLong Information may, at its sole
discretion, provide Beijing Information any performance guarantee and working capital loan guarantee in connection with Beijing Information�s
business operations. In addition, Beijing Information, Mr. Tang, Mr. Huang, and Ms. Chen have each agreed not to enter into any transaction
that would substantially affect the assets, rights, obligations or operations of Beijing Information without prior written consent from eLong
Information. Furthermore, Mr. Tang, Mr. Huang and Ms. Chen have agreed that upon instruction from eLong Information, they will appoint or
remove Beijing Information�s directors and executive officers and accept eLong Information�s guidance regarding the day-to-day operations and
financial and personnel management of Beijing Information. The term of this agreement is identical to the term of incorporation of eLong
Information including any extensions thereto and may be terminated by eLong Information with a 30-day notice. Under this business operation
agreement, if any of the agreements between eLong Information and Beijing Information terminates or expires, eLong Information has the right
but without obligation to terminate any other agreements between eLong Information and Beijing Information, including without limitation this
business operation agreement. The agreement is governed by the laws of the PRC and disputes arising under the agreement will be resolved by
binding arbitration in China.

Loan agreement. eLong Information lent RMB 12,000,000, RMB 2,000,000, and RMB 2,000,000 to Justin Tang, Raymond Huang and Veronica
Chen, respectively, for making contributions to the registered capital of Beijing Information. The full principal amount of such loans is still
outstanding as of April 30, 2008. During the fiscal year 2007, the largest amount outstanding under these loans was RMB 12,000,000, RMB
2,000,000, and RMB 2,000,000, respectively. The loans are interest free and have a repayment term of ten years and may be extended by the
parties upon mutual agreement. In addition, in the event that we exercise our option to purchase the 100% equity interest in Beijing Information
pursuant to an option agreement described below, the loan will accelerate and be repaid by the proceeds from the exercise of our option. Under
this circumstance, the loans will be discharged. In addition, under certain conditions such as the incapacity of Mr. Huang, Ms. Chen or
Mr. Tang, or the termination of employment with us of Mr. Tang, Mr. Huang or Ms. Chen the repayments under the loan agreement might
accelerate. This agreement is governed by the laws of the PRC and disputes arising under the agreement will be resolved by binding arbitration
in China. On consolidation, the loans to the officers and employees as discussed above are eliminated.

Agreement relating to exclusive purchase right of equity interest. Justin Tang, Raymond Huang and Veronica Chen have each entered into
separate agreements relating to exclusive purchase right of equity interest with eLong, Inc., Beijing Information and eLong Information. Under
these agreements, we and any third party designated by us have the right, at any time, when applicable Chinese laws and regulations change to
permit foreign invested companies to operate an Internet content provision business, to purchase from Mr. Tang, Mr. Huang and Ms. Chen their
respective equity interests in Beijing Information. The exercise price of the option is at an aggregate price equal to the actual paid-in registered
capital of Beijing Information (or pro rata portion thereof, as appropriate) unless otherwise specified under PRC laws. The proceeds from the
exercise will be applied to repay the loans extended to Mr. Tang, Mr. Huang and Ms. Chen, unless otherwise agreed by the parties in accordance
with the requirement of prevailing applicable laws. The term of each of these agreements is twenty years. The agreements are governed by the
laws of the PRC and disputes arising under the agreements will be resolved by binding arbitration in China.
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Beijing Media

Advertising technical consulting and services agreement. Beijing Media and eLong Information have entered into an amended and restated
advertising technical consulting and services agreement. Under this agreement, eLong Information has the exclusive right to provide Beijing
Media with technical services relating to the latter�s advertising operations conducted through www.elong.com. eLong Information has also
granted Beijing Media a non-exclusive license to use certain software owned by eLong Information. The term of this agreement is identical to
the term of incorporation of eLong Information including any extensions thereto, and may be terminated by eLong Information at any time.
Beijing Media is required to pay eLong technical consulting and service fees and software license fees based on market prices as agreed by the
parties. This agreement is governed by the laws of the PRC and disputes arising under the agreement will be resolved by binding arbitration in
China.

Equity interests pledge agreements. Justin Tang and Guangfu Cui have entered into separate equity pledge agreements with eLong Information.
Under the agreements, Mr. Tang and Mr. Cui have pledged their entire respective ownership interests in Beijing Media to eLong Information to
secure the payment obligations of Beijing Media under the advertising technical consulting and services agreement described above and the
obligations of Beijing Media under the business operation agreement and the trademark license agreement. Upon the occurrence of certain
events of default specified in the agreements, including the failure of Beijing Media to pay service fees and the software license fees to eLong
Information under the advertising technical consulting and services agreement or to perform any of its obligations under the business operation
agreement and the trademark license agreement, eLong Information may enforce the equity interest pledge by complying with certain provisions
required by law. The term of each agreement is identical to the term of the advertising consulting and services agreement described above. This
agreement is governed by the laws of the PRC and disputes arising under the agreement will be resolved by binding arbitration in China.

Cooperative agreement. Beijing Media and Beijing Information have entered into a cooperative agreement. Under this agreement, eLong
Information has agreed to provide website hosting and information services to Beijing Media. Beijing Media is obligated to pay Beijing
Information for such website hosting and information services based on market prices. The term of this agreement is identical to the term of
incorporation of Beijing Media including any extension thereto. This agreement is governed by the laws of the PRC and disputes arising under
the agreement will be resolved by binding arbitration in China.

Business operation agreement. Beijing Media, Justin Tang, Guangfu Cui, and eLong Information have entered into a fourth amended and
restated business operation agreement. Under this agreement, eLong Information has agreed to provide guarantees for performance by Beijing
Media of contracts, agreements or transactions with third parties in connection with its business operations. In return, Beijing Media has agreed
to pledge its accounts receivable and mortgage or pledge all its assets to eLong Information. eLong Information may, at its sole discretion,
provide Beijing Media any working capital loan guarantee in connection with its business operations. In addition, Beijing Media, Mr. Tang and
Mr. Cui have each agreed not to enter into any transaction that would substantially affect the assets, rights, obligations, or operations of Beijing
Media without prior written consent from eLong Information. Furthermore, Mr. Tang and Mr. Cui have agreed that upon instruction from eLong
Information, they will appoint or remove Beijing Media�s directors and executive officers and accept eLong Information�s guidance regarding the
day-to-day operations and financial and personnel management of Beijing Media. The term of this agreement is identical to the term of
incorporation of eLong Information including any extensions thereto, and may be terminated by eLong Information with a 30-day notice. Under
this business operation agreement, if any of the agreements between eLong Information and Beijing Media terminates or expires, eLong
Information has the right but without obligation to terminate any other agreements between eLong Information and Beijing Media, including
without limitation this business operation agreement. The agreement is governed by the laws of the PRC and disputes arising under the
agreement will be resolved by binding arbitration in China.
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Loan agreement. eLong, Inc. Justin Tang, Guangfu Cui have entered into a fourth amended and restated loan agreement, pursuant to which
eLong, Inc. lent RMB375,000 and RMB125,000 to Justin Tang and Guangfu Cui, respectively, for making contributions to the registered capital
of Beijing Media. The full principal amount of such loans is still outstanding as of April 30, 2008. During the fiscal year 2007, the largest
amount outstanding under these loans was RMB 375,000 (US$48,052) and RMB 125,000, (US$16,017) respectively. The loans are interest free
and have a repayment term of ten years and may be extended by the parties upon mutual agreement. In addition, in the event that we exercise our
option to purchase the 100% equity interest in Beijing Media pursuant to an option agreement, described below, the loan will be repaid by the
proceeds from the exercise of our option. Under this circumstance, the loans will accelerate and be discharged. In addition, under certain
conditions such as the incapacity of Mr. Cui or Mr. Tang, or the termination of employment with us of Mr. Tang or Mr. Cui, the repayments
under the loan agreement may accelerate. The agreement is governed by the laws of the PRC and disputes arising under the agreement will be
resolved by binding arbitration in China. On consolidation, the loans to the officers and employees as discussed above are eliminated.

Agreements relating to exclusive purchase right of equity interest. Justin Tang and Guangfu Cui have each entered into separate agreements
relating to the exclusive purchase right of equity interest with eLong, Inc., Beijing Media and eLong Information. Under these agreements, we
and any third party designated by us have the right, at any time, when applicable Chinese laws and regulations change, to permit foreign invested
companies to operate an advertising business, and to purchase from Mr. Tang and Mr. Cui their respective equity interests in Beijing Media. The
exercise price of the options is at an aggregate price equal to the actual paid-in registered capital of Beijing Media, (or pro rata portion thereof,
as appropriate) unless otherwise specified under the PRC laws. Upon the exercise of the options, the proceeds from the exercise will be applied
to repay the loans extended to Mr. Tang and Mr. Cui, unless otherwise agreed by the parties in accordance with the requirement of prevailing
applicable laws. The term of each of these agreements is twenty years. The agreements are governed by the laws of the PRC and disputes arising
under the agreement will be resolved by binding arbitration in China.

Trademark license agreement. Beijing Media and eLong Information have entered into a trademark license agreement. Under this agreement,
eLong Information has granted Beijing Media a non-exclusive license to use certain trademarks, provided that such license cannot be
sublicensed. The agreement has a term identical to the term of incorporation of eLong Information including any extensions thereto, and may be
terminated by eLong Information with 30-day notice. Beijing Media agrees to pay eLong Information license fees based on market rates. The
agreement is governed by the laws of the PRC and disputes arising under the agreement will be resolved by binding arbitration in China.

Beijing Air

Technical consulting and services agreement. Beijing Air and eLong Information have entered into an amended and restated technical
consulting and services agreement. Under this agreement, eLong Information has the exclusive right to provide Beijing Air technical services
relating to its air ticketing business conducted by Beijing Air through www.elong.com. eLong Information has also granted Beijing Air a
non-exclusive license to use certain software owned by eLong Information. The term of the agreement is identical to the term of incorporation of
eLong Information including any extensions thereto, and may be terminated by eLong Information at any time. Beijing Air has agreed to pay
eLong Information service fees and software license fees based on market prices as agreed by the parties. The agreement is governed by the laws
of the PRC and disputes arising under the agreement will be resolved by binding arbitration in China.

Equity interest pledge agreement. Beijing Information, eLong Information and Beijing Media have entered into an amended and restated equity
interest pledge agreement with eLong Information. Under the agreements Beijing Information and Beijing Media have pledged their entire
respective ownership interests in Beijing Air to eLong Information to secure the payment obligation of Beijing Air under the technical
consulting and services agreement described above and the performance of the obligations under the business operation agreement and the
trademark license agreement. Upon the occurrence of certain events of default specified in the agreement, including the failure of Beijing Air to
make required payments of the technical services fees and the software
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license fees to eLong Information under the technical consulting and services agreements described above or to perform any of its obligations
under the business operation agreement and the trademark license agreement, eLong Information may enforce the equity interest pledge by
complying with certain procedures required by law. The agreement has a term identical to the term of the technical consulting and services
agreement described above. The agreement is governed by the laws of the PRC and disputes arising under the agreement will be resolved by
binding arbitration in China.

Business operation agreement. Beijing Air, Beijing Information, Beijing Media and eLong Information have entered into an amended and
restated business operation agreement. Under this agreement, eLong Information has agreed to provide guarantees for the performance by
Beijing Air of contracts, agreements or transactions with third parties in connection with its business operations. In return, Beijing Air has
agreed to pledge its accounts receivable and mortgage or pledge all its assets to eLong Information. eLong Information may, at its sole
discretion, provide Beijing Air any working capital guarantee in connection with its business operations. In addition, Beijing Air, Beijing
Information and Beijing Media have each agreed that they will not enter into any transaction that would substantially affect the assets, rights,
obligations or business operations of Beijing Air without prior written consent from eLong Information. Furthermore, Beijing Information and
Beijing Media have each agreed that upon instruction from eLong Information, they will appoint or terminate Beijing Air�s directors and
executive officers and accept eLong Information�s guidance regarding the day-to-day operations and financial and personnel management of
Beijing Air. The term of this agreement is identical to the term of incorporation of eLong Information including any extensions thereto and may
be terminated by eLong Information with a 30-day notice. Under this business operation agreement, if any of the agreements between eLong
Information and Beijing Airs terminates or expires, eLong Information has the right but without obligation to terminate any other agreements
between eLong Information and Beijing Airs, including without limitation this business operation agreement. The agreement is governed by the
laws of the PRC and disputes arising under the agreement will be resolved by binding arbitration in China.

Cooperative agreement. Beijing Air and Beijing Information have entered into an amended and restated cooperative agreement. Under this
agreement, Beijing Information has agreed to provide website hosting services and call center services to Beijing Air. Beijing Air has agreed to
pay quarterly information service fees to Beijing Information based on market prices. The term of this agreement is identical to the term of
incorporation of Beijing Air including any extensions thereto. This agreement is governed by the laws of the PRC and disputes arising under the
agreement will be resolved by binding arbitration in China.

Trademark license agreement. Beijing Air and eLong Information have entered into a trademark license agreement. Under this agreement,
eLong Information has granted Beijing Air a non-exclusive license to use certain trademarks, provided that such license cannot be sublicensed.
The agreement has a term identical to the term of incorporation of eLong Information including any extensions thereto and may be terminated by
eLong Information with 30-day notice. Beijing Air agrees to pay eLong Information license fees based on market rates. The agreement is
governed by the laws of the PRC and disputes arising under the agreement will be resolved by binding arbitration in China.

Other Related Party Transactions

In January 2006, we entered into a termination and settlement agreement with Justin Tang, our former President and Chief Executive Officer, in
connection with the termination of Mr. Tang�s employment with us, which was effective as of February 17, 2006. Under the terms of the
agreement, Mr. Tang provided us with a general release of any claims related to his employment with the Company. We acknowledged that
(i) under the terms of the 2001 Plan and the terms of his employment agreement, Purple Mountain Holding Ltd.�s (an entity over which Mr. Tang
has ultimate investment power and to whom Mr. Tang had previously transferred a portion of his options) option to purchase 2,875,000 ordinary
shares had vested and (ii) under the terms of the 2004 Plan and the terms of his employment agreement, Mr. Tang�s option to purchase 262,500
ordinary shares had vested. We also agreed that in consideration for the benefits provided by Mr. Tang under the termination and settlement
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agreement, Purple Mountain Holding Ltd.�s option would also vest with respect to an additional 31,250 ordinary shares and Purple Mountain
Holding Ltd. would have until 60 days after Mr. Tang ceases to be our director for any reason to exercise the outstanding vested options. In
addition, we agreed that Mr. Tang�s option would vest with respect to an additional 43,750 ordinary shares, and that Mr. Tang would have until
60 days after he ceases to be our director for any reason to exercise the outstanding vested options. The accelerated options resulted in
compensation expenses of RMB 410,800 being recognized in 2006. The remaining unvested option to purchase 393,750 ordinary shares was
forfeited on February 17, 2006. Finally, we agreed to relax the sale restrictions placed on Mr. Tang and Purple Mountain Holding Ltd. to allow
for the sale or transfer of enough ordinary shares to cover a cashless option exercise of such portion, as more fully described in the termination
and settlement agreement, of the options held by Mr. Tang and Purple Mountain Holding Ltd. in the event Mr. Tang ceases to be our director as
a result of being removed by our board of directors or our shareholders and not as a result of his resignation.

See the descriptions of (i) the termination and settlement agreement with Thomas SooHoo, our former Chief Executive Officer and director and
(ii) the resignation and settlement agreement with Derek Palaschuk, our former CFO, under the heading �Employment Agreements with
Executive Officers� in Item 6 in this annual report.

See also the description of our employment agreements with our executive officers under the heading �Employment Agreements with Executive
Officers� in Item 6 of this annual report.

In 2007, we paid RMB 750,000 (US$102,800) in rent for accommodations to related parties of our senior management. These payments
included rental payments for the residence of our former CEO Thomas SooHoo, which residence is owned by his spouse. The payments were
made pursuant to employment agreements with the relevant senior managers, and were at market rates.

Lease Agreement for CEO�s Residence. In June 2006, pursuant to Mr. SooHoo�s employment agreement, we entered into a 2-year lease
agreement with Mr. SooHoo�s spouse whereby we paid RMB 70,000 (US$9,596) per month to lease Mr. SooHoo�s residence. The rental rate
includes the cost of management fees and utilities and is at a market rate. The lease agreement has been terminated, effective June 15, 2007, in
connection with Mr. SooHoo�s resignation from our company, with the final rent payment to be made through July 12, 2007.

eLong-Match.com eDodo Sale. In September 2006, we (along with our subsidiary and affiliated Chinese Entity) entered into an asset purchase
agreement and a cooperation agreement with Match.com (and two Match subsidiaries) for the disposition of our online dating division business
operated under the name �eDodo.� The total purchase price for the disposition was US$ 14,625,000. The disposition was effective in October 2006
at which time the purchased assets and employees were transferred to the purchasers, and 90% of the purchase price was paid to us by
Match.com. The remaining 10% of the purchase price was placed in escrow and will be released 18 months from the closing subject to
satisfaction of agreed upon conditions. The agreements contain confidentiality and non-compete provisions. The cooperation agreement provides
for general support services, including technology, human resources, finance, payroll, and legal, to be provided by us to the Match parties at
market rates, based on time records to be provided by us. During 2007 the various service fees charged by us under the cooperation agreement
were RMB 627,921 ($US 86,080) (2006: RMB 206,228). In addition, during the 18 month term of the cooperation agreement, we are obligated
to provide, at no additional charge, to the Match parties billing support services.

Match.com is a wholly owned subsidiary of InterActiveCorp (�IAC�). Barry Diller is the Chairman and chief executive officer of IAC. Through
his own holdings and the stockholders agreement between Mr. Diller and Liberty Media Corporation, Mr. Diller generally has the ability to
control the outcome of all matters submitted to a vote of IAC�s stockholders (except with regard to certain specified matters). Expedia, through
Expedia Asia Pacific, is the indirect owner of approximately 52% of our outstanding shares on a fully-diluted basis and holds approximately
95% of our voting power. Mr. Diller is Expedia�s Chairman and Senior Executive

70

Edgar Filing: EGL INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 105



Table of Contents

and holds more than a 50% voting interest in Expedia through his holdings and a stockholders agreement between Mr. Diller and Liberty Media
Corporation. The buyer (Match) and seller (eLong) in the project therefore are entities under common control, under US GAAP. The eDodo
asset transfer to Match.com and subsidiaries is thus accounted for as transfer of assets to a company under common control. Accordingly, no
gain is recognized as a result of the transfer and the excess of net sale proceeds over the carrying value of the net assets sold (RMB 94.17
million) are recorded as an increase to additional paid-in capital.

eLong-Match.com China Sublease. We entered into a 24-month sublease agreement with Match.com (�Match�) in June, 2006, in which eLong
Information subleased to Match�s wholly foreign owned enterprise, or the Match WFOE, Five Star Marketing Information Technology (Beijing)
Co., Ltd., certain office space, located in Xingke Plaza, 10 Middle Jiuxianqiao Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC. Under the sublease
agreement, the Match WFOE shall pay RMB 33,396 per month of rent and utility fees to eLong Information. Such arrangement has been
approved by our lessor and is consistent with market rates.

eLong-Interval International Sublease. In June 2006, we entered into a 12 month extension of a June 2005 sublease agreement with Interval
International Singapore (Pte) Ltd. (�Interval International�), an affiliate of IAC. Under this agreement, eLong Information subleased to Interval
International certain minor office space, located in Xingke Plaza, 10 Middle Jiuxianqiao Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing. Under the sublease
agreement, Interval International shall pay rent of US$500 per month (including utilities fees) to eLong Information. This arrangement has been
approved by our lessor and is consistent with market rates. In June 2007, the sublease was renewed for an additional one year term.

Item 8: Financial Information

Consolidated Financial Statements

See �Item 18. Financial Statements� and pages F-1 through F-33 of this annual report.

Other Financial Information

Legal Proceedings

We are not a party to any material litigation or administrative proceedings, nor are we currently aware of any pending or threatened litigation or
arbitration proceedings that could have a material adverse effect upon our business, results of operations or financial condition.

We may become subject to other legal proceedings and claims, either asserted or unasserted, in the future. Any litigation involves potential risk
and potentially significant litigation costs, and therefore there can be no assurance that any litigation which may arise in the future would not
have such a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Dividend Policy

Since our establishment, we have not declared or paid any dividends on our ordinary shares. We did not and do not intend to pay any dividends
in 2007 and 2008, respectively. The timing, amount and form of future dividends, if any, will also depend, among other things, on our future
results of operations and cash flow, our growth prospects, our capital requirements, the amount of distributions, if any, received by us from our
subsidiaries in China and other factors deemed relevant by our board of directors. Any future cash dividends on the outstanding shares would be
declared by and subject to the discretion of our board of directors and must be approved at our company�s annual general meeting of
shareholders.

Holders of ADSs would be entitled to receive dividends, if any, subject to the terms of the deposit agreement, to the same extent as holders of
ordinary shares, less the fees and expenses payable under the deposit agreement, and after deduction of any applicable taxes.
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Significant Changes since December 31, 2007

No significant change has occurred since December 31, 2007, the date of the audited consolidated financial statements included in this annual
report.

Item 9: The Offer and Listing

Nature of Trading Market

General

Our ADSs trade on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol �LONG.� The depositary for our ADSs is JPMorgan Chase Bank. As of
April 30, 2008, there were a total of 9,373,464 ADSs outstanding.

Trading on the Nasdaq National Market

Public trading of our ADSs commenced on October 28, 2004. Each ADS represents two of our ordinary shares.

For 2004 (October 28, 2004 through December 31, 2004), the trading price of our ADSs on Nasdaq ranged from a high of US$25.99 to a low of
US$13.51 per ADS. For the year ended December 31, 2005, the trading price of our ADSs ranged from a high of US$19.15 to a low of US$7.50
per ADS. For the year ended December 31, 2006, the trading price of our ADSs ranged from a high of US$16.39 to a low of US$10.03 per ADS.
For the year ended December 31, 2007, the trading price of our ADSs ranged from a high of US$13.99 to a low of US$7.10 per ADS.

The table below sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low prices for the ADSs on the Nasdaq National Market.

eLong ADSs Nasdaq
National Market

    High        Low    
US$ US$

Most Recent Fiscal Quarters
January 3, 2006 through March 31, 2006 13.30 10.14
April 3, 2006 through June 30, 2006 15.55 12.07
July 3, 2006 through September 29, 2006 15.17 13.39
October 2, 2006 through December 29, 2006 14.96 13.01
January 3, 2007 through March 31, 2007 13.99 9.51
April 2, 2007 through June 30, 2006 10.41 9.20
July 2, 2007 through September 28, 2007 10.42 8.59
October 1, 2007 through December 31, 2007 12.28 7.10
January 2, 2008 through March 31, 2008 8.77 7.38

High Low
US$ US$

Most Recent Six Months
November 2007 10.27 7.10
December 2007 8.29 7.53
January 2008 8.34 7.38
February 2008 8.67 7.69
March 2008 8.77 7.97
April 2008 9.37 8.62
On April 30, 2008, the last sale price per ADS on the Nasdaq National Market was US$9.37.
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Item 10: Additional Information

Memorandum and Articles of Association

The information called for by Item 10B (�Memorandum and Articles of Association�) is incorporated by reference to the information under the
heading �Description of Share Capital� in eLong�s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (Registration Number 333-119606), as filed with the SEC
on October 27, 2004.

Material Contracts

We have not entered into any material contracts other than in the ordinary course of business within the past two fiscal years, other than those
described elsewhere in this annual report or listed in �Item 19: Exhibits.�

We have terminated the following material contract in 2006:

Sina

eLongNet Information Technology and Beijing Sina Internet Information entered into a three year cooperation agreement (the �Sina Contract�)
effective June 2005 under which we would pay approximately US$1 million per year to Sina for our advertising on Sina�s website. Due to certain
performance issues, on July 10, 2006 we terminated the Sina Contract pursuant to a termination and settlement agreement under which we
agreed to enter into a contract with a third party advertising agency, appointed by Sina (the �AdCo Contract�). Under the AdCo Contract we are
entitled to place advertisements on Sina�s website following our payment to the advertising company. The AdCo Contract requires payments by
us of RMB2 million (US$0.25 million) per year.

Exchange Controls

The principal regulation governing foreign currency exchange in China is the Foreign Currency Administration Rules (1996), as amended.
Under these rules, the Renminbi is freely convertible for trade and service-related foreign exchange transactions, but not for direct investment,
loans or investments in securities outside China without the prior approval of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange of the People�s
Republic of China, or SAFE. In addition, the aggregate of (i) the balance of an FIE�s short-term loans from outside China, (ii) the cumulative
medium / long-term loans from outside China, and (iii) the balance of the loans guaranteed by any entity or individual outside China, shall not
exceed the difference of the FIE�s total investment and registered capital.

Pursuant to the Foreign Currency Administration Rules, foreign-invested enterprises in China may purchase foreign exchange without the
approval of SAFE for trade and service-related foreign exchange transactions by providing commercial documents evidencing these
transactions. They may also retain foreign exchange, subject to a cap approved by SAFE, to satisfy foreign exchange liabilities or to pay
dividends. However, the relevant Chinese government authorities may limit or eliminate the ability of foreign-invested enterprises to purchase
and retain foreign currencies in the future. In addition, foreign exchange transactions for direct investment, loan and investment in securities
outside China are still subject to limitations and require approvals from SAFE.

Taxation

The following discussion summarizes certain Cayman Islands tax and United States federal income tax consequences of the acquisition,
ownership and disposition of our ADSs or ordinary shares based upon laws and relevant interpretations thereof in effect as of the date of this
annual report, all of which are subject to change. Although the following discussion does not purport to describe all of the tax considerations that
may be relevant to a prospective purchaser of our ADSs or shares, this discussion summarizes certain Cayman Islands tax
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consequences to a holder of ADSs or shares that is not resident (in the case of an individual) or domiciled (in the case of a legal entity) in the
Cayman Islands (in either case, referred to herein as �not resident� or as a �non-resident�) and does not have a permanent establishment or fixed base
located in the Cayman Islands through which such ADSs or shares are held, and certain material United States federal income tax consequences
to a U.S. Holder (as that term is defined below) of ADSs or shares that is not resident (in the case of an individual) or domiciled (in the case of a
legal entity) in the Cayman Islands (in either case, referred to herein as �not resident� or as a �non-resident�) and does not have a permanent
establishment or fixed base located in the Cayman Islands through which such ADSs or shares are held.

Cayman Islands Taxation

The Cayman Islands currently levy no taxes on individuals or corporations based upon profits, income, gains or appreciation and there is no
taxation in the nature of inheritance tax or estate duty. There are no other taxes likely to be material to us levied by the Government of the
Cayman Islands except for stamp duties that may be applicable on instruments executed in, or after execution brought within the jurisdiction of,
the Cayman Islands. The Cayman Islands are not party to any double taxation treaties. There are no exchange control regulations or currency
restrictions in the Cayman Islands.

United States Federal Income Taxation

The following discussion is a summary of the material United States federal income tax considerations that may be relevant to the purchase,
ownership or sale of our ADSs or ordinary shares.

This discussion is general in nature and does not discuss all aspects of U.S. federal income taxation which may be important to particular
investors in light of their individual circumstances, including investors subject to special U.S. taxation rules, such as:

� banks;

� dealers in securities or currencies;

� financial institutions;

� insurance companies;

� tax-exempt organizations;

� persons holding ADSs or ordinary shares as part of hedging, conversion, constructive sale, straddle or other integrated transactions;

� traders in securities that have elected the mark-to-market method of accounting;

� persons who own 5% or more of our shares;

� U.S. persons whose �functional currency� is not the U.S. dollar; or
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� Non-U.S. Holders (as defined below).
This discussion is based in part on representations by the depositary and assumes that each obligation under the deposit agreement and any
related agreement will be performed in accordance with its terms. Furthermore, the discussion below is based upon the provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Code, and U.S. Treasury regulations (including temporary and proposed regulations), rulings and
judicial decisions thereunder as of the date hereof. Such authorities are subject to change, possibly on a retroactive basis, which may result in
U.S. federal income tax consequences different from those discussed below.

A U.S. Holder considering an investment in our ADSs or ordinary shares is urged to consult its own tax advisor concerning the U.S. federal,
state, local and non-U.S. income and other tax consequences.
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A �U.S. Holder� for purposes of this discussion is a beneficial owner of ADSs or ordinary shares that is a U.S. person. A �U.S. person� is:

� a citizen or resident of the United States;

� a corporation or other entity taxable as a corporation created or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state thereof,
or the District of Columbia;

� an estate the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation, regardless of its source; or

� a trust if it is subject to the primary supervision of a court within the United States and one or more U.S. persons have the authority
to control all substantial decisions of the trust or has a valid election in effect under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations to be treated
as a U.S. person.

A beneficial owner of ADSs or ordinary shares that is not a U.S. Holder is referred to herein as a �Non-U.S. Holder.�

If a partnership holds ADSs or ordinary shares, the tax treatment of a partner will generally depend on the status of the partner and the activities
of the partnership. A partner of a partnership holding ADSs or ordinary shares is urged to consult its own tax advisor regarding an investment in
our ADSs or ordinary shares.

ADSs. In general, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, a U.S. Holder of ADSs will be treated as the owner of the underlying ordinary shares
that are represented by such ADSs. Deposits and withdrawals of ordinary shares in exchange for ADSs will not be subject to U.S. federal income
taxation.

Distributions on ADSs or ordinary shares. Subject to the application of the passive foreign investment company rules, as discussed below, the
gross amount of any distributions in respect of the ADSs or ordinary shares will be subject to tax as dividend income to the extent of our current
and accumulated earnings and profits, as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles. Subject to certain limitations, dividends paid to
non-corporate U.S. Holders, including individuals, may be eligible for a reduced rate of taxation if we are deemed to be or will be treated as a
�qualified foreign corporation� for U.S. federal income tax purposes and provided that such holder satisfies certain holding period requirements
with respect to the ownership of our ADS, or ordinary shares. Subject to the exceptions discussed below, dividends paid by a foreign corporation
will be treated as being paid by a qualified foreign corporation if the corporation is:

� a corporation incorporated in a possession of the United States;

� a foreign corporation that is eligible for the benefits of a comprehensive income tax treaty with the United States that includes an
exchange of information program; or

� a foreign corporation whose stock with respect to which a dividend is paid or whose ADSs backed by such stock are readily tradable
on an established securities market within the United States.

A foreign corporation (even if it is a corporation described above) does not constitute a qualified foreign corporation if the foreign corporation is
a passive foreign investment company. Although we believe that dividends paid by us will be treated as being paid by a qualified foreign
corporation, no assurance can be given in this regard. In addition, our status as a qualified foreign corporation may change. A U.S. Holder that
exchanges its ADSs for ordinary shares may not be eligible for the reduced rate of taxation on dividends if the ordinary shares are not deemed to
be readily tradable on an established securities market within the United States.

Dividends will be includable in a U.S. Holder�s gross income on the date actually or constructively received by the depositary, in the case of
ADSs or, in the case of ordinary shares, by such U.S. Holder. These dividends will not be eligible for the dividends-received deduction generally
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To the extent that the amount of any distribution exceeds our current and accumulated earnings and profits, the distribution will first be treated
as a tax-free return of capital, causing a reduction in the adjusted basis of the ADSs or ordinary shares, and the balance in excess of adjusted
basis will be taxed as capital gain.
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Sale, exchange or other disposition of ADSs or ordinary shares. Subject to the application of the passive foreign investment company rules, as
discussed below, upon the sale, exchange or other disposition of ADSs or ordinary shares, a U.S. Holder generally will recognize capital gain or
loss equal to the difference between the amount realized upon the sale, exchange or other disposition and the adjusted tax basis of the U.S.
Holder in the ADSs or ordinary shares. The capital gain or loss generally will be long-term capital gain or loss if, at the time of sale, exchange or
other disposition, the U.S. Holder has held the ADS or ordinary share for more than one year. Net long-term capital gains of non-corporate U.S.
Holders, including individuals, are eligible for reduced rates of taxation. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations. Any gain or
loss that a U.S. Holder recognizes generally will be treated as gain or loss from sources within the United States for U.S. foreign tax credit
limitation purposes.

Passive foreign investment company rules. In general, we will be classified as a passive foreign investment company for any taxable year in
which either (a) at least 75% of our gross income is passive income or (b) at least 50% of the value (determined on the basis of a quarterly
average) of our assets is attributable to assets that produce or are held for the production of passive income. For this purpose, passive income
generally includes dividends, interest, royalties, rents (other than rents and royalties derived in the active conduct of a trade or business and not
derived from a related person), annuities and gains from assets that produce passive income. If we own at least 25% by value of the equity shares
of another corporation, we will be treated for purposes of the passive foreign investment company tests as owning a proportionate share of the
assets of the other corporation, and as receiving directly a proportionate share of the other corporation�s income.

We believe, based on the projected composition of our income and valuation of our assets, that we should not be classified as a passive foreign
investment company for U.S. federal income tax purposes, although no assurance can be given in this regard. Whether we are a passive foreign
investment company for any particular taxable year is determined on an annual basis and will depend on the composition of our income and
assets, including goodwill. The calculation of goodwill will be based, in part, on the then market value of our capital stock, which is subject to
fluctuation. In addition, the composition of our income and assets will be affected by how we spend the cash we raised in our initial public
offering. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that we will not be classified as a passive foreign investment company in the current or any
future taxable year.

If we are a passive foreign investment company for any taxable year during which a U.S. Holder has an equity interest in us, unless the U.S.
Holder makes a mark-to-market election as discussed below, such U.S. Holder will be subject to special tax rules in any future taxable year,
regardless of whether we are classified as a passive foreign investment company in such future years with respect to (a) �excess distributions� and
(b) gain from the disposition of stock. Excess distributions are defined generally as the excess of the amount received with respect to the equity
interests in the taxable year over 125% of the average annual distributions received in the shorter of either the three previous years or a U.S.
Holder�s holding period before the taxable year and must be allocated ratably to each day of the U.S. Holder�s holding period.

Taxation of Holders of ADSs or Shares in Other Countries

Holders or potential holders of our ADSs who are resident or otherwise taxable in countries other than the United States are urged to consult
their own tax advisors concerning the overall tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of our ADSs.

Documents on Display

We have previously filed with the SEC our registration statement on Form F-1, as amended, and prospectus under Securities Act with respect to
our ADSs.

We are subject to the periodic reporting and other informational requirements of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange Act.
Under the Exchange Act, we are required to file reports and other
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information with the SEC. Specifically, we are required to file annually a Form 20-F no later than six months after the close of each fiscal year,
which is December 31. As a foreign private issuer, we are exempt from the rules under the Exchange Act prescribing the furnishing and content
of quarterly reports and proxy statements, and our officers, directors, and principal shareholders are exempt from the reporting and short-swing
profit recovery provisions of Section 16 of the Exchange Act.

Copies of reports and other information, when so filed, may be inspected without charge and may be obtained at prescribed rates at the public
reference facilities maintained by the Securities and Exchange Commission at Room 100 F Street, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549. You can
request copies of these documents upon payment of a duplicating fee, by writing to the SEC. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further
information on the operation of the public reference rooms. The SEC also maintains an Internet site at http://www.sec.gov that contains reports,
proxy and information statements, and other information regarding registrants that make electronic filings with the SEC using its EDGAR
system.

Our financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Unless otherwise required by Nasdaq�s Marketplace Rules or the rules and regulations of the Exchange Act, we will make available our annual
reports on Form 20-F (which will include annual audited consolidated financial statements) to our shareholders by posting the annual reports on
our website, provided that a hard copy of our annual reports will be provided to shareholders upon request, free of charge.

Subsidiary Information

For a listing of our subsidiaries, see Item 4 of this annual report, �Information on the Company�Organizational Structure.�

Item 11: Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk

Please refer to Item  5. �Operating and Financial Review and Prospects�Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.�

Item 12: Description of Securities Other Than Equity Securities

Not applicable.

PART II

Item 13. Defaults, Dividend Arrearages and Delinquencies

Not applicable.

Item 14. Material Modifications to the Rights of Security Holders and Use of Proceeds

Use of Proceeds

The following discussion relates to the initial public offering our ADSs by us and certain selling shareholders, pursuant to a registration
statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-119606), which was completed on November 2, 2004. The registration statement was declared effective by
the SEC on October 27, 2004.

We received net proceeds (after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and other expenses related to the offering) of approximately
US$42 million from the offering 4,602,547 ADSs, representing 9,205,094 ordinary shares. None of the transaction expenses included payments
to our directors, executive officers, persons owning 10% or more of our equity securities or our affiliates. Deutsche Bank Securities, WR
Hambrecht + Co, and Allen & Company LLC were the underwriters for the offering.
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We did not receive any proceeds from the sale of our ADSs by the selling shareholders.

From November 2, 2004 through April 30, 2008, we have used a minor portion of the net proceeds from our initial public offering to fund the
acquisitions of the Raytime and Fortunetrip enterprises, and also to fund a minor percentage of our operations. The majority of our operations
are funded through our operating revenues.

Item 15. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) under the Exchange Act, our management, including our Chief Executive Officer, or CEO, Guangfu Cui and our
CFO, Chris Chan, performed an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined
in Rules 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act, as of December 31, 2007. Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that the
material financial and non-financial information required to be disclosed in this annual report on Form 20-F and filed with the SEC is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported in a timely manner. Based on this evaluation, our management, including our CEO and CFO, concluded
that, as of the end of the period covered by this annual report, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Management�s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f)
under the Exchange Act. Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our CEO and CFO, we conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, our management
concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007. Our management has reviewed its
assessment with our audit committee.

Our independent registered public accounting firm, KPMG, has issued an attestation report on our internal control over financial reporting. The
report on the audit of internal control over financial reporting appears in this Form 20-F.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

eLong, Inc.:

We have audited eLong, Inc.�s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal
Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). eLong, Inc.�s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management�s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company�s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
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A company�s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company�s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company�s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, eLong, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007,
based on criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
balance sheets of eLong, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders� equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007,
and our report dated June 24, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

/s/

KPMG

Hong Kong, China

June 24, 2008

Limitations on Controls.

Management does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all
misstatements, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the sound control procedures. Any control
system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control
system are met. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all
control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within eLong have been detected.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

As required by Rule 13(a)-15(d), under the Exchange Act, our management, including our CEO and CFO, also conducted an evaluation of our
internal control over financial reporting to determine whether any changes occurred during the period covered by this report that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. Based on that evaluation, it has been
determined that there has been no such change during the period covered by this annual report.

Item 16A. Audit Committee Financial Expert.

The audit committee of our board of directors currently consists of Leo Austin, Michael Scown, and Thomas Gurnee, who also serves as the
chairman of the audit committee. Our board of directors has determined
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that all of our audit committee members are �independent� under Nasdaq�s Marketplace Rules and Section 10A(m) of the U.S. Securities Exchange
Act of 1934. In addition, our board of directors has determined that Mr. Gurnee is an �audit committee financial expert� as defined in Item 16A of
the Instructions to Form 20-F and that Messrs. Austin and Scown each has the requisite financial knowledge and experience to be qualified to
serve as a member of our audit committee.

Item 16B. Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

Our board of directors has adopted a code of business conduct and ethics applicable to every employee of our company, including our CEO and
CFO, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions, consistent with the requirements of the Nasdaq
National Market. During 2007 we made certain minor revisions or amendments to our code of ethics, which are applicable to every employee of
our company, to clarify our existing rules relating to data security, appropriate payment levels, and contract approval procedures. Our code of
ethics is posted on our website at: www.eLong.com, under the �Investor Relations� page.

Item 16C. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

KPMG have acted as the independent public accountants of our company and its subsidiaries for 2006 and 2007. The following table sets forth
the aggregate fees by categories specified below in connection with certain professional services rendered by KPMG for the periods indicated.

2006 2007
RMB RMB
(in �000) (in �000)

Audit Fees(1) 3,446 4,515
All Other Fees 200 �  
Total 3,646 4,515

(1) �Audit Fees� are the aggregate fees billed by KPMG for the audit of our consolidated annual financial statements and procedures related to
our quarterly financial statements. We were billed by KPMG approximately RMB3.4million for 2006, and RMB4.5million (US$0.6
million) for 2007 in Audit Fees. We have not yet been fully billed by KPMG for audit fees in relation to the year ended December 31,
2007.

Our audit committee is responsible for the retention of our independent registered public accounting firm, which currently is KPMG. Our audit
committee has adopted its own rules of procedure, in the form of an audit committee charter. The audit committee�s rules of procedure provide
for a process with respect to the prior approval of all non-audit services to be performed by our independent auditors. Our audit committee
reports to our board of directors regarding the scope and results of our annual audits, compliance with our accounting and financial policies and
management�s procedures and policies related to the adequacy of our internal accounting controls.

Our audit committee was formed during 2004. In 2007 our audit committee pre-approved all of the audit services provided by KPMG.

Item 16D: Exemptions from the Listing Standards for Audit Committees

Not applicable.

Item 16E. Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

In December 2004, Expedia Asia Pacific exercised its warrant and on January 7, 2005, purchased 17,362,134 of our high-vote ordinary shares
for an aggregate cash purchase price of US$107.8 million, or US$6.21 per share (the equivalent of $12.42 per ADS). We used approximately
one-half of the proceeds from
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Expedia Asia Pacific�s warrant exercise, or US$53,909,426.07, or US$6.21 per share, to purchase 8,681,067 ordinary shares from certain of our
existing shareholders. The repurchase from existing shareholders were made pursuant to the agreements entered into with these shareholders in
July 2004 in connection with Expedia Asia Pacific�s initial investment in us and the issuance of the warrant to Expedia Asia Pacific. In April
2006, a post-closing adjustment was made such that the warrant exercise price and share repurchase price was adjusted to $6.20434 per share
(the equivalent of $12.40868 per ADS). The warrant exercise price and share repurchase price are no longer subject to any adjustments.
Notwithstanding the adjustment in the warrant exercise price, we did not repurchase any of our equity securities during the year ended
December 31, 2006 or the year ended December 31, 2007.

On February 27, 2008, we announced the approval by our board of directors of a share buy back of up to US$20 million.

PART III

Item 17: Financial Statements

We have elected to provide financial statements pursuant to Item 18.

Item 18: Financial Statements

Our consolidated financial statements are included in this annual report at pages F-1 through F-33.

Item 19: Exhibits

1.1 Second Amended and Restated Memorandum of Association of Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 from
Amendment No. 1 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on October 12, 2004).

1.2 Second Amended and Restated Articles of Association of Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 from Amendment No.
1 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
October 12, 2004).

2.1 Warrant Agreement by and among Registrant and IACT Asia Pacific Limited (an entity currently known as Expedia Asia Pacific)
dated July 23, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no.
333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

2.2 Deposit Agreement between Registrant and JPMorgan Chase Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99(a) to the company�s
Registration Statement on Form F-6 (file no. 333-119617) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 8, 2004).

2.3 Amendment No. 1 to Deposit Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99(a)(2) to the company�s Post-Effective Registration
Statement on Form F-6 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 11, 2005).

3.1 Investors Agreement by and among the Registrant, IACT Asia Pacific Limited (an entity currently known as Expedia Asia Pacific)
and the other persons who are parties thereto dated as of July 23, 3004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the company�s
Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004.

4.1 Stock Option Agreement by and between Registrant and IACT Asia Pacific Limited (an entity currently known as Expedia Asia
Pacific) dated July 23, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.10 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no.
333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).
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4.2 Stock Option Agreement by and between Registrant and IACT Asia Pacific Limited (an entity currently known as Expedia Asia
Pacific) dated October 1, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file
no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.3 Letter Agreement by and between Registrant and IACT Asia Pacific Limited (an entity currently known as Expedia Asia Pacific)
dated October 1, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.12 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no.
333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.4 Employment Agreement by and between eLong, Inc., InterActiveCorp, and Justin Tang dated July 23, 2004 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.5 Employment Agreement by and between eLong, Inc., InterActiveCorp, and Derek Palaschuk dated July 23, 2004 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.6 Employment Agreement by and between eLong, Inc., InterActiveCorp, and Richard Chen dated July 23, 2004 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.7 Employment Agreement by and between eLong, Inc., InterActiveCorp, and Frank Zheng dated July 23, 2004 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.8 Employment Agreement by and between eLong, Inc. and Thomas SooHoo dated December 19, 2005 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.8 from Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 20-F filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 29, 2006).

4.9 Amended and Restated Technical Services Agreement by and between eLongNet Information Technologies (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and
Beijing eLong Information Technologies Co., Ltd. dated July 20, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the company�s
Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.10 Amended and Restated Equity Interests Pledge Agreement by and between eLong Net Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
and Justin Tang dated July 20, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form F-1
(file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.11 Amended and Restated Trademark License Agreement between eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and Beijing
eLong Information Technology Co., Ltd. dated July 20, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.12 Amended and Restated Domain Name License Agreement between eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and
Beijing eLong Information Technology Co., Ltd. dated July 20, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the company�s
Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.13 Amended and Restated Cooperative Agreement by and between eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and Beijing
eLong Information Technology Co., Ltd. dated July 20, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the company�s
Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.14 Amended and Restated Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement by and between Registrant, Justin Tang, eLongNet Information
Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd., and Beijing eLong Information Technology
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Co., Ltd. dated July 20, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file
no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.15 Cooperative Agreement by and between Beijing Asia Media Interactive Advertising Co., Ltd. and Beijing eLong Information
Technology Co., Ltd. dated July 20, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the company�s Registration Statement on
Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.16 Trademark License Agreement by and between eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and Beijing Asia Media
Interactive Advertising Co., Ltd. dated July 20, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the company�s Registration
Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.17 Amended and Restated Advertising Technical Consulting and Services Agreement by and between eLongNet Information
Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and Beijing Asia Media Interactive Advertising Co., Ltd. dated July 20, 2004 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.18 Amended and Restated Equity Interests Pledge Agreement by and between eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
and Justin Tang dated as on July 20, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the company�s Registration Statement on
Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.19 Amended and Restated Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement by and between Registrant, Justin Tang, Beijing Asia Media
Interactive Advertising Co., Ltd., and eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. dated July 20, 2004 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission of October 7, 2004).

4.20 Amended and Restated Technical Consulting Services Agreement by and between eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co.,
Ltd., Beijing Air Services Co., Ltd. dated July 20, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the company�s Registration
Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.21 Amended and Restated Equity Interests Pledge Agreement by and between eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.,
Beijing eLongNet Information Technology Co., Ltd. and Beijing Asia Media Interactive Advertising Co., Ltd. dated July 20, 2004
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.22 Amended and Restated Business Operation Agreement by and between eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.,
Beijing eLong Air Services Co., Ltd., eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and Beijing Asia Media Interactive
Advertising Co., Ltd. dated July 20, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to the company�s Registration Statement on
Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.23 Amended and Restated Cooperative Agreement by and between Beijing Air Services Co., Ltd. and Beijing eLong Information Co.,
Ltd. dated July 20, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no.
333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.24 Trademark License Agreement by and between eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and Beijing eLong Air
Services Co., Ltd. dated July 20, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form
F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).
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4.25 Transaction Agreement by and among IACT Asia Pacific Limited (an entity currently known as Expedia Asia Pacific),
InterActiveCorp, eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd., eLongNet Hi-Tech (Beijing) Co. dated July 23, 2004
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.26 Transfer and Escrow Contribution Agreement by and among IACT Asia Pacific Limited (an entity currently known as Expedia Asia
Pacific), certain selling shareholders and Registrant dated July 23, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to the company�s
Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2004).

4.27 eLong, Inc. Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.13 to Amendment No. 1 to the company�s Registration
Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 12, 2004).

4.28 eLong, Inc. Stock and Annual Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.14 to Amendment No. 1 to the company�s
Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no. 333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 12, 2004).

4.29 Letter Agreement dated as of October 27, 2004 by and between eLong and IACT Asia Pacific Limited (an entity currently known as
Expedia Asia Pacific) (incorporated by reference to Amendment No. 4 to the company�s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (file no.
333-119606) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 27, 2004).

4.30 The Second Amended and Restated Equity Interests Pledge Agreement by and between eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing)
Co., Ltd. and Veronica Chen dated as of December 30, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.44 from Registrant�s Annual
Report on Form 20-F filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 29, 2005).

4.31 The Second Amended and Restated Business Operation Agreement by and between eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing)
Co., Ltd., Beijing eLong Information Technology Co., Ltd., Justin Tang, Veronica Chen and Raymond Huang dated December 30,
2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.45 from Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 20-F filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on June 29, 2005).

4.32 The Second Amended and Restated Equity Interests Pledge Agreement between eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co.,
Ltd. and Linda Dong dated December 30, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.46 from Registrant�s Annual Report on Form
20-F filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 29, 2005).

4.33 The Second Amended and Restated Equity Interests Pledge Agreement between eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co.,
Ltd., and Raymond Huang dated December 30, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.47 from Registrant�s Annual Report on
Form 20-F filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 29, 2005).

4.34 The Second Amended and Restated Business Operation Agreement among the eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co.,
Ltd., Beijing Asia Media Interactive Advertising Co., Ltd., Justin Tang, and Linda Dong dated December 30, 2004 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.48 from Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 20-F filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
June 29, 2005).

4.35 The Second Amended and Restated Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement by and among Registrant, Veronica Chen, Beijing eLong
Information Technology Co., Ltd., and eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. dated December 30, 2004.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.49 from Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 20-F filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on June 29, 2005)

4.36 The Second Amended and Restated Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement by and among Registrant, Raymond Huang, Beijing eLong
Information Technology Co., Ltd., and eLongNet Information
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Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. dated December 30, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.51 from Registrant�s Annual Report
on Form 20-F filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 29, 2005).

4.37 The Second Amended and Restated Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement by and between Registrant, Linda Dong, Beijing Asia
Media Interactive Advertising Co., Ltd., and eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. dated December 30, 2004
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.52 from Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 20-F filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on June 29, 2005).

4.38 The Equity Interests Pledge Agreement by and between eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and Tian Binbin
dated as of March 22, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.56 from Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 20-F filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on June 29, 2005).

4.39 The Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement by and between Beijing eLong Information Technology Co., Ltd and Tian Binbin dated as
of March 22, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.57 from Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 20-F filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on June 29, 2005).

4.40 The Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement by and between Registrant, Justin Tang, Veronica Chen, and Raymond Huang
dated December 30, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.58 from Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 20-F filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on June 29, 2005).

4.41 The Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement by and between Registrant, Justin Tang and Linda Dong dated December 30,
2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.59 from Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 20-F filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on June 29, 2005).

4.42 The Loan Agreement by and between Beijing eLong Information Technology Co., Ltd. and Tian Binbin dated as of March 22, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.60 from Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 20-F filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on June 29, 2005).

4.43 Termination Agreement by and between eLong, Inc. and SINA Corporation dated as of July 10, 2006. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.43 from Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 20-F filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 29, 2007)

4.44 Termination Notice to Chan Chi Shan with respect to the termination of Lease Contract dated as of June 19, 2006. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.44 from Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 20-F filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June
29, 2007)

4.45 Form of Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of September 12, 2006, by and between Match.com Offshore Holdings, Ltd., Five Star
Matchmaking Information Technology (Beijing) Co. Ltd., eLong, Inc. and eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.45 from Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 20-F filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on June 29, 2007)

4.46 Form of Content Cooperation Agreement dated as of October 2, 2006 by and between Five Star Matchmaking Information
Technology (Beijing) Co. Ltd., Beijing eLong Information Technology Co., Ltd., and eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing)
Co., Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.46 from Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 20-F filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on June 29, 2007)

4.47 Termination and Settlement Agreement by and between eLong, Inc. and Richard Xue effective as of March 31, 2005 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.61 from Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 20-F filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
June 30, 2005).

4.48 Termination and Settlement Agreement by and between eLong, Inc. and Justin Tang dated as of January 23, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.44 from Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 20-F filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
June 29, 2006).
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  4.49 Employment Agreement by and between eLong, Inc. and Chris Chan effective as of February 26, 2007.

  4.50 Termination and Settlement Agreement by and between eLong, Inc. and Thomas Soohoo, effective as of May 24, 2007.

  4.51 The Third Amended and Restated Loan Agreement dated July 30, 2007 by and among Registrant, Justin Tang and Thomas Zheng.

  4.52 The Third Amended and Restated Equity Interests Pledge Agreement dated July 30, 2007 by and between eLongNet Information
Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and Thomas Zheng.

  4.53 The Third Amended and Restated Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement dated July 30, 2007 by and among Registrant, Thomas
Zheng, Beijing Asia Media Interactive Advertising Co., Ltd., and eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

  4.54 The Third Amended and Restated Business Operation Agreement dated July 30, 2007 by and among eLongNet Information
Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd., Beijing Asia Media Interactive Advertising Co., Ltd., Justin Tang, and Thomas Zheng.

  4.55 Services Agreement by and between eLong, Inc. and Expedia Asia Pacific Limited on Henrik�s service as eLong�s Interim Chief
Executive Officer, effective as of April 16, 2007.

  4.56 Renewal of Employment Agreement by and between eLong, Inc. and Frank Zheng effective as of September 6, 2007.

  4.57 Renewal of Employment Agreement by and between eLong, Inc. and Richard Chen effective as of September 13, 2007.

  4.58 Employment Agreement by and between eLong, Inc. and Guangfu Cui, effective as of October 8, 2007.

  4.59 Strategic Agreement for Cooperation in the PRC Corporate Travel Market between eLong, Inc and Expedia Corporate Travel, LLC
(�ECT�), effective as of November 12, 2007.

  4.60 Waiver Agreement by and between eLong Inc, eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and Expedia Inc. effective as
of November 13, 2007.

  4.61 The Fourth Amended and Restated Loan Agreement dated December 28, 2007 by and between Registrant, Justin Tang and Guangfu
Cui.

  4.62 The Fourth Amended and Restated Equity Interests Pledge Agreement dated December 28, 2007 between eLongNet Information
Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and Guangfu Cui.

  4.63 The Fourth Amended and Restated Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement dated December 28, 2007 by and between Registrant,
Guangfu Cui, Beijing Asia Media Interactive Advertising Co., Ltd., and eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

  4.64 The Fourth Amended and Restated Business Operation Agreement dated December 28, 2007 by and among the eLongNet
Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd., Beijing Asia Media Interactive Advertising Co., Ltd., Justin Tang, and Guangfu Cui.

  8.1 Subsidiaries of Registrant.

12.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Required by Rule 13a-14(a).

12.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Required by Rule 13a-14(a).

13.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Required by Rule 13a-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States
Code.

13.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Required by Rule 13a-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States
Code.

15.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

15.2 Consent of TransAsia Lawyers.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant certifies that it meets all of the requirements for
filing this annual report on Form 20-F and has duly caused this annual report to be signed on our behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

Date: June 28, 2008

eLong, Inc.

/s/    GUANGFU CUI        

Guangfu Cui

Chief Executive Officer

/s/    CHRIS CHAN        

Chris Chan

Chief Financial Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

eLong, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of eLong, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders� equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2007. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of eLong, Inc.
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 2(h) and 13 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2006, the Company changed its method of
accounting for employee share-based arrangements as required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004),
�Share-based Payment�. Further, as discussed in Note 2(w) to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2007, the Company
changed its presentation of business tax and surcharges as permitted by Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No.06-3, �How Taxes Collected from
Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement (That is, Gross versus Net Presentation)�.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), eLong, Inc.�s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated June 24, 2008 expressed an
unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007 have been translated into United States
dollars solely for the convenience of the reader. We have audited the translation and, in our opinion, such financial statements expressed in
Renminbi have been translated into United States dollars on the basis set forth in Note 2(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

/s/

KPMG

Hong Kong, China

June 24, 2008
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eLong, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,
2006 2007 2007
RMB

(Note 3)

RMB US$

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,199,322,679 1,138,446,505 156,067,023
Restricted assets �  11,274,166 1,545,550
Short-term investment �  19,120,000 2,621,117
Accounts receivable, net 28,237,397 41,138,242 5,639,547
Due from related parties 2,098,705 924,024 126,672
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 10,682,685 15,644,755 2,144,704

Total current assets 1,240,341,466 1,226,547,692 168,144,613

Property and equipment, net 37,809,238 43,961,584 6,026,593
Goodwill 30,000,019 30,000,019 4,112,634
Intangible assets, net 3,745,944 2,192,265 300,533
Other non-current assets 23,011,591 28,966,622 3,970,967

Total assets 1,334,908,258 1,331,668,182 182,555,340

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 32,753,234 57,957,209 7,945,221
Income taxes payable 14,707,758 1,238,452 169,777
Due to related parties 3,373,739 4,528,560 620,810
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 83,161,985 83,233,309 11,410,264

Total current liabilities 133,996,716 146,957,530 20,146,072

Other liabilities 1,112,247 100,000 13,709

Total liabilities 135,108,963 147,057,530 20,159,781

Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders� equity
Series A preferred shares: US$0.01 par value; Authorized shares: 8,205,620 Issued
and outstanding shares: Nil �  �  �  
Series B preferred shares: US$ 0.01 par value Authorized shares: 50,000,000 Issued
and outstanding shares: Nil �  �  �  
Ordinary shares: US$0.01 par value Authorized shares: 150,000,000 Issued shares:
23,023,671 and 23,073,671 Outstanding shares: 22,108,629 and 22,318,501 1,828,837 1,844,849 252,906
High vote ordinary shares: US$0.01 par value; Authorized shares: 50,000,000 Issued
and outstanding shares: 28,550,704 2,362,999 2,362,999 323,938
Additional paid-in capital 1,297,692,517 1,308,046,907 179,317,153
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (28,566) �  �  
Accumulated deficit (102,056,492) (127,644,103) (17,498,438)
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Total shareholders� equity 1,199,799,295 1,184,610,652 162,395,559

Total liabilities and shareholders� equity 1,334,908,258 1,331,668,182 182,555,340

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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eLong, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year ended December 31,
2005 2006 2007 2007
RMB

(Note 3)

RMB

(Note 3)

RMB US$

Revenues:
Travel 178,459,309 255,960,988 303,846,548 41,653,627
Other 11,869,843 8,582,692 11,550,123 1,583,380

Total revenues 190,329,152 264,543,680 315,396,671 43,237,007
Business tax and surcharges 10,487,647 14,702,612 17,810,292 2,441,572

Net revenues 179,841,505 249,841,068 297,586,379 40,795,435
Cost of services 40,446,988 62,245,355 82,497,585 11,309,405

Gross profit 139,394,517 187,595,713 215,088,794 29,486,030
Operating expenses:
Service development 36,297,589 41,921,653 48,602,279 6,662,775
Sales and marketing 93,184,664 99,091,184 126,971,094 17,406,176
General and administrative 55,506,942 61,534,710 52,005,466 7,129,310
Amortization of intangibles 634,055 1,060,000 1,060,000 145,313
Impairment of property and equipment and intangible assets �  �  1,038,896 142,420

Loss from operations (46,228,733) (16,011,834) (14,588,941) (1,999,964)
Other income (expense):
Interest income 30,940,838 51,429,793 55,470,781 7,604,361
Foreign currency exchange loss, net (25,862,167) (33,016,052) (65,819,578) (9,023,055)
Other income (expense), net (531,318) (10,775) 131,630 18,045

Total other income (expenses), net 4,547,353 18,402,966 (10,217,167) (1,400,649)

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes (41,681,380) 2,391,132 (24,806,108) (3,400,613)
Income tax expense 1,603,154 2,835,259 885,343 121,369

Loss from continuing operations (43,284,534) (444,127) (25,691,451) (3,521,982)
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations before income taxes (including gain
on disposal of RMB 2,649,682 in 2006) (16,934,889) 1,226,768 112,260 15,389
Income tax expense of discontinued operations 298,236 24,302 8,420 1,154

Total earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (17,233,125) 1,202,466 103,840 14,235

Net earnings (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (60,517,659) 758,339 (25,587,611) (3,507,747)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle �  282,072 �  �  

Net earnings (loss) (60,517,659) 1,040,411 (25,587,611) (3,507,747)

Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Continuing operations (0.87) (0.01) (0.51) (0.07)
Discontinued operations (0.35) 0.02 0.00* 0.00*
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Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle �  0.01 �  �  

Basic earnings (loss) per share (1.22) 0.02 (0. 51) (0.07)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Continuing operations (0.87) (0.01) (0.51) (0.07)
Discontinued operations (0.35) 0.02 0.00* 0.00*
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle �  0.01 �  �  

Diluted earnings (loss) per share (1.22) 0.02 (0.51) (0.07)

*:Representing per share amount which is less than RMB 0.01.
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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eLong, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders� Equity and Comprehensive Income (loss)

Ordinary shares
High vote Ordinary

shares
Stock
warrant

Additional
paid-in
capital

Deferred
compensation

Accumulated
other

comprehensive
income (loss)

Accumulated
deficit

Total
shareholders�

equity
Number
of Shares Amount

Number
of Shares Amount

RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
December 31,
2004 28,652,551 2,372,079 11,188,570 926,022 84,906,056 673,132,565 (40,107,620) 240,001 (42,579,244) 678,889,859

Unrealized loss
on investment
securities, net
of taxes of nil �  �  �  �  �  �  �  (171,765) �  (171,765)
Net loss �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  (60,517,659) (60,517,659)

Total
comprehensive
loss �  �  (60,689,424)
Grant of stock
options and
Performance
Units �  �  �  �  �  5,178,429 (5,178,429) �  �  �  
Exercise of
stock options 1,718,250 141,844 �  �  �  11,320,517 �  �  �  11,462,361
Exercise of
stock warrants,
net of expenses 98,973 8,192 17,362,134 1,436,977 (84,906,056) 966,551,480 �  �  �  883,090,593
Indemnity
refund �  �  �  �  �  (1,005,341) �  �  �  (1,005,341)
Repurchase and
cancellation of
ordinary shares,
net of expenses (8,681,067) (718,489) �  �  �  (437,551,499) �  �  �  (438,269,988)
Amortization
of deferred
compensation,
net of forfeiture
impact �  �  �  �  �  (2,815,249) 17,667,467 �  �  14,852,218

December 31,
2005 21,788,707 1,803,626 28,550,704 2,362,999 �  1,214,810,902 (27,618,582) 68,236 (103,096,903) 1,088,330,278

Unrealized loss
on investment
securities, net
of taxes of nil �  �  �  �  �  �  �  (96,802) �  (96,802)
Net earnings �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  1,040,411 1,040,411

Total
comprehensive
income �  �  943,609

319,922 25,211 �  �  �  6,069,096 �  �  �  6,094,307
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Exercise of
stock options
and warrants
Adoption of
SFAS No.123R (27,618,582) 27,618,582 �  
Share-based
compensation
cost �  �  �  �  �  10,260,600 �  �  �  10,260,600
Capital
contribution
from sale of
business to
entity under
common
control �  �  �  �  �  94,170,501 �  �  �  94,170,501

December 31,
2006 22,108,629 1,828,837 28,550,704 2,362,999 �  1,297,692,517 �  (28,566) (102,056,492) 1,199,799,295

F-4

Edgar Filing: EGL INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 131



Table of Contents

eLong, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders� Equity and Comprehensive Income (loss)�(Continued)

Ordinary shares
High vote Ordinary

shares
Stock
warrant

Additional
paid-in
capital

Deferred
compensation

Accumulated
other

comprehensive
income

Accumulated
deficit

Total
shareholders�

equity
Number
of Shares Amount

Number
of Shares Amount

RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
Realized loss
on investment
securities upon
disposal, net of
taxes of nil �  �  �  �  �  �  28,566 �  28,566
Net loss �  �  �  �  �  �  �  (25,587,611) (25,587,611)

Total
comprehensive
loss (25,559,045)
Exercise of
stock options
and warrants 192,718 14,721 �  �  �  3,135,130 �  �  �  3,149,851
Exercise of
Performance
Units 17,154 1,291 �  �  �  (1,291) �  �  �  �  
Share-based
compensation
cost �  �  �  �  �  7,220,551 �  �  �  7,220,551

December 31,
2007 22,318,501 1,844,849 28,550,704 2,362,999 �  1,308,046,907 �  �  (127,644,103) 1,184,610,652

December 31,
2007-US$ 252,906 323,938 �  179,317,153 �  �  (17,498,438) 162,395,559

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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eLong, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31,
2005 2006 2007 2007
RMB RMB RMB US$

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings (loss) (60,517,659) 1,040,411 (25,587,611) (3,507,747)
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities: �  �  �  �  
Minority interest (related to discontinued operations) (832,836) (111,573) �  �  
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle �  (282,072) �  �  
Foreign exchange loss 25,888,143 33,258,502 65,917,833 9,036,525
Impairment loss of goodwill, intangible assets and property and equipment 17,544,663 �  1,038,896 142,420
Allowance for doubtful accounts 3,557,148 957,149 2,206,673 302,508
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 60,409 414,395 208,229 28,546
Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangible assets 9,964,548 12,813,406 16,565,314 2,270,901
Utilization of pre-acquisition net operating loss carry forwards �  4,083,112 �  �  
Share based compensation 14,801,571 12,221,421 6,002,062 822,809
Gain on discontinued operations �  (2,649,682) �  �  
Deferred income taxes 502,186 (3,237,776) (1,682,525) (230,653)
Gain on disposal of investment �  �  (134,089) (18,382)
Changes in working capital, net of impact from acquisitions:
Accounts receivable 966,032 5,460,245 (14,497,502) (1,987,429)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,826,755 (996,705) (4,641,390) (636,278)
Other non-current assets (4,857,072) (4,136,713) (18,257,591) (2,502,891)
Amounts due from related parties �  (462,059) (1,707,080) (234,020)
Accounts payable 10,853,369 10,374,149 23,449,811 3,214,681
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 8,019,345 6,134,981 (7,686,495) (1,053,726)
Amounts due to related parties 1,701,363 1,672,376 1,154,821 158,312

Net cash provided by operating activities 30,477,965 76,553,567 42,349,356 5,805,576
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures (19,887,306) (20,661,826) (22,190,033) (3,041,981)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (16,112,269) (7,894,780) (250,000) (34,272)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 237,048 615,178 206,437 28,300
Proceeds from disposal of business, net direct expense �  113,947,501 �  �  
Increase in restricted assets �  (11,384,231) (373,326) (51,178)
Payment for short term investment �  �  (19,120,000) (2,621,117)
Payment relating to discontinued operations �  �  (15,567) (2,134)
Payments made on behalf of related parties �  (1,636,646) (1,895,678) (259,874)
Withdrawal of investment deposit 2,950,000 �  �  �  

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (32,812,527) 72,985,196 (43,638,167) (5,982,256)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from warrants exercise, net of investment banking fee 771,596,526 �  �  �  
Repurchase of ordinary shares (393,651,851) �  �  �  
Exercise of stock options and stock warrants 11,462,362 6,094,306 3,149,851 431,806
Payments for initial public offering costs (9,129,797) (8,487,133) �  �  
Repayment of short-term loan �  (6,000,000) �  �  
Payments for Series B preferred shares offering costs (220,497) �  �  �  
Proceeds from release of restricted cash, net of expenses 24,001,565 75,706,911 �  �  
Proceeds received on behalf of related parties �  �  4,777,439 654,928
Payable to former shareholders �  26,693,515 �  �  
Receipts in advance (refund) in relation to share option exercise �  1,132,594 (572,082) (78,425)

Net cash provided by financing activities 404,058,308 95,140,193 7,355,208 1,008,309

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash (23,210,169) (33,916,633) (66,942,571) (9,177,004)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 378,513,577 210,762,323 (60,876,174) (8,345,375)
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Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 610,046,779 988,560,356 1,199,322,679 164,412,398

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 988,560,356 1,199,322,679 1,138,446,505 156,067,023
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid for income taxes 414,626 1,963,628 14,238,145 1,951,875
Accrual for purchase of equipment and software 6,721,588 4,823,503 5,521,328 756,906

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(1) ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

ELong, Inc. (the �Company� through its consolidated subsidiaries and variable interest entities (VIEs) (collectively the �Group�), is principally
engaged in the provision of travel services, including hotel information and reservation services, airline reservations and ticketing, and to a lesser
extent, packaged-tour services, Internet-related advertising and other related services in the People�s Republic of China (the �PRC�).

The Company, through its subsidiaries, conducts its operations in the PRC through a series of agreements with various VIEs. These VIEs are
designed and used solely to facilitate the Company�s participation in Internet content provision, short messaging, call center services, advertising
business, travel agency and air-ticketing services, which are industries in the PRC in which foreign ownership is restricted. The Company does
not have any direct equity interest in the VIEs. However, pursuant to certain agreements and arrangements with its VIEs, the Company has the
economic controlling interest over and is the primary beneficiary of these entities.

The Company has an economic controlling interest over the VIEs through a series of related agreements, including exclusive technical services
agreements, equity pledge agreements, operating agreements and loan agreements. Through these agreements, the Company is the primary
beneficiary of these entities as it absorbs a majority of the VIEs� expected losses and receives a majority of the VIEs� expected residual returns.
As a result, the financial position and results of the VIEs have been consolidated in the Company�s consolidated financial statements.

As of December 31, 2007, Expedia Inc. controls approximately 95% of the Company�s voting power and has the ability to control substantially
all of the Company�s management and business operations.

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company, its subsidiaries and VIEs. All significant transactions and
balances between the Company, its subsidiaries and VIEs have been eliminated upon consolidation.

(b) Basis of presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (�U.S. GAAP�).

(c) Use of estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management of the Group to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual financial results could
differ significantly from these estimates. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include allowances for doubtful accounts
and deferred income tax assets, provision for loyalty points, stock-based compensation, the allocation of the purchase price for the Company�s
business acquisitions, useful lives and residual values of property and equipment and intangible assets, and the recovery of the carrying values of
long-lived assets, goodwill and intangible assets.
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(d) Foreign currencies
The Group�s functional and reporting currency is the Renminbi (�RMB�.) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the
RMB are translated into RMB using the applicable exchange rates quoted by the People�s Bank of China (�PBOC�) at the balance sheet dates. All
such exchange gains and losses are included in �foreign currency exchange loss, net� in the consolidated statements of operations.

Translations of amounts from RMB into United States dollars (�U.S. dollars�) are solely for the convenience of the reader and are calculated at the
rate of US$1.00 = RMB7.2946, representing the noon buying rate in the City of New York for cable transfers of RMB, as certified for customs
purposes by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, on December 31, 2007. No representation is made that the RMB amounts could have been,
or could be, converted, realized or settled into U.S. dollars at that rate on December 31, 2007, or at any other rate.

(e) Commitments and contingencies
In the normal course of business, the Group is subject to contingencies, such as legal proceedings and claims arising out of its business, that
cover a wide range of matters. Liabilities for such contingencies are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the
amount of the assessment can be reasonably estimated.

(f) Revenue recognition
The Group�s revenues are principally derived from providing hotel reservations, air-ticketing and other related travel services. The Group
recognizes revenues when all of the following have occurred: persuasive evidence of arrangement with the customer, services have been
performed, fees are fixed or determinable and collectibility of the fees is reasonably assured. These criteria as related to the Group�s revenues are
considered to have been met as follows:

Hotel reservation services

The Group receives commissions from travel suppliers for hotel room reservations booked through the Group. Commissions from hotel
reservation services rendered are recognized after hotel customers have completed their stay at the applicable hotel. The Group presents
revenues from such transactions on a net basis in the statements of operations, as the Group acts as an agent, does not assume any inventory risk,
and has no obligations to the hotel for cancelled hotel reservations. Contracts with certain travel suppliers contain escalating commissions that
are subject to achieving specific performance targets. Such escalating commissions are recognized when the performance targets have been
achieved.

Air-ticketing services

The Group receives commissions from travel suppliers for air-ticketing services booked through the Group. Commissions from air-ticketing
services rendered are recognized upon the delivery of the ticket to the customer, net of estimated cancellations. Estimated cancellations were
insignificant for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007. The Group presents revenues from such transactions on a net basis in the
statements of operations, as the Group acts as an agent, does not assume any inventory risk, and has no obligations for cancelled airline ticket
reservations. Contracts with certain airlines contain discretionary escalating commissions that are paid to the Group subject to achieving specific
performance targets. Such discretionary escalating commissions are recognized on a cash basis because the Group cannot reasonably estimate
such commissions.
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Other travel services

The Group receives commissions from travel product providers for vacation package products and services booked through the Group.
Commissions are recognized as revenue upon the delivery of the air ticket to the customer, net of estimated cancellations. Cancellations were
insignificant for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007. The Group presents revenues from such transactions on a net basis in the
statements of operations, as the Group acts as an agent and does not assume any inventory risk for cancelled vacation package bookings. The
Group suspended its vacation package service in July 2007.

The Company also provides Chinese hotel inventory procurement, rating and availability negotiating service to Travelscape LLC (�Travelscape�),
which is controlled by Expedia Inc. and recognizes revenue when Travelscape confirms the revenue sharing amount which is based on
pre-agreed commission sharing rate.

Non- travel services

Non-travel services primarily comprise wireless services and Internet-related advertising services.

Revenue from Internet-related advertising contracts, which is paid in cash, is recognized over the contractual advertisement display period.
Revenue from the provision of wireless services is recognized when the services have been rendered, the amount can be reliably measured and
there is no uncertainty of settlement with the telecom operators.

The Company�s subsidiaries and VIEs, are subject to business tax and surcharges on the revenues generated from services rendered in China.
Commencing January 1, 2007, business tax and surcharges are recorded on a net basis (excluded from revenues) in the consolidated statement of
operations. Amounts for all prior periods presented have been reclassified for comparative purpose.

(g) Income taxes
Income taxes are provided using the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future
tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases and operating loss carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply
to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates or change in tax status is recognized in income in the period the change in tax rates or the tax law is enacted. A
valuation allowance is provided to reduce the amount of deferred tax assets if it is considered more likely than not that some portion, or all, of
the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 109 �Accounting for Income Taxes�, the tax benefits associated with
the utilization of pre-acquisition net operating losses carryforwards for which a valuation allowance was established at the date of the acquisition
are recognized in the consolidated financial statements after the acquisition date as follows: (i) first to reduce to zero any goodwill related to the
acquisition; (ii) second to reduce to zero other non-current intangible assets related to the acquisition; and (iii) third to reduce income tax
expense.

On January 1, 2007, the Group adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes�an interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109� (�FIN 48�). FIN 48 gives guidance related to the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return, and requires that an entity recognize in its financial statements the impact of a tax position, if that
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position is more likely than not to be sustained upon an examination, based on the technical merits of the position. The adoption of FIN 48 on
January 1, 2007 did not have any effect on the Group�s consolidated financial statements.

The Group records interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and records related penalties in general and administrative
expenses in the Group�s consolidated statements of operations.

(h) Share-based compensation
Prior to January 1, 2006, the Group accounted for employee share-based arrangements using the preferable fair value recognition provision of
SFAS No. 123, �Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation� (�SFAS No. 123�). Effective January 1, 2006, the Group adopted SFAS No. 123
(revised 2004), �Share-Based Payment� (�SFAS No. 123R�), which replaced SFAS No. 123 and superseded APB No. 25, �Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees�(�APB No. 25�). The Group adopted SFAS No. 123R using the modified prospective approach, and accordingly, prior periods
have not been restated to reflect the impact of SFAS No. 123R. In accordance with SFAS No. 123R, all grants of stock options and Performance
Units are recognized in the consolidated financial statements based on their grant date fair values. The valuation provisions of SFAS No. 123R
apply to new awards granted after the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, to awards granted to employees before the adoption of SFAS No. 123R
whose related requisite services had not been provided, and to awards which were subsequently modified or cancelled. In March 2005, the
Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (�SAB�) No. 107 (�SAB No. 107�) relating to SFAS No. 123R. The
Group has applied the provisions of SAB No. 107 in its adoption of SFAS No. 123R.

SFAS No. 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at the date of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ
from initial estimates. Share-based compensation cost was recorded net of estimated forfeitures such that expense was recorded only for those
share-based awards that are expected to vest. Previously under SFAS No. 123, to the extent awards were forfeited prior to vesting, the
corresponding previously recognized expense was reversed in the period of forfeiture. Upon the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, the Group
recorded a cumulative effect of RMB 282,072 to account for the expected forfeitures of share-based awards granted prior to January 1, 2006 for
which the Group previously recorded as an expense. As required by SFAS No. 123R, a balance of RMB 27,618,582 of deferred compensation
on January 1, 2006, date of adoption, was eliminated against additional paid-in capital.

Under SFAS No. 123R, the Group applies the Black-Scholes valuation model in determining the fair value of options granted. Risk-free interest
rates are based on US Treasury yield for the terms consistent with the expected life of award at the time of grant. Expected life is based on
historical exercise patterns, which the Group believes are representative of future behavior. Expected dividend yield is determined in view of the
Company�s historical dividend payout rate. The Group estimates expected volatility at the date of grant based on a combination of historical
volatilities and volatilities of comparable companies. The Group recognizes compensation cost on all share-based awards on a straight-line basis
over the requisite service period. Forfeiture rate is estimated based on historical forfeiture and adjusted to reflect consideration for foreseeable
future changes in facts and circumstances, if any.

Compensation cost related to 2006 and 2007 employee Performance Units, which are awards in the form of units that are denominated in a
hypothetical equivalent number of the Company�s ordinary shares, which number of units are determined based on the fair market value of the
Company�s ordinary shares on the date immediately preceding the grant date and which, when vested, are settled in either ordinary shares or
cash. At the time of grant, the Company�s board of directors or the compensation committee determines if the Company will settle the
Performance Units in cash, shares or both. Settlement terms of Performance
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Units, once established, may only be changed by approval of the Company�s board of directors or the compensation committee. Except with
respect to the Performance Units granted to the Company�s independent directors which are to be settled in cash, shares or both, Performance
Units granted to staff during 2006 and 2007 are to be settled in ordinary shares. Those Performance Units granted during 2006 and 2007 to the
Company�s independent directors are to be settled upon vesting by shares or cash that is equal to the fair market value of the vested ordinary
shares on the vesting date. Forfeiture rate is estimated based on historical forfeiture and adjusted to reflect consideration for foreseeable future
changes in facts and circumstances, if any.

Share-based compensation awards which are settled in cash upon vesting are classified as liabilities and included in accrued expenses and other
current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Compensation cost related to liability-classified awards is determined based
on the current share price and other pertinent factors at the balance sheet date, and the proportionate amount of the requisite service that has been
rendered to date. Changes in fair value of the liability-classified awards after the requisite service period has been completed are immediately
recognized as compensation cost in the period in which the change in fair value occurs.

The Group accounts for equity instruments issued to non-employees in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R and Emerging Issues
Task Force (�EITF�) Issue No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments That are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in
Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services. All transactions in which goods or services are received in exchange for equity instruments are
accounted for based on the fair value of the consideration received or the fair value of the equity instrument issued, whichever is more reliably
measurable. The measurement date of the fair value of the equity instrument issued is the date on which the counterparty�s performance is
completed.

(i) Loyalty points provision
Cardholders of the VIP, regular, and co-branded cards issued by the Group earn loyalty points based on their usage of the cards. The Group
provides travel awards and other non-cash gifts to the cardholders upon redemption of loyalty points that are accumulated based on cardholders�
transactions with the Group. Due to the limited history of the loyalty points reward program, the Group cannot make reasonable and reliable
estimates of the forfeiture levels of the loyalty points. Therefore, the Group recognizes estimated costs to provide free travel and other non-cash
gifts based on historical redemption rates. The liabilities for loyalty points are reduced upon the redemption or expiration of the loyalty points.
The estimated costs are included in �sales and marketing expense� in the consolidated statements of operations.

(j) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and demand deposit placed with banks or other financial institutions. The Group considers
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and with original maturities from the date of purchase of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

(k) Short-term investment
Short-term investment represents a held-to-maturity debt security reported at amortized cost with a maturity of less than one year. The Company
assesses declines in the value of the investment to determine whether such decline is other-than-temporary and thus the investment is impaired.
This assessment is made by considering available evidence including changes in general market conditions, specific industry and
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individual company data, the length of time and the extent to which the market value has been less than cost, the financial condition and
near-term prospects of the individual company, and the Company�s intent and ability to hold the investment.

(l) Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and are non-interest bearing. The allowance for doubtful accounts is the Group�s best
estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in the Group�s existing accounts receivable. The Group reviews its allowance for doubtful
accounts periodically and determines the allowance based on historical write-off experience, the aging of the accounts receivable balance and the
customer�s credit worthiness. Specific accounts are reviewed individually for collectibility. Accounts receivable are charged off against the
allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. The Group does not have any
off-balance-sheet credit exposure related to its customers.

(m) Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. The Group also capitalizes certain costs incurred
during the application development stage related to the development of internal-use software in accordance with Statement of Position (�SOP�)
No.98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use, and EITF Issue No. 00-2, Accounting for Web
Site Development Costs. Costs incurred related to the planning and post-implementation phases of development are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation and amortization are calculated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives, taking into account any
estimated residual value:

Capitalized software development cost 3 years
Computer equipment and system software 3-5 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over 2 to 5 years which represents the shorter of the lease term or
estimated useful life of the assets.

(n) Goodwill and other intangible assets
Goodwill represents the excess of costs over fair value of the net assets of businesses acquired. The Group follows the provisions of SFAS
No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in a purchase business combination and determined to
have an indefinite useful life are not amortized, but instead tested for impairment at least annually or more frequently if certain circumstances
indicate a possible impairment may exist. The Group completes its annual impairment assessment for goodwill and intangible assets in
December of each year.

The Group evaluates the recoverability of goodwill using a two-step impairment test approach at the reporting unit level. In the first step, the fair
value of the reporting unit is compared to its carrying value including goodwill. The fair value of the reporting unit is determined based upon a
combination of multiple of earnings and future cash flows. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than the carrying value, a second step is
performed which compares the implied fair value of the reporting unit�s goodwill to the book value of the goodwill. In determining the implied
fair value of the reporting unit goodwill, the fair values of
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the tangible net assets and recognized and unrecognized intangible assets are deducted from the fair value of the reporting unit. If the implied
fair value of the reporting unit goodwill is lower than its carrying amount, goodwill is impaired and is written down to its implied fair value.

The impairment test on an intangible asset that is not subject to amortization consists of a comparison of the fair value of an intangible asset with
its carrying amount. If the carrying amount of an intangible asset exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to
that excess.

(o) Impairment of long-lived assets
The Group evaluates for impairment of its long-lived assets to be held and used, including equipment and software, separately identifiable
intangible assets which are subject to amortization and other non-current assets, when events or changes in circumstances indicate, in
management�s judgment, that the carrying value of such assets may not be recoverable in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount
of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying value of an asset exceeds its
estimated undiscounted future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount that the carrying value exceeds the estimated fair
value. Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of carrying amount or estimated fair
value less the cost to sell, and are no longer depreciated.

(p) Employee benefit plans
As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group participates in various defined contribution plans pursuant to which certain retirement,
medical and other welfare benefits are provided to employees. The Group is required to make contributions to these plans at a stated contribution
rate based on monthly basic compensation of qualified employees. The Group has no other obligation for the payment of employee benefits
associated with these plans beyond the contributions described above. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, the Group
contributed RMB 12,557,754, RMB16,212,136 and RMB17,820,361, respectively to these plans.

(q) Statutory reserves
Under PRC law, the Company�s wholly-owned foreign subsidiaries are required to provide for certain statutory reserves, namely a general
reserve, an enterprise expansion fund and a staff welfare and bonus fund. These subsidiaries are required to allocate at least 10% of their after
tax profits on individual company basis as determined under PRC GAAP to the general reserve and have the right to discontinue allocations to
the general reserve if such reserve has reached 50% of registered capital on individual company basis. Appropriations to the enterprise
expansion fund and staff welfare and bonus fund are at the discretion of the Board of Directors of these subsidiaries. The Company�s VIEs in the
PRC are also subject to similar statutory reserve requirements. These reserves can only be used for specific purposes and are not transferable to
the Company in the form of loans, advances, or cash dividends.

(r) Earnings (loss) per share
Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net earnings (loss) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing net earnings (loss) by the weighted average number of ordinary and
dilutive ordinary equivalent shares outstanding during the period. Ordinary equivalent shares consist of the ordinary shares issuable upon
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the exercise of outstanding stock options, stock warrants and the settlement of Performance Units. Ordinary equivalent shares in the diluted
earnings (loss) per share computation are excluded in net loss periods as their effect would be anti-dilutive. Ordinary shares include high-vote
ordinary shares.

(s) Advertising expense
The Group incurs advertising expense consisting of radio, magazine and SMS advertising, and online internet advertising expense to promote
the Group�s brands and products. The Group expenses the production costs associated with advertisements in the period in which the
advertisement first takes place. The Group expenses the costs of communicating the advertisement as incurred each time the advertisement is
shown. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007, the advertising expense was RMB13,237,247, RMB12,393,014
and RMB18,742,438. As of December 31, 2006 and 2007, the Group had RMB154,699 and RMB941,711 of prepaid marketing expenses which
are included in �prepaid expenses and other current assets� in the consolidated balance sheets.

(t) Segment reporting
The Group operates and manages its business as two reportable segments�Hotel and Air. In accordance with SFAS No. 131, �Disclosures about
Segment of an Enterprise and Related Information� (�SFAS No. 131�), the Group�s chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the CEO,
who reviews operating results to make decisions about allocating resources and assessing performance for the entire Group. The Group does not
allocate any operating expenses or assets to its hotel and air segments as management does not use this information to measure the performance
of the reportable segments.

The Group generates substantially all revenues from customers in the PRC. Accordingly, no geographical segments are presented.

(u) Operating leases
The Group leases office space under operating lease agreements with original lease periods up to five years. Rental expenses are recognized
from the date of initial possession of the leased property on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Certain lease agreements contain rent
holidays, which are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease renewal periods are considered on a lease-by-lease basis and
are generally not included in the initial lease term.

(v) Financial instruments
Financial instruments of the Group are primarily comprised of cash and cash equivalents, restricted assets, accounts receivable, investment
securities, accounts payable, and accrued expenses and other payables. As of December 31, 2006 and 2007, their carrying value approximated
their fair value due to their short term nature.

(w) Reclassification
Prior to 2007, the Group recorded revenue gross of business tax and surcharges. In 2007 upon the adoption of EITF Issue No.06-3 How Taxes
Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement (That Is, Gross versus Net
Presentation), business tax and surcharges are recognized as a reduction of revenue. Management believes that net presentation is
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preferable because such presentation presents the benefit to be retained by the Group. In 2007 business tax and surcharges have been presented
on a net basis in the consolidated statement of operations. As a result of the change business tax and surcharges of RMB10,487,647 and RMB
14,702,612 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006 were reclassified from operating expenses to a reduction of revenue to conform
with the current year presentation.

Further, certain prior year amounts have been reclassified with no effect on net earnings or retained earnings to conform to the 2007 financial
statement presentation.

(x) Recently issued accounting pronouncements
In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements� (�SFAS No. 157�). SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measurement of fair value, and expands disclosures required for fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 does not require any
new fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fair value measures already required or permitted by other standards for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007. On February 12, 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff position No. 157-2, �Effective date of FASB Statement
No. 157� which defers the effective date of SFAS No. 157 to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008 for all non-financial assets and
non-financial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis. SFAS No. 157
is required to be adopted by the Group in fiscal year 2008. The Group does not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have a material impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 159, �The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities�Including an amendment of
FASB Statement No. 115� (�SFAS No. 159�). SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other
items at fair value. The entity shall report unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected. SFAS No.159 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and is required to be adopted by the Group in fiscal year 2008. In connection with
current period financial statements, the Group does not have items eligible for Fair Value Option under SFAS No. 159. The Group does not
expect the adoption of SFAS No. 159 will have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R (Revised), �Business Combinations� (�SFAS No. 141R�). SFAS No. 141R establishes
requirements for the recognition and measurement of acquired assets, liabilities, goodwill, and non-controlling interests (formerly minority
interests). SFAS No. 141R also provides disclosure requirements related to business combinations. SFAS No. 141R is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008. SFAS No. 141R will be applied prospectively to business combinations with an acquisition date on or after
December 15, 2008. The Group is in the process of evaluating the impact of the adoption of SFAS 141R on its consolidated financial statements.

(3) CORRECTION OF IMMATERIAL ERRORS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006 have been
adjusted from previously issued financial statements to correct the following immaterial errors:

1) As of December 31, 2006, the Group accrued income tax and business tax liabilities in relation to expenses for which, based on the Group�s
estimate and then available information, the related tax-qualified invoices were not expected to be collected and therefore the expenses
were not deductible for tax purposes. Subsequent to December 31, 2006 and prior to the issuance of the 2006 financial statements, the
Group
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collected the majority of the tax qualified invoices and therefore such expenses were deductible for tax purpose as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2006. The effect of this adjustment for the year ended December 31, 2006 is to decrease income tax expense by
RMB1.6 million, decrease income taxes payable by RMB2.0 million, and decrease by RMB 0.4 million each of the following: statement of
operations line item, business tax and surcharges, and balance sheet line items, prepaid expenses and other current assets, and accrued
expenses and other current liabilities.

2) In 2007, the Group re-evaluated its accounting for the mirror options granted to Expedia Asia Pacific, an entity controlled by Expedia, Inc.,
and concluded that the Expedia Asia Pacific options should be classified as a liability and re-measured to their fair value each reporting
period until settlement. As a result, the Group revised the previously issued financial statements as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2006 to correct an immaterial error corresponding to its accounting for 260,204 Expedia Asia Pacific mirror
options. The effect of this correction is to decrease general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006 by
RMB0.14 million (2005: RMB 1.71 million), increase accrued expenses and other current liabilities by RMB1.99 million as of
December 31, 2006, and decrease shareholders� equity by RMB 2.13 million as of December 31, 2006 as compared to the Group�s
previously issued financial statements.

(4) ACQUISITIONS AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Shanghai Xinwang Computer Technology Co., Ltd. (�Fortune Trip�) and Bravado Investments Limited (�Bravado�)

On July 7, 2005, the Company completed the acquisition of 100% of the outstanding equity interests of Fortune Trip and Bravado. The total
purchase price for Fortune Trip and Bravado was RMB 21,981,392, plus capitalized acquisition costs of RMB1,394,134. The results of Fortune
Trip and Bravado have been included in the consolidated statements of operations since July, 2005, the date of acquisition.

Raytime

In May 2006, the Group sold Raytime BVI and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Golden VIP, and ZM VIP (collectively, �Raytime�) for RMB
1,500,000 to the original selling shareholders of Raytime. The sale proceeds was not received in cash, but reduced the remaining RMB
4,000,000 payable by the Group to the original selling shareholders of Raytime by RMB 1,500,000. The Group recorded a gain on disposal of
RMB 2,649,682 in May 2006, representing the excess of the selling price over the carrying amount of the Group�s investment in these entities on
the date of sale. As a result of the sale, all remaining contingent consideration payable was cancelled.

Online Dating Division

During the third quarter of 2006, the Group sold the interactive online dating community business to an entity, whose controlling shareholder is
also the controlling shareholder of the Group for US$14,625,000 (RMB 114,780,017). As this transaction was between entities under common
control, the proceeds in excess of the carrying value of the net assets sold of RMB 94,170,501 was recorded as an increase to additional paid-in
capital.

The financial results of Raytime and the interactive online dating community businesses have been reflected as discontinued operations in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations and related disclosures for all periods presented. As a result, the footnote disclosures have
been revised to exclude the amounts related to the financial results of the Raytime and interactive online dating community businesses for all
periods presented. The consolidated statements of cash flows include both discontinued operations for all periods presented through the date of
disposition.
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The following table displays summarized information for discontinued operations:

Year ended December 31,
2005 2006 2007

Revenues 21,554,483 13,173,371 �  
Earnings (loss) before income tax (16,934,889) 1,226,768 112,260
Income tax expense 298,236 24,302 8,420

(5) RESTRICTED ASSETS

In 2006, US$1,462,500 was deposited in an Escrow bank account as guarantees to meet the requirements of disposal of the online dating
division. With an original maturity of 18 months it was included in �other non-current assets� as of December 31, 2006. As of December 31, 2007,
the US$1,543,434 was due within one year and therefore classified as current �restricted assets� in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

(6) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable consists of the following:

December 31,
2006 2007

Accounts receivable 32,429,569 42,933,362
Allowance for doubtful accounts (4,192,172) (1,795,120)

Account receivable, net 28,237,397 41,138,242

The following table presents movement of the allowance for accounts receivable:

Year ended December 31,
2005 2006 2007

Balance at the beginning of year 1,730,738 4,128,344 4,192,172
Additions charged to bad debt expense 3,618,713 809,147 1,596,659
Write-offs charged against the allowance (1,221,107) (745,319) (3,993,711)

Balance at the end of year 4,128,344 4,192,172 1,795,120

(7) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following:

December 31,
2006 2007
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Computer equipment 30,276,346 36,147,057
Furniture and office equipment 7,047,429 7,860,456
Leasehold improvements 6,649,282 7,608,024
Computer system software 12,866,362 20,177,194
Capitalized software development 4,215,194 6,446,696

61,054,613 78,239,427
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (24,925,111) (37,324,263)
Projects in process 1,679,736 3,046,420

Property and equipment, net 37,809,238 43,961,584
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As of December 31, 2006 and 2007, the Group�s capitalized software development costs, including projects in progress, net of accumulated
amortization, were RMB4,608,006 and RMB5,929,193 respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007, the Group
recorded amortization of capitalized software development costs of RMB114,342, RMB1,066,682 and RMB1,785,945, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Group suspended offering vacation package products. As a result the vacation package business�
property and equipment was written down to its fair value and the Group recognized a charge of RMB545,216 during the year ended
December 31, 2007, which is included in �write-down of property and equipment and intangible assets� in the consolidated statement of
operations.

(8) GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill and intangible assets consists of the following:

December 31,
2006 2007

Goodwill 30,000,019 30,000,019

Intangible assets with definite lives, net 3,345,944 1,792,265
Intangible assets with indefinite lives 400,000 400,000

Total intangibles, net 3,745,944 2,192,265

The Group�s intangible asset with indefinite lives relates to a trade name acquired in the acquisition of Fortune Trip.

In 2005, the Group operated as one operating segment. Raytime BVI, Golden VIP and ZM VIP comprised the Raytime reporting unit which is
one level below the Group�s operating segment. The goodwill arising from these acquisitions and the related assets and liabilities, including
intangible assets, were allocated to the Raytime reporting unit. Based on the lower than estimated performance of Raytime, the Group
determined the definite lived intangible related to Raytime might be impaired. Accordingly, the Group performed an impairment analysis.

As a result of the impairment tests undertaken of identifiable goodwill and the Raytime definite lived intangible asset, the Group recorded
impairment charges, which are included in �earnings from discontinued operations before income taxes� in the consolidated statement of
operations, of RMB 14,462,720 and RMB3,081,943 respectively for the year ended December 31, 2005. No impairment charges for goodwill
and indefinite lived intangibles were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2006 or 2007.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Group recorded impairment charges of RMB 493,680 in relation to customer list in relation to
Fortune Trip, which is included in �write-down of property and equipment and intangible assets� in the consolidated statement of operations. The
impairment mainly resulted from a significant decline in forecasted sales and cash flows from Fortune Trip due to its inability to maintain active
customers that contribute revenue to the Group. These factors resulted in the carrying value of the customer list being greater than its fair value,
and therefore a write-down to fair value was required. The fair value of the customer list was calculated by estimating the present value of future
cash flows associated with the customer list.
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The following table presents the changes in goodwill

December 31,
2006 2007

Goodwill at the beginning of the year 34,083,131 30,000,019
Reduction due to utilization of pre-acquisition NOL carryforward (4,083,112) �  
Goodwill at the end of the year 30,000,019 30,000,019

Intangible assets, which all have definite lives, consist of the following:

December 31,
2006 2007

Customer lists 5,300,000 5,300,000
Less: accumulated amortization (1,954,056) (3,014,055)
Less: provision for impairment in value �  (493,680)

3,345,944 1,792,265
Weighted average useful lives of the intangible assets with definite lives 5 5

Amortization expense was RMB 634,055, RMB 1,060,000 and RMB 1,060,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007,
respectively. The annual estimated amortization expense of the acquired intangible assets for each of the next five years is as follows:

Amortization
2008 848,906
2009 628,906
2010 314,453
2011 �  
2012 �  

Total 1,792,265

(9) ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses and other payables consist of the following:

December 31,
2006 2007

Accrual payroll and welfare 13,738,372 14,515,756
Accrued expenses 21,002,875 28,837,943
Other accrued expenses and payables 13,863,852 10,014,664
Receipts in advance for exercise of share option 1,187,715 8,898
Advances and deposits from customers 1,733,934 1,976,560
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Expedia Asia Pacific mirror share option (note 13) 1,985,933 114,850
Business and other taxes 3,613,920 3,410,000
Payable to former shareholders (note 14) 26,035,384 24,354,638

Total accrued expenses and other payables 83,161,985 83,233,309
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(10) REVENUES

Revenues by category consist of the following:

For the year ended December 31,
2005 2006 2007

Travel:
Hotel reservation 151,990,059 209,275,155 240,803,384
Air-ticketing 23,773,159 38,287,644 57,455,084
Other 2,696,091 8,398,189 5,588,080

Total travel revenues 178,459,309 255,960,988 303,846,548

Non-travel 11,869,843 8,582,692 11,550,123

Total revenues 190,329,152 264,543,680 315,396,671

(11) INCOME TAXES

The Company, its subsidiaries and consolidated VIEs file separate income tax returns.

Cayman

Under the current laws of Cayman Islands, the Company is not subject to tax on their income or capital gains. In addition, no Cayman Islands
withholding tax is imposed upon any payments of dividends.

China

Prior to January 1, 2008 the Company�s subsidiaries and VIEs were subject to enterprise income tax (�EIT�) at a rate of 33%. As described below,
certain of the Company�s subsidiaries and VIEs were subject to preferential rates ranging from 15% to 27% and income tax holidays ranging
from 100% to 50%.

eLongNet Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (�eLong Information�), a subsidiary of the Group, obtained the status of a �High New
Technology Enterprise� in November 2006 was entitled it to a preferential EIT rate of 15% from January 1, 2006 to December 31, 2007.

Beijing eLong Information Technology Co., Ltd. (�Beijing Information�), a VIE of the Group, obtained the status of a �High New Technology
Enterprise� that entitles it to a preferential EIT rate of 15% from January 1, 2001 to December 31, 2008. Beijing Information has also been
granted a �tax holiday� for exemption of EIT for three years from January 1, 2001 to December 31, 2003, and a 50% reduction in the EIT rate (i.e.
7.5%) from January 1, 2004 to December 31, 2006.

Further, certain branches of these VIEs are taxed at 27% of deemed taxable income, which is determined based on revenue.

In March 2007, the Chinese government enacted the Corporate Income Tax (�CIT�) law and promulgated related regulations which were effective
January 1, 2008, which imposes a unified income tax rate of 25% for both domestic and foreign invested enterprises. �High New Technology
Enterprise� will still enjoy a preferential CIT rate of 15%, and the qualifying criteria under the CIT law was released in April 2008. The Group is
in the process of evaluating eLong Information and Beijing Information�s qualification as �High New Technology
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Enterprises� under the new rules. Commencing January 1, 2008 eLong Information and Beijing Information will be subject to an income tax rate
of 25%. However, if eLong Information and Beijing Information obtain a certificate of a �High New Technology Enterprises�, they can enjoy the
preferential tax rate of 15%. There is no assurance that eLong information and Beijing Information will meet the qualifying criteria of �High New
Technology Enterprise�.

The Group expects that eLong Information and Beijing Information will apply for the �High New Technology Enterprise� status that will allow
these entities to enjoy a 15% preferential tax rate under the CIT law. To comply with SFAS.No.109, measuring a deferred tax liability or asset
using the enacted tax rate, the Group must use income tax rate of 25% in its calculation of its deferred tax balances as of December 31, 2007
until the Group receives official approval for �High New Technology Enterprises� status. The effect of change in rate will then be recorded as a
reduction in deferred tax assets with a corresponding debit to deferred tax expense in the period in which the approval is obtained.

Furthermore, prior to January 1, 2008, the Company was exempted from withholding tax on dividends it received from its PRC subsidiaries.
Under the CIT law and its Implementing Rules, enterprises incorporated in a foreign country or region are classified as either a non-resident
enterprise or a resident enterprise. Non-resident enterprises without an institution or establishment inside PRC, or whose income has no
connection with its institutions and establishment inside PRC, are subject to withholding tax at the rate of 10% with respect to their PRC-sourced
dividend income distributed from earnings accumulated after January 1, 2008. The 10% withholding tax rate is subject to applicable tax
agreements or treaties between PRC and other tax jurisdiction. The undistributed earnings generated before January 1, 2008 shall be exempted
from withholding tax when they are distributed to the foreign investor in the year 2008 or thereafter. The Group has not yet determined if it will
be subject to the 10% withholding tax.

The Chinese tax system is subject to substantial uncertainties and has been subject to recently enacted changes, the interpretation and
enforcement of which are also uncertain. There can be no assurance that changes in Chinese tax laws or their interpretation or their application
will not subject the Group�s PRC entities to substantial Chinese taxes in the future.

Income tax expense (benefit) attributable to earnings (loss) from continuing operations consists of:

Current Deferred Total
Year ended December 31, 2005 1,118,487 484,667 1,603,154
Year ended December 31, 2006 6,073,035 (3,237,776) 2,835,259
Year ended December 31, 2007 2,567,868 (1,682,525) 885,343

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the current tax expense included charges in lieu of tax in respect to the utilization of pre-acquisition net
operating losses of RMB 4,083,112.
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The significant components of deferred income tax expense (benefit) attributable to income (loss) from continuing operations for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 are as follows:

For the year ended December 31,
2005 2006 2007

Deferred tax benefit (exclusive of the effect of the component below) (4,747,827) (1,038,082) (1,763,334)
Increase (decrease) in the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 5,232,494 (2,199,694) 80,809

Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 484,667 (3,237,776) (1,682,525)
The impact of tax holiday on earnings (loss) from continuing operations was RMB234,139 (0.01 per share), RMB 115,680 (nil per share ) and
nil in the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

Income tax expense (benefit) differed from the amounts computed by applying the PRC enterprise income tax rate of 33% to pretax earnings
(loss) from continuing operations as a result of the following:

For the year ended December 31,
2005 2006 2007

Computed expected tax (benefit) expense (13,754,855) 789,073 (8,186,016)
Change in the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets allocated to income tax expense 5,232,494 (2,199,694) 80,809
Adjustment to deferred tax assets and liabilities for changes in enacted tax rates �  1,685,801 (3,180)
Expiration of net operation loss carry forward �  �  314,985
Tax holiday (234,139) (115,680) �  
Tax rate differential (425,377) (2,100,638) (78,000)
Foreign tax differential 5,627,083 2,468,024 7,471,113
Adjustment of estimated income tax accruals �  �  (1,064,117)
Non deductible entertainment expenses 392,833 160,214 90,453
Non deductible personnel expenses 1,104,450 1,768,487 1,123,265
Non deductible allowance for doubtful accounts 1,228,964 97,612 576,746
Amortization of intangible assets 1,846,895 �  �  
Unqualified tax deductions �  243,759 187,450
Other 584,806 38,301 371,835

Actual income tax expense 1,603,154 2,835,259 885,343

According to the PRC Tax Administration and Collection Law, the statute of limitations is three years if the underpayment of taxes is due to
computational errors made by the taxpayer or the withholding agent. The statute of limitations will be extended to five years under special
circumstances, which are not clearly defined. In the case of transfer pricing issues, the statute of limitations is three years, and will be extended
to ten years under special circumstances, which are not clearly defined. There is no statute of limitations in the case of tax evasion. The Group�s
2003 to 2007 tax returns remain subject to examination by the PRC tax authorities. The Group did not have any unrecognized tax benefits for the
year ended December 31, 2007, and it does not expect that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will change significantly within the next 12
months. No interest or penalty related to unrecognized uncertain tax positions was recorded in the 2007 consolidated financial statements.
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are presented
below.

For the year ended
December 31,

2006 2007
Deferred tax assets:
Operating loss carryforwards 1,629,074 1,045,976
Operating loss carryforwards, pre-acquisition 1,500,254 1,127,070
Property and equipment 400,237 255,741
Accrued expenses 298,656 3,750,254

Total gross deferred tax assets 3,828,221 6,179,041
Less: valuation allowance (1,594,808) (1,675,617)

Net deferred tax assets 2,233,413 4,503,424

Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets with indefinite lives 132,000 100,000
Intangible assets with definite lives 952,360 516,486
Restricted assets �  2,677,615
Total deferred tax liabilities 1,084,360 3,294,101

Total net deterred tax asset 1,149,053 1,209,323

Deferred tax assets, net:
�Current, included in prepaid expenses and other current assets 298,656 1,072,639
�Non-current, included in other non-current assets 982,397 236,684
Deferred tax liabilities: 132,000 100,000
The amount included in the change in the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was an increase (decrease) in the beginning-of-the-year
balance of the valuation allowance because of a change in circumstances that caused a change in judgment about the realizability of the related
deferred tax asset in future years. Such amounts were RMB453,384, RMB(387,167), and RMB598,915 for the years ended December 31, 2005,
2006, and 2007, and is primarily due to certain allowances for doubtful accounts that were deemed nondeductible.

The gross amount of operating loss carryforwards which will expire in 2008 to 2012 as follows: RMB1,146,621 in 2008, RMB2,376,516 in
2009, RMB4,122,083 in 2010, RMB751,724 in 2011, and RMB295,240 in 2012.

Goodwill was reduced by nil, RMB4,083,112 and nil for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively, for the utilization of
acquired tax benefits that were previously reduced by the valuation allowance. As of December 31, 2007, the amount of valuation allowance
associated with pre-acquisition net operating losses of RMB 610,584 will be recorded as a reduction of goodwill if recognized in future years.

In assessing the realization of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income
during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible or utilized. The Group considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax
liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based upon an assessment of the level of
historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible or can be
utilized, management has provided a valuation allowance of RMB1,594,808 and RMB1,675,617 as of December 31, 2006 and 2007,
respectively. After reducing the
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deferred tax assets by the valuation allowance, the deferred tax assets were RMB1,281,053 and RMB1,309,323 as of December 31, 2006 and
2007, respectively, represent the deferred tax assets of entities that have been profitable and therefore are more likely than not to be realized. The
amount of the deferred tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income are
reduced.

(12) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCY

The Group has several non-cancelable operating leases, primarily for office rent. Payments under operating leases, including periodic rent
escalation and rent free period, are charged as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases (with initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year) as of
December 31, 2007 are:

Minimum
lease

payment
2008 8,984,340
2009 912,786
2010 131,600
2011 �  
2012 �  

Total 10,028,726

Rental expenses incurred under operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 amounted to RMB 5,672,598,
RMB9,643,785 and RMB 11,183,306 respectively.

(13) SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Stock options

In April 2001, the Company adopted the stock option plan (the �2001 Plan�) pursuant to which the Company�s Board of Directors may grant stock
options to selected directors, officers, key employees and consultants of the Group. The Plan authorizes the Company to grant options to
purchase up to 4 million ordinary shares. On August 26, 2003, the Company increased the number of ordinary shares authorized to be issued
under the 2001 Stock Option Plan to 5,500,000.

In July 2004, the Company adopted a stock and annual incentive plan (the �2004 Plan�) that allows the Board of Directors to grant stock options,
stock appreciation rights, restricted stock or Performance Units to officers, employees, directors or consultants of the Group to purchase up to an
aggregate of 4,000,000 shares of ordinary shares.

The options under both 2001 Plan and 2004 Plan have a contractual life of ten years and vest and become exercisable ratably over three to five
years from the date of grant, except the options granted in 2001, which do not require future services, nor contains a performance or market
condition, which are expensed on grant date.
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Assumptions used to determine the fair value of stock options granted during 2005, 2006 and 2007 are summarized in the following table.

For the year ended December 31,
2005 2006 2007

Weighted average grant date fair value per share $ 2.75 $ 3.49 $ 2.81

Weighted average assumptions used
Expected volatility 43% 50% 55%
Expected dividends �  �  �  
Expected life 4 years 6.35 years 6.5 years
Risk-free interest rate (per annum) 2.63% 4.22% 4.43%
A summary of stock options activity under the 2001 Plan for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 is as follows:

Number
of Shares

Weighted
average
exercise
price

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual

Term

Aggregated
Intrinsic
Value (In
thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2005 3,650,524 US$ 0.75
Granted �  �  
Exercised (230,956) US$ 1.53
Forfeited (151,887) US$ 1.53
Expired �  �  

Balance at December 31, 2006 3,267,681 US$ 0.66
Granted �  �  
Exercised (161,718) US$ 1.53
Forfeited (15,096) US$ 1.53
Expired (20,000) US$ 1.53

Balance at December 31, 2007 3,070,867 US$ 0.61 3.56 years US$ 10,847

Fully vested and exercisable as of December 31, 2007 3,063,692 US$ 0.61 3.56 years US$ 10,828

A summary of stock options activity under the 2004 Plan for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 is as follows:

Number
of Shares

Weighted
average
exercise
price

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual

Term

Aggregated
Intrinsic
Value (In
thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2005 1,911,450 US$ 5.41
Granted 121,951 US$ 6.15
Exercised (79,750) US$ 5.25
Forfeited (515,376) US$ 5.26
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Expired �  �  

Balance at December 31, 2006 1,438,275 US$ 5.53
Granted 711,112 US$ 4.80
Exercised (31,000) US$ 5.25
Forfeited (495,714) US$ 5.27
Expired (59,124) US$ 5.51
Balance at December 31, 2007 1,563,549 US$ 5.29 7.47 years US$ 14

Fully vested and exercisable as of December 31, 2007 1,043,449 US$ 5.53 6.68 years US$  �  
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The aggregated intrinsic value of stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2007 was calculated based on the closing price of
the Company�s ordinary shares on December 31, 2007 of $4.14 per share. The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007 was $9.5 million, $1.4 million and $0.6 million, respectively.

As of December 2007, there was RMB 21.16 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock options to be recognized
over a weighted-average remaining vesting period of 4.1 years. Total unrecognized compensation cost may be adjusted for future changes in
estimated forfeitures.

Expedia Options

On October 1, 2004, the Company entered into a stock option agreement with Expedia Asia Pacific pursuant to which, in exchange for Expedia
Asia Pacific giving its consent to the issuance of 250,000 options to certain of the Company�s officers, the Company granted Expedia Asia
Pacific an option to purchase up to 260,204 of the Company�s ordinary shares at a purchase price of US$5.25 per share. The option mirrors the
provisions of 250,000 option granted to the Company�s officers on October 1, 2004. The option becomes exercisable by Expedia Asia Pacific
each time any such officer exercises any of the 250,000 options. In connection with each exercise by an officer, Expedia Asia Pacific is entitled
to exercise a portion of its option such that Expedia Asia Pacific would receive (if Expedia Asia Pacific exercises its option to the fullest extent
in connection with such officer exercise) 51% of the aggregate ordinary shares issued to such officer and Expedia Asia Pacific in connection
with such officer exercise. To the extent that any of the officers� options terminate or expire without being exercised, an amount of Expedia Asia
Pacific�s option equal to 51% of (i) such officer�s terminated or expired options divided by (ii) 0.49 will likewise terminate or expire.

Prior to January 1, 2007, the Group accounted for the 260,204 Expedia Asia Pacific options in a manner similar to employees options and the
fair value as determined on the grant date was recognized over the vesting period of the 250,000 officer options

In 2007, the Group re-evaluated its accounting for the Expedia Asia Pacific mirror option�s agreement and concluded that the Expedia Asia
Pacific options should be classified as a liability and re-measured to its fair value each reporting period until settlement. The Group made an
immaterial correction of an error and revised the previously issued financial statements to reflect the revised accounting method in prior periods.
As a result of the re-measurement the Group recognized income (expense) of RMB50,647, RMB(1,408,475) and RMB1,871,083 for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2006, 2007. Further as of December 31, 2006 and 2007 the liability corresponding to the Expedia Asia Pacific
options was RMB1,985,933 and RMB114,850, respectively.

The following table presents a summary of the Company�s stock options (excluding the mirror options granted to Expedia Asia Pacific)
outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2007:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Range of Exercise Prices
Shares (In
thousands)

Weighted
Average Price
Per Share

Weighted Average
Remaining

Contractual Life
(Years)

Shares (In
thousands)

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price
$0.10 - $2.00 3,070 $ 0.61 3.56 3,064 $ 0.61
$2.01 - $4.00 50 $ 3.87 9.94 �  N/A
$4.01 - $6.00 1,364 $ 5.13 7.41 901 $ 5.25
$6.01 - $8.00 120 $ 6.71 7.21 112 $ 6.71
$8.01 - $10.00 30 $ 9.43 6.96 30 $ 9.43

$0.10 - $10.00 4,634 $ 2.19 4.88 4,107 $ 1.86
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Performance Units

Performance Units are rights to receive the Company�s ordinary shares, or in some cases, a cash award linked to the Company�s ordinary share
value. Performance Units vest ratably over a five-year period, are not entitled to dividends or voting rights, and are generally converted to
ordinary shares upon vesting on a one-for-one basis. When the Performance Unit grants are settled in cash, the cash amount is set at the
equivalent of the fair market value of the number of the Company�s ordinary shares that the grantee would have received on a particular vesting
date, had the grant been settled in shares.

The cost of the Performance Units awards was determined using the fair value (based on the fair value of the underlying ordinary shares on the
date immediately preceding the grant date) of the Company�s ordinary shares on the date of grant, net of expected forfeitures, and compensation
cost was recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting term.

A summary of Performance Units activity under the 2004 Plan for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007 is as follows:

Number of Shares
Weighted average
grant date fair value

Balance at December 31, 2005 104,895 US$ 5.00
Granted 304,545 US$ 6.94
Settled �  �  
Forfeited (84,516) US$ 5.20
Expired �  �  
Balance at December 31, 2006 324,924 US$ 6.83
Granted 565,880 US$ 4.84
Settled (17,154) US$ 6.46
Forfeited (304,088) US$ 5.95
Cancelled (1,856) US$ 7.12

Balance at December 31, 2007 567,706 US$ 4.90

The Group recorded stock-based compensation cost of RMB 14,801,571 and RMB 12,221,421 and RMB 6,002,062 for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively, with respect to the stock options and Performance Units granted under the 2001 and 2004
Plans.

Warrants

In August 2003, the Company issued warrants to purchase 600,000 of the Company�s ordinary shares at an exercise price of US$0.75 per share to
Broadband Capital Management LLC (�Broadband�), and two outside consultants, in consideration for investment banking services provided to
the Company in respect of the private placement of US$15 million aggregate principal amount of Series A preferred shares in August 2003. The
Company accounted for the warrants issued to Broadband and the two consultants in accordance with SFAS No. 123 and EITF Issue No. 96-18.
The fair value of the warrants granted was RMB4,818,960 on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model (excluding a
volatility assumption as the Company was a non-public entity at the date the warrants were issued). The assumptions used in determining the fair
value of the warrants were as follows: expected dividend yield 0%, risk free interest rate of 2.9%, and a contractual life of 10 years. The
estimated fair value of the warrants of RMB4,818,960 was charged against the gross proceeds of the Series A preferred shares as such costs
were incremental and specifically and directly attributable to the actual placement of such securities.
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During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007, 10,540 and nil warrants were exercised into 9,216 and nil of ordinary shares after netting
off shares equal to the exercise price due. As of December 31, 2006 and 2007, the number of warrants outstanding and exercisable was 15,121.

(14) PREFERRED SHARES

Series B Preferred Shares

On August 4, 2004, the Company issued and sold 11,188,570 Series B preferred shares to Expedia Asia Pacific, which is now a wholly owned
subsidiary of Expedia, Inc. (or Expedia) for an aggregate purchase price of US$58,690,062 (RMB485,777,647), or US$5.25 per Series B
preferred share.

Pursuant to the Expedia Asia Pacific purchase agreements, the Company used the proceeds from the sale of the Series B preferred shares to
repurchase from existing shareholders an aggregate of 4,012,411 of its ordinary shares and 1,581,874 of the Company�s Series A preferred
shares. After the share repurchase, the Company retained US$29,345,033 (RMB242,888,916) of the aggregate purchase price. Of that amount
US$4,401,754 (RMB 36,433,318) was deposited into an escrow account which was subject to (i) possible claims by Expedia Asia Pacific for
indemnification under the agreement between the Company and Expedia Asia Pacific for representations, warranties and covenants provided by
the Company, and (ii) payment to Expedia Asia Pacific for certain post-closing matters. On August 4, 2005 and April 30, 2006, 25% and 75% of
the escrow funds were released to the Company, respectively.

Also in connection with the sale of the Series B preferred shares, on August 4, 2004 the Company granted Expedia Asia Pacific a warrant which
was exercisable by Expedia Asia Pacific during the first 30 business days following the completion of the Company�s initial public offering.
Expedia Asia Pacific�s warrant entitled it to purchase that number of the Company�s high-vote ordinary shares which would result in Expedia
Asia Pacific�s holding 51% of the Company�s outstanding ordinary shares on a fully-diluted basis after giving effect to the repurchase from
existing shareholders of a number of ordinary shares equal to one-half of the shares purchased by Expedia Asia Pacific pursuant to its warrant.

In December 2004, Expedia Asia Pacific, which is now controlled by its ultimate parent, Expedia, exercised the warrant and, on January 7, 2005,
purchased 17,362,134 of the Company�s high-vote ordinary shares for an aggregate cash purchase price of US$107,818,852 (RMB 892,362,729).
As a result of Expedia Asia Pacific�s exercise of its warrant, the Company is controlled by Expedia, and Expedia has the power to control
substantially the Company�s management and business operations. The Company used the proceeds from Expedia Asia Pacific�s warrant exercise
to repurchase 8,681,067 ordinary shares from certain of the Company�s existing shareholders. Out of the total proceeds of US$53,909,426
retained by the Company, US$8,086,414 was deposited into an escrow account which was subject to (i) possible claims by Expedia Asia Pacific
for indemnification under the agreement between the Company and Expedia Asia Pacific for representations, warranties and covenants provided
by the Company, and (ii) payment to Expedia Asia Pacific for certain post-closing matters. As of December 31, 2005, as a result of the
adjustments made on March 31, 2006 to the warrant purchase price and the share repurchase price, the Company recorded US$98,270
(RMB766,909) due to Expedia Asia Pacific with a corresponding reduction to additional paid-in capital, and recorded US$49,135
(RMB383,454) due from certain of the Company�s existing shareholders with a corresponding increase to additional paid-in capital. On April
2006, US$9,527,365(RMB74,352,509) of the escrow funds was released to the Company, net of the above amounts due to Expedia and due
from shareholders.
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On December 17, 2004, the Series B preferred shares were converted, on a one-to-one basis, into 11,188,570 high-vote ordinary shares in
conjunction with Expedia Asia Pacific�s exercise of the warrant to purchase high-vote ordinary shares.(See note 15)

(15) ORDINARY SHARES

Ordinary Shares

On August 4, 2004, in connection with the issuance of the Series B preferred shares, the Company purchased from certain existing shareholders
4,012,411 ordinary shares (inclusive of the 150,500 shares described above) and 1,581,874 of the Company�s Series A preferred shares. Such
ordinary shares and Series A preferred shares were subsequently cancelled. 1,585,750 Series A Preferred Shares were converted into an equal
number of ordinary shares effective upon the completion of the Company�s initial public offering on November 2, 2004. These ordinary shares
were sold by the selling shareholders to the public in the initial public offering. On the same day, 6,619,870 Series A Preferred Shares were
automatically converted into an equal number of ordinary shares.

Immediately prior to the closing of Expedia Asia Pacific�s warrant purchase on January 7, 2005, the Company issued an aggregate of 98,973
ordinary shares to certain warrant holders at US$0.75 per share (US$74,229.75 or RMB 614,363) upon the exercise of the warrants. The
Company subsequently repurchased these ordinary shares in connection with the issuance of the high-vote ordinary shares (See below).

During the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, the Company issued 1,718,250, 319,922 and 209,872 ordinary shares to certain of
its option and Performance Units holders for an aggregate exercise price of US$1,387,922 (or RMB 11,462,361), US$772,628 (or RMB
6,094,307) and US$76,625 (or RMB 579,339), respectively.

Since 2006, to facilitate the employee stock option exercise process, the Company issued depositary shares to its brokers. These shares are not
considered outstanding until issued to the employees as a result of the exercise of stock options. As of December 31, 2006 and 2007, 915,042
and 755,170 depositary shares were issued to brokers and not to the shareholders.

High-Vote Ordinary Shares

Expedia Asia Pacific or its affiliate, Expedia, held 11,188,570 high-vote ordinary shares as a result of the automatic conversion on December 17,
2004 of all outstanding Series B Preferred Shares.

Expedia Asia Pacific beneficially holds 28,550,704 high-vote ordinary shares, which constitute all of the Company�s outstanding high-vote
ordinary shares and, as a result, controls approximately 95% of the voting power of all shares of the Company�s voting stock. In addition, certain
other shareholders are parties to an investor agreement with Expedia Asia Pacific under which they have agreed to vote their ordinary shares in
the election of directors designated by Expedia Asia Pacific. Expedia Asia Pacific has the ability to control the composition of the Company�s
Board of Directors, including the right to select six of the thirteen members of the Board, the ability to nominate the remaining directors and vote
their shares to elect them and the right to vote their shares to remove members of the Board of Directors.

The rights of the ordinary shares and high-vote ordinary shares are the same except that each high-vote ordinary share is entitled to 15 votes,
whereas each ordinary share is entitled to one vote.
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(16) EARNINGS (LOSS) PER ORDINARY SHARE

Potentially dilutive securities that could potentially dilute basic earnings per ordinary share include stock options and Performance Units granted
to employees, directors and non-employees and stock warrants granted to non-employees. In 2005 and 2007, ordinary equivalent shares in the
diluted loss per ordinary share computation are excluded as their effect would be anti-dilutive.

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per ordinary share have been calculated as follows:

For the year ended December 31,
2005 2006 2007

Net earnings (loss) applicable to ordinary shareholders (60,517,659) 1,040,411 (25,587,611)
Denominator for basic earnings (loss) per share:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 49,637,963 50,391,885 50,756,869

Denominator for diluted earnings (loss) per share: 49,637,963 53,749,470 50,756,869
Basic earnings (loss) per share (1.22) 0.02 (0.51)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share (1.22) 0.02 (0.51)

(17) CONCENTRATION OF RISKS

Credit and concentration risks

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and other receivables represent the Group�s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to financial assets. As of December 31, 2006 and 2007, substantially all of the Group�s cash and cash equivalents were held in
major financial institutions located in the PRC, Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and the United States, which management believes
are of high credit quality. Accounts receivable are typically unsecured and denominated in RMB, and are derived from revenues earned from
operations arising in the PRC. The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers� financial condition and generally does not require
collateral on accounts receivable. The Group maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts and actual losses have been within management�s
expectations.

The Group has a diversified base of customers. No individual customer contributed to more than 10% of total revenues for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007. No individual customer accounted for more than 10% of accounts receivable as of December 31, 2006 and
2007.

The Group does not have concentrations of available sources of labors, services, franchises, licenses or other rights that could, if suddenly
eliminated, severely impact its operations.

Business and economic risks

The Group�s business is subject to certain risks and concentrations including dependence on relationships with travel suppliers, primarily airlines
and hotels, dependence on third-party technology providers, exposure to risks associated with online commerce security and credit card fraud.

The Group conducts its principal operations in the PRC and accordingly is subject to special considerations and significant risks not typically
associated with investments in equity securities of United States and Western European companies. These include risks associated with, among
others, the political, economic, legal environment and social uncertainties in the PRC, influence of the China National Tourism Administration
over certain aspects of the Group�s operations and competition in the travel agency industry.
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The Group is currently targeting the Chinese market. The Chinese government regulates Internet access, the distribution of online news and
other information, the provision of online commerce and provision of travel agency services through strict business licensing requirements and
other governmental regulations. These regulations include limiting foreign ownership in Chinese companies providing Internet access,
information and other online Internet services and travel agency services. Management, after consultation and advice from PRC legal counsel, is
of the opinion that the Group�s business complies with existing Chinese laws and regulations. However, the interpretation and application of
current or proposed requirements and regulations may have an adverse effect on the Group�s business, financial condition and result of
operations.

(18) SEGMENT INFORMATION

Since the year of 2006, the Group has operated two reportable segments: Hotel and Air.

These reportable segments are business units that offer different products that are managed separately because each requires different service
provision and marketing strategies.

The Hotel segment mainly provides the services to customers for the reservation with hotels and the Air segment provides the services to
customers for the air tickets booking with airline companies. Other segment provides internet-related advertising services.

In 2007 the Group started to recognize business tax and surcharges as a reduction of revenue and use revenue net of business tax to measure
operating performance.

The change in 2006 from a single reportable segment results from a change in internal organizational and financial reporting structure. The
Group determined its segments based on how the Group�s chief operating decision maker manages the Group�s business, makes operating
decisions and evaluates operating performance. A summary of the results of the reportable segments with all historical amounts reclassified to
conform to the current segment presentation is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2007
Hotel Air Other Corporate Total(RMB)

Revenues 240,803,384 57,455,084 17,138,203 �  315,396,671
Business tax and surcharges (12,040,169) (3,160,030) (2,610,093) �  (17,810,292)
Cost of services (33,412,658) (40,231,011) (1,042,501) (7,811,415) (82,497,585)
Service development expenses (7,300,479) (3,202,201) (13,515,635) (24,583,964) (48,602,279)

Total contribution 188,050,078 10,861,842 (30,026) (32,395,379) 166,486,515

Year ended December 31, 2006
Hotel Air Other Corporate Total(RMB)

Revenues 209,275,155 38,287,644 16,980,881 �  264,543,680
Business tax and surcharges (10,463,758) (2,105,820) (2,133,034) �  (14,702,612)
Cost of services (28,762,854) (24,409,252) (1,258,042) (7,815,207) (62,245,355)
Service development expenses (4,969,639) (5,705,147) (10,750,395) (20,496,472) (41,921,653)

Total contribution 165,078,904 6,067,425 2,839,410 (28,311,679) 145,674,060
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Year ended December 31, 2005
Hotel Air Other Corporate Total(RMB)

Revenues 151,990,059 23,773,159 14,565,934 �  190,329,152
Business tax and surcharges (7,599,503) (1,307,524) (1,580,620) �  (10,487,647)
Cost of services (24,501,783) (10,967,942) (2,983,531) (1,993,732) (40,446,988)
Service development expenses (3,743,451) (9,148,990) (11,647,088) (11,758,060) (36,297,589)

Total contribution 116,145,322 2,348,703 (1,645,305) (13,751,792) 103,096,928

(19) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The principal related party transactions for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 are as follows:

Equity-related transactions with Expedia

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Group paid Expedia Asia Pacific RMB 729,246, as indemnification for certain obligations under
the Series B preferred shares purchase agreement.

In January 2005, in connection with the issuance and sale of 17,362,134 high-vote ordinary shares for US$107.8 million, the Group repurchased
8,681,067 ordinary shares from certain shareholders for an aggregate of US$53,909,426 (US$6.21 per share). The repurchases included the
purchase of 4,293,156 ordinary shares, for an aggregate of US$26,636,199 (after taking into consideration the adjustment in the repurchase
price) from a Group controlled by a former member of the Group�s Board of Directors, and 40,506 ordinary shares, for an aggregate of
US$251,313 (after taking into consideration the adjustment in the repurchase price), from the Group�s then chief financial officer. As a result of
the adjustment in the warrant exercise price and repurchase price described in Note 14, the Group refunded to Expedia Asia Pacific US$98,270
and certain of the Group�s existing shareholders refunded to the Group US$49,134. The Group accrued the amount due to Expedia Asia Pacific
and recorded a receivable from the selling shareholders as of December 31, 2005. In April 2006, the Group received RMB 26,693,515 of final
escrow release on behalf of former selling shareholders in relation with the sale of shares held by Billable Development, Mr. Wang Gui Ying
and Mr. Wang Yi Jie to Expedia Asia Pacific in 2004. As of December 31, 2007, the amount has not been paid to these former shareholders.

Commercial agreements with Expedia

In April 2006, the Group entered into a contract with Expedia, Inc. The Group provides the international hotel booking service through Expedia�s
hotel inventory. RMB3,056,410 and RMB6,570,281 were charged by Expedia in 2006 and 2007. The balance due to Expedia, Inc. was
RMB964,562 and RMB682,762 as of December 31, 2006 and 2007.

In August 2006, the Group entered into a contract with Travelscape LLC, which is ultimately controlled by Expedia Inc. The Group provides
Chinese hotel inventory procuring, rating and availability negotiating service to Travelscape LLC. RMB3,185,106 and RMB2,944,925 of
revenue was recognized in 2006 and 2007. The balance due from Travelscape LLC was RMB241,133 and RMB1,258,875 as of years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2007. This agreement was terminated in March 2008.
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Services provided by and to Expedia

In 2006 an Expedia�s employee served as the Group�s software development director under an one-year Secondment Agreement. The Group
recorded salary and benefit of US$64,095 (RMB500,204) and nil in 2006 and 2007, and the balance of RMB500,204 as of years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2007 was unpaid.

In 2006 and 2007 Expedia prepaid expense of RMB94,157 and RMB297,950 on behalf of the Group and the balance of RMB392,107 was
unpaid as of December 31, 2007.

In 2007 the Group recorded RMB1,138,436 (2006:RMB1,067,721, 2005:RMB 747,330) in consulting fees for services provided by Expedia The
amount of RMB1,815,051 and RMB2,953,487 was unpaid at December 31, 2006 and 2007.

Subleases to Expedia

The Group entered into some sublease agreements with Expedia in 2006 and subleased certain office space to Expedia�s subsidiaries in China. In
2007 the Group recorded other non-travel revenue of RMB58,716 from such subleases and the balance of RMB16,531 was unpaid as of
December 31, 2007.

Spin-off

In September 2006, the Group sold its online dating business to Match.com for US$14.6 million (RMB 114,780,017). Match.com and the Group
are under the common control of one individual. The Group recorded RMB206,228 and RMB627,921 in fees for services provided to
Match.com subsequent to the sale in 2006 and 2007. In addition, the Group collected cash and prepaid certain expenses on behalf of one
subsidiary of Match.com. As of December 31, 2006 Match.com owed the Group RMB1.84 million, and as of December 31, 2007, the Group
owed Match.com RMB578,255.

In 2007 the Group prepaid certain expenses of RMB207,506 on behalf of Expedia.

(20) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In February 2008 the Company�s Board of Directors approved the repurchase by the Company of the Company�s American Depositary Shares/or
Ordinary Shares for up to a maximum aggregate price of US$20 million. Through June 20, 2008, the Company had repurchased 515,273
American Depositary Shares at an aggregate cost of US$ 4.3 million.
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